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Nixon...1 Began Inqumes

Last of a Semes

.Meeting - between President -Nixon
and Assistant Attorney General Henry
Petersen, Oval Office, April 17, 1973,
~ from 2.46 p.m. to 3:49 p.m,

Steward. Mr. Petersen.

P. Right. .

P. All right—he can come in.

Steward. Have him come in now, sir?

P. Yeah.

P. Hi.

HP. Mr. President, how are you?

P. Sit down, sit down.

HP. Thank you, sir.

P. (Inaudible). meeting—in the mid-
dle of the night.for a change. The, ah,
anything new I need to know?

HP. No, sir, ah,—

P. Don’ft As.a matter of- fact I don’t
want you really to tell me anything out
. of the ‘grand jury unless you think I
need to know it. If it corroborates
something or anybody here I need to

know. it. Otherwise I don't want to’

know about it.

HP. No- sir.

P. That’s good, lbecause I find—inci-
.dentally, if I might—I don’t think I
like—for ‘example, ;I haven’t -been in
touch with John Mltchell but he might
call me sometime.and I don’t want to
be a-position of ever saymg anything,
see? -

"HP.Well, I understand how you feel
—it's a— . ) )

P. I guess'it would be legal for me
~ to know

‘HP. Well yes, I think it is legal for
you to know. - .

P. Is it? Well, but don’t.do it, nght
~ The - problem that concerns me some

there (inaudible)—I did see Rodgers
last night ‘as you know—

HP. Yes, sir.

P. I wanted to get an 1ndependent
judgment on this when I was talking
" (inaudible).

HP. He is an a;dmlrable man.

P. Able fellow—was a fine attorney
. general, -and so forth. I gave it all to
.him with the bark off and (inaudible).
_ And, his views are somewhat different

from yours and I.am sure you would
- respect them— perhaps mme as well—
‘because it is a tough call.

HP. Indeed so.

P. I might say somewhat dlffem‘ent—I
don’t-'mean in terms of where you
come out eventually—

- HP. I understand. °

P.. But 'in terms of timing, and so
forth, and so forth. First there is a
problem of—Oh—which I don’t want
you to get in the wringer on this but,
the leaks from . the-grand jury—you
remember I have already ‘mentioned
that to. you before.

- HP. Yes, sir.
. P. I think you have to know that
Dean has talked very freely to Mitch-

ell.

HiPIamsureﬂlatsso .

'P. And Mitchell, of course; is—I can
imagine, I don’t know, but I think
you should know that. Whether he has
talked to others about that, I do not
know.

HP. Well, he fe€ls a very close per-
sonal velatmnshlp with Mitchell, I. am
almost positive of that—

P. The point is I think you will have
to assume that Dean in this period, who
was basmally sort of in charge of it for

the White House (and the rest of us
were out campaigning traveling, so
forth, so on) will probably have told
people that he has information from
the grand jury. Now you just have to
evaluate that yourself. I just don’t want
the Department of Justice, and you
particularly, after your, ah—the way
you have broken your—

HP. Mr. President—I am sure that
is so.

P. I don’t want to get embarrassed,

‘see?

HP. I have no concern about that.

P. After the pumping of Rogers—I
am not enough of a criminal lawyer
to know enough about it—but Rogers
was greatly concerned about the leaks
from the grand jury. He asked me that
—he said—

HP. Well, two things are occurring
—one, Magruder is talking. Magruder
is going around trying to make peace
with each—in other words, he will
come in to me and say, look, I am in
this bind and I have to testify and
there is nothing I can do but I got to
tell the complete truth® about the
others but with respect to- you I am
doing the best I can.

P. Yeah.

HP. Which is the pitch he is mak-
ing, now—

P. You've talked to?

HP. We have talked to his lawyers
about that. With respect to Dean—it
doesn’t surprise me that he has gone

to Mitchell. He’s, he’s—

P. Understand what I am driving
at?

HP. He’s probably getting informa-
tion from the grand jury.

P. What I am concerned about is
leaks and leaks from the grand jury,
not now but leaks during the period—
the summer.

HP. Oh, oh yes.

P. That’s the pomt—durlng—June
July, August, September, and so forth
that is the point that I mean, that a—

HP. I don’t think that is a critical
problem so far as I am concerned, Mr,
President, for this reason—

P. See we don’t want—after all this
‘agony—I don’t want the—well—the

man that I'm relying on to be in any
kind of a (inaudible) position.

HP. Mr. President, I don’t to be in
that position.

P. Well no, you’ve got your life (in-
audible) ahead

HP. Let me tell you—when I spoke
to Dean and I for example, am not go-
ing to, I'm not worried about this, I—

P. I just want to be sure that—

HP. Well, let me make three points
—when I say this, and it’s almost awk-
ward to say this—

P. That is why Rogers for example
is recommending a special counsel—

- HP. Right—

P. He is very much afraid that any-
body who has been handhng the damn
thing up to this point is going to have
somebody—

HP. Well, there, ah—

P. (inaudible) fell about that?

HP. Well with respect to John Dean
—it is almost awkward to say it—my
conversation with Dean touched upon
three things: (1) leaks— which frankly
I tell you I don’t take very seriously
see what I mean—that’s part and par-
cel of the Washington business.

- P.- Yeah. -

HP. (the second) was Dean S person-
al involvement—that is to say—

P. What did he do. :

HP. Well we didn’t suspect him, but
what did he do with respect to the °
securing of the equipment and records
in Hunt’s office in connection with the
motion to suppress where he was a po-....
tential witness for the defense on the
motion to suppress. And the third was =
status reports—now from those status .
reports, I spoke to him in terms of
ultimates. Magruder was a good wit-
ness in his own behalf. Magruder—the
grand jury-didn’t believe what he said
about the money—but not the testi-
mony itself—the result of the testi-
mony. So I don’t have any problem— -

P. That as no problem of (inaudi-
ble)?

HP. No sir, and I can disclosure to >
an attorney for the government in the -
course of my work. Dean was in addi-
tion to counsel for the president, ob-
viously an attorney for the government
—and there is not anything improper
in that..

P. Right—well good, I am relieved:
to hear that.

HP. Now, politically if someone :
wants to say—as they said to Pat.Gray
—you shouldn’t have been talking to
John Dean. Well, there is no way out
of that.

P! You see that is why I am ra1smg
the point.

HP. There is no way out of that.

P. That was perfectly proper for Pat
Gray to talk to Dean you know—as a
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matter of fact, it would be improper
for him not to . .. .

HP. Indeed.

P . . Dean was running the in-
vestlgatlon of the damn thing and I
certainly expected him to get all of the
FBI information he could.

HP. Yes.

P. What the hell is the FBI for?

HP. That’s right. You know—I
don’t— -

P. Gray got a bad rap on that.

HP. I don’t think that—that’s dema--

goguery I think I don’t take that -

seriously.

P. That’s r1ght—qu1te right. The sec-
ond point is that with regard to our
statement now — the one we talked
about yesterday—I am working on it
today—I don’t know whether I can get

it ready— for probably this afternoon™

—but I will give you a call if I do
have one. I have decided—I want to
¢ tell you—roughly it is sort of like the
one we worked on yesterday—but also
covers the Ervin committee, too. We
worked out a deal with them now
where everything on executive session,
no, everything on executive privilege
we have in executive session.
HP. Right.

P. The right of executive privilege-
will be reserved and all witnesses will..-

appear in public session—that’s the

way the deal was signed. So they will i

take all of our people in executive
sessions, discuss matters—you know
like they bring the judge brings the
lawyers around the bench.

"HP. I understand—yes, sir.

P. Does that sound like a good pro-
cedure to you?

HP. Yes, sir—I've only got one reser-
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vation and we alluded to this earlier
in connection with the Magruder plea,
and that is whether or not Senator
Ervin will be willing to hold off public
sessions that might interfere with the
right of fair trial for the others.

P. Well, you and I know it shouldn’t
but I mean my point is I've got to
say our (inaudible) should work for
the (1naud1b1e) at the White House on
it, but that is your job.

HP. Ok. Just so there 1s nothmg
(inaudible) with it.

P. I don’t want the damn Ervm“

committee to go forward—
HP. All right. Okay.

P. I thing frankly if I were Mltchell
I would be praying that the comn'nttee
did.

HP. Yeah. It gives him delay if
nothing else.

P. Correct. Delay! If the commlttee
gets up there and they will splash a
lot of this—I mean McCord and all
the rest in there he’s sure to get a
change of venue for one thing. Sec-
ondly, the thing that he’d be (inaudi-
ble) of these days, seems to me, venue

is the television and the rest, it’s, ah,
I think the Erving committtee would
be highly irresponsible to move for-
ward.

HP. That’s right.

P. (inaudible)

HP. That’s right.

P. So they should drop the commit-
tee investigation the day the grand
jury took it up seriously. .

HP. Well, your accommodation with
the comnuttee makes my job ‘miuch
easier now.

P. Good—how’s that? Because—

HP. Well, I think he would have
been very suspicious if I had gone
up there and there was still the pos-

sibility of some confrontation between

you and he. Z s

P. (inaudible) :

HP. No, ‘because we still haven’t
getten ‘the assent from— ;

"~ P. Sirica? :

HP. Well, not only Slrlca but Ma-
gruder’s 1awyers~We are Still waltmg
for them to come back.

P. It takes a long time.

HP. Yes, sir.

P. Now with regard to my pohcy,
I think you should know I thought it
‘@ver” a' lot—where ‘we ‘comeé out in
the end we shall see, but can be sure
Haldeman, Ehrlidhman_ ... Dean nat-
urally will have to go because he
has admitted very deep complicity.
Right? There wﬂl be no questmn
ottt” it~
L HP. 1 don t thmk that ;
--Haldeman and Ehrhchman at this
point. had - (inaudible) with Rogers—I
Aot -only let him read what. you had
given me but then I elaborated every-
$hing I knew  about . this. thing. His
y;dgment is.this that on Ehrhchman
it is’ a yery thin (inaudible) . .

i }IP Verythm indeed, . -
i2.P. “Never : going” to (1naud1b1e)—he
said particularly he said if they have
49y :withnesses for the fact. that. he
handed a packet to the d1rector of
he “FBL- and Hunt' didn’t leave the
*ﬁgunh‘y (maudlble) dlscussmns 1 don’t
now-—I am not trying judge 1t—but——

HP. No, I u.nderstand—J agree that

1 is very thm— £

“hore than that or ‘they are not gomg
‘tb get. Ehrlnchman-—

“"HP: That’s’ right.

P. On that—they may get hnn on
Sbmiéthing -elsel’ And. the. other point
was, that you made, wags Dean: said
that he’had talked—that ‘Liddy had
told him everythmg on, June 19th
Yeu remember? .

HP. Yes, sir. . )

2. Do you,know When he told Ehr—

hma 7

P, In Cathrnxa after Ehrhchman
been there m March—February"

“Maréh,© - )

Dean tojd Ehrhchman then"

ing -as to Gray’s “concérn .to - me.
T said’ Dean hasn’t told you he didn’t
tell him’ ahead of Ehrlichman but I
mean. that’ he' didn’t run right over

hat’s Tight. So,.it is a ‘curious

and tell him.
+ HP. No, ng — '

=8 The point.: that Dean condueted
“hlS 1nvest1gat10n and -did not ‘come to
EHrlichman and say. “Look: we have to
g0 on Mitchell” because that’s what
that was really about.

..HP. Yeah. o

2P ‘Liddy ‘had mvolved hlmself and
subsequently said Mitchell” and Mag-
fhder That’s what T understand to be
‘the truth of the case. = .
..,HP~ Well what Libby in effect’ sald
Was — What he admltted was that he
was present. at the Watergate -— Dean
already knew from ‘prior, deahngs that
Liddy was: 1nvolved you see? .

=P:-Oh, I $see — present .at. Water-
gate’ Bs

HP That’s nght St

P Oh,‘LI thought he also s I thou.ght
you said;— He told everything — that
yau ‘had’ copies. of. eéverything " |

HP Well I think- that. is correct.
He probobly filled in the details .but
you- recall at leasti from. the meeting
in February in Mitchell’s office, Dean
knew :what ledy was up to.

P. Yeah. :

HP. Because he had come back- to
Haldeman and said we should —

P. Yeah — - /

HP. Not be involved with that —

P. That’s right — W1th that —(ex-
pletive deleted)

HP. That’s right. That’s rlght

P. (laughs)

P. Which makes it more" cred1b1e
when you use all salty Words.

HP. Laughter.

P. Ok now — this brmgs us to a.
basic command decision with regard .
— with regard to what you do about -

" White House people. The main things’,

is (inaudible) and you, can Jook at it .
in terms of the fact that anybedyAwho g

‘this touches should go'.out — -with- -

out:— (inaudible). You.can look at
it in terms of the fact that that*if it .
touches them (inaudible) that-clearly
apart from whether or not, anythmg
legal stands up. Let’s suppose just
take Ehrlichman is a case in point —
that - this” thing brought “in by (1n--
audible) that proves to be (iraudible) -
don’t’ get’ anything Jelse on ‘Ehrlich--
man. then the question is ‘that never- ",
theless *that. in- itself would rafse a
cloud ~over Ehrhchm&p That' would -
mean that*he would: be no longer be -
useful.’ Therefore, ‘your ‘advicé — on
Sunday: or Teast it .was now — sack
Haldeman, Ehrhchman and Dean
now — all three becau%e in“the -
one case: Dean. should’  knew ' “he:, has’s
admitted comphclty — in the_-other
case there is a possibility of charges
which may nét be-true “and which
may 1ot be indictable but which’ Jgrom -
the standpoint of the- public’ wﬂl 'S0 .
involve them that it will cut. off’ theirs,
legs. And let me say — I understand
the point as well — the only thing i§~
the question of how and when.you do
it and as that I (inaudible).“And so I



President: The Watergate
mess.

Rogers: When it’s fin-

ished—

" - - President: .Pll be here,
all along, Bill. The jury in-
diets; moves. We're going to
- get on with this country. A
~ lot of people in the country,
..we may find, they. feel- the
President is going thie best he
--can in the damn thing, If I
. had:‘wanted ‘to “cover-up —
“-they.probably. thiik.the
President can:coverup, If 1
~wanted 16,1 sur e haven’t
' "'dt)’né”ii_vei'y""tbéll; have 1?

have decided to handle’ each on an
individual - basis "= ‘and . by that I
mean that our policy - generally will
be . that .anyone who refused to co-
“operate will, of course,. be sacked
immediately. Anyone who is indicted
at this time will be put on leave —
indefinitive leave — until he is tried.
You don’t”_— that is our system. Now,
if” you “indict somebody; I: will ‘th_e-n
‘put’ them’ on léave indefinitely which
means heé is out of 'a jéb — he’ll ‘have
to' go. “What -would happen in that
instance T ‘thihk; of course, is that
‘most of the people that are involved
hére woiild resign immediately so that.
Tam justsaying— - = ¢
HP. Funderstand ~~ " %
. P. That' the léast of the(inaudible)
is that you-ate going on leave — the
guy says — oh hell no, I can mever
‘ome back after four.or five months
of trial: That’s what we. would say at
this point. It gives‘them a- chance.
Now comes the grey area — if. any
charge is-made publicly — you see
— I dom’t mean in the Washington
Post or the Lios Angeles Times but I
mean publicly by Magruder, in" open
court " any charges are made. (not
released by the Grand jury) publicity
which corroborate in any way against
anybody of the White House staff then
‘he will be asked to take leave also.
" HP. Umn —UH i
P. Then, of course, what will happen
probably —— 1 would predict —— I know
— they will come in and resign. I
mean they will comé in' and-say, look
I can’t:do my job so I.am going to go.
But ‘what 1 mean,the ‘point s = my
position is — indictment means —
well, ah — failure to cooperate —
you're: fired; indictment:.. means you
are asked to take leave until you are

cleared. Then, the individual will say
‘I can’t do my 'job™ if he is a top
individual;: or- if ‘it is a ‘Seeretary,
for example — .- © . S

HP! Oh; yeah, T understand, - -

P. (Inaudible) — The big three —
Dean, Haldeman and Ehrlichman —
and third, in~the area- of .eharges —
charges are made — what I am think-
ing of here is ‘Magruder - Magruder
goes into open .eourt '« -as I under-
stand what will happen is you make

S

. statemesit in open court which will

nameé ‘Mitchell for sure. —
HP..Well — ,
P. And might name Haldeman and
might name Ehrlichman. Right?

HP. Well what we propose to do is
- file a one:count conspiracy indictment
“that would' name. Magruder and un-

~ indicted eo-conspirators.
P. And put their names in the
“indictment? . o
HP. Yes sir. i
P. Un-indicted. - ’
HP: Co-conspirators. Then when the
court questions the defendant with
‘- respect ‘to the facts that reflect his
© guilt, Magruder then would be ex.
pounding on the indictment and in
effect stating what the evidence was.
“P. On the un-indicted co-conspira-
tors this. is Magruder—but that would
be on’the Watergate side — that

would: be ‘both before and after. Ma. -

~ gruder is mainly before on this —
o HP: Well he is alS9 involved in the

g

< Obstruction. . e A ek

P, He is. Fine, then he is —
: ¢ he ' 2d. -himself,

other we de
 charge them at thigdime, For example,
1 am ‘indicted ~— you'¥é"named-as an
unindicted co-conspjrater. You

cute you:: ;< -
P:'I need to know that
(inaudible) gags -

HP. But all those people thit we
name—we propose to name only to
the extent that we feel we can cor-
roborate. The one thing we can’t af-
ford to do is to name, for example,
John Mitchell and then come up six
months later without enough evidence
to nail him.

P. Or for that matter — Ehrlich-
- man.

HP. That’s right,

P. Or Haldeman or anybody else —

HP. That’s right — - )

P. In other words, you are going to

because . . .

put in there people you know you can
indict. . - T LT

_ HP. That’s right. Now — %

P. -Well . then- . (inaudible)~1
can consider that 3 . charge?

.. HP. That’s right.

“P. That’s right — in’ other words,
if they’re in that I.would then say —
anybody. that was an un-indicted cq.
conspirator “would then be immedi-
ately put on leave ,

HP. It would . . .

P. Get my point?

“HP.That's right.- -0 - -

P. That’s what Tl tel]’ them I wil
do. Now the other thing T want to tell
you - thought that — ang I say this
strongly — I pave thought about it
a l_ot — I dom’t care what you do
QN.Immunity to Strachan. or-any other
‘secopd;people-_ but you ean’t give im.
munity to.any top:people — not Dean
—— needless-to say you don’t want to
to Haldeman or Ehrlichman. Dean is

€ counsel to the President — after
t;hg -flap: Wwith Gray -— 1 went over
this with Rogers — he says — after

Yyour flap on the Gray thing and the
rest — it would like that you’re . . .

"HP. Right—yoy know why I asked—
. P. T just . want you to know that
if you give immunity but will have
to talk (inaudible). - -

HP. OK;" well, let me put it this
way, I will' riot do that without your
knowledge. If it ‘18" necessary for me
to. do that ‘T  will come to you first
and then weé' can reach an agreement
that yes'you will have to disavow it
and that was the decision of the
brosecutor. I don’t want to make that
“decision, Mr. President, I don’ ‘want
to immunize John Dean; T think ‘he
is too’high in theé echelon but — it’s
4 o B
~_P. The prosecutor’s got the right to
make that decision? Ly s e

... HP. Yes, sir — i
. & You better, Ithink.., '
“HP. ... The point’ of it.is, .if it

-Gomes to a question of —

- P..I think it would — look — bhe-
_cause your. . close ‘relationship with
Dean — which: has been ‘very close —
it would look like a straight deal —
ANow .that’s just the. way you've got
to figure it. B .

HP. That’s right. e

-- -P. The proseeutor has.gto to kmow—1
can say as far as the-President I'm
concerned if John Dean ‘gets: (inaudi-
ble) then I don’t care:— -but Ehrlich-
man, Haldeman- and aH-the rest (in-

-audible) why the hell did we give him

immunization-and not the poor damn
Cubans? It just doesn’t ‘sqund: right.

- ‘HP: Right: -

“P. 1t doesn’t: sound right — it jspt
going, to ‘sound .good “for you — bpe-
cause of your relationship < it isn’t

:going to sound good f_plf . the" Presi-

dent. . _ : :
*"HP. Ah, well 'T hope we don’t have
to do that — I would rather have a
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Dlea . to..a lesser.offense: by Dean. I
think too that it’s going to look awful.
_We are in no disagreement on that at
all. gt 7
. P. It would look awful, it really
would, particularly .. - : :
HP. The thing that scares the hell
out of me is this suppose Dean is
the only key to Haldeman and Ehrlich-
‘man’and the refusal to immimize Dean
means that Haldeman’ and Ehrlichman
g0 free. That is the decision that we
are going to ultimately come down to.
P. -Well ‘you will have to come ‘into
me Wwith what you've got (inaudible)
then there. . .. Y s
CHP. Twily v e 2
" P And'let ‘me handle Haldeman and
Ehrlichman. *~- =~ ~ - 00
S HP, Tl e e
P. Do you get my point?
HP. Yes, sir. | -t 0
_ P.If it comes down to that — I may

-have to meve o

‘Ehrlichman — then “fop .y0
come to me and say‘look hére’s what
— look I not going to do ‘anything
to’-Hzdldeman and Ehrlichman just
because’ of “‘what Dean says — I can’t
do tRat. It's"got to be corroborated,

- _HP. T agree with'that.

“'P."Do 'you agree with that?.

HP. Yo' #ir —% am not going to do
anything with those two unless it is
corroborated” either.
P/ Deéanis —1 find, has told two or
three different stories. I didn’t realize
it unti] latély. 1 guess when-a guy is
scared he doesn’t—  ° S

HP. He is a man under great pres-
P.‘Sure, T feel for the poor —
HP. So do, I. He took a lot —. he

P. He is a fine Jawyer. *

HP. A thirty -four year old man with
a’ bright future— S
- P. Sure, he’s worked his — and (in-
audible) everything — I understand it,
but'I ‘eannot, for example, in good
conscience and, you cant in good
conscience say that you are going to
send Haldeman and Ehrlichman — or

‘Haldeman — yes, sir.

‘Ehrlichman fo6r that?

n Haldeman and -

anybody for that matter — or Colson
— down the tube on the uncorrobora-
ted evidence of John Dean. You see —
so basically what your problem is and
the problem of the prosecutors is to
find ‘some cotrobration for Dean.
HP. Precisely right. _
"P. If you come in to me with Dean
Plus corroboration and you tell me
that — then we have a difficult décis-
ion on ‘whether or not we want to
immunize ‘him — = s
HP. That thé importance ... - -
P. . .. or whether we have these
fellows just leave. . :
HP. 'That is 'the importance of
Strachan. -~ . ° _ E
P. It may be that in that instance —
you see that is the other point — of
course with Strachan _you’re (inaudi-
ble). Another way you can handle
that — it occurs to me — is that
Haldeman ‘and Ehrlichman — well
let’s take one, let’s take Haldeman, for
example, no — Ehrlichman — Ehrlich-
mah is the best ‘case — or Colson even,
because ‘théy seem to ‘be more tan-
gential than Haldeman, right? .
" HP. Both- are more ‘tangential than

P. Right, let’s take Ehrlichman —
let’s say that the only testimony we
‘have is sorhéthing about' (inaudihle)

+— and sb for and so on — something
about that Dedn is* supposed to Have-

told him about- the' Liddy operation
or something in Mar¢h. All right so is
he a co<onspirator? ‘Let’s suppose you

-cannot get anybody to corroborate that

—all right, ‘then ‘the question is, how-
ever, then that is one thing..If on the

“other ‘hand - you wouldn’t * sack

HP. Mr. President, T wouldn’t pro-

secute 'Ehrlichman * for -that.
P. But you might sack him?
HP. Yes sir. B

i P.. Now' the second ‘Point’ is, let us
SUPPOSET, o iio R
* "HP.'I mean'if we were a junior part-

ner in the Petersen-Nixon law firm
out in Oskosh, I ‘woald not. But as
senior-advisor to the President of the
United States I would. That is the dif.
ference. - - ‘ R o

P. Yeah. Now you come to the other

peint. Suppdse you have Dean in a
Position of where he makes this charge
against ‘Ehrlichman — no, what. I am
getting at — no, no, no my point ig

where you come ‘in and say look I’ve

.got this charge — wait a minute this is

unsubstantiated — but let us sup-
Pose you have witnesses who give test-
imony — and credible witnesses who
give testimony — and- credible wit.
nesses —. the ‘other- way? Then what
would. you do, with Ehrlichman on
that? You have heard — Colson ap-
parently for example is supposed to
know: about that — and who else was
there when they talked about the,
the,-ah?.‘: I ;o
.. HP? Clemency? £
.- P, What? Pat-Gray oh talked—

HP. About — Pat Gray?
- P. Leaving ‘the country and all -that

business —. Colson?
- HP: Liddy — .- -
P. Was Liddy there? . .
HP. Liddy gets his instruetions from
Dean. - % s -
P: Yeah, all right, so Dean . . .
- HP. :Liddy passes- the information on
toHunt. - - - N
». P. Dean. B
HP. Hunt fells us in the grand jury
that Liddy said his principals said that
‘1 should do.this. - - -
P. Yeah. SR S e Sl
HP. Hunt doesn’t know who the prin-
cipals are —

P. Right — - _

~HP. ... He says at this stage of the
proceeding. Even if he does know: —

.P; Right — £

HP. He knows only by hearsay—

-P. Right— ,

HP. ... and probably not going to
be admissible. ’

- :P. This is where you're going to get
the corroboration. .

HP. I am not sure that we are. I am
not sure that we are.

‘P. Sée' that’s where you give me the
tough problem. But on the other hand
it seems to me that on that basis the
better way to handle it is for you to
rather than immunizing Dean — you see
if you immunize him for something that
can’t be corroborated, it’s a straight deal
between — you know what I mean. Well,
I can see Mitchell saying — Well John

~Dean” was talking’ too much to Henry
Petersen, and Petersen did this and
.Dean: pulled the plug on him and he
<had :no time to lie. You know? '

HP..It’s possible.

P. And it’s-a bad rap, but ah, I'm

(inaudible), . - - - :
- - HP, But we-are not going to do that,
‘Mr. President — :we are going to have
-+ .. will have corroborative witnesses
-all along the line - - - .

P. Yes, sure — . - -

- HP. But I see the problem and I feel
— I think.we are looking at it a little
‘bit differently. - : . : :
.. P.Sure. .. . . At

HP. And-I see-the problem in two
dimensions . and, of course, I see it in
this. respect .as. a neophite. Obviously
you and Bill Rogers are much more ex-
.perienced in these affairs than I, but
maybe.because I am -a‘neophite and one

-of the public. I see it perhaps more
clearly. — at least- from a different
.boint of view. It seems to me —
-+ P. It’s the taint — ... T s

HP. That it’s just the things that they
have done impairs’ you. . |,

P. I understand. Understand and I
dgree with you on'that. My point though
now-‘is a different one — it the ques-
tion of the immunity. That worries hell
outof me.” R 7 o

HP. Well that —

.P. The .immunity worries me for the
reason that it just is . .. I don’t think
it’s good to give it. I don’t think in view



of the fact that we had this hel ot a
flap—you know that is the reason Gray
wasn’t eonfirmed — because of Dean. i

HP. Well, Mr. President, ‘ \

P. We go in and give it . ..

HP. If I could only put your mind at
ease — I have been arguing with those
prosecutors for three: days on this
issue — ;

P. I think you’ve got to understand,
I am not saying this because of Halde-
man -— I am not suggesting this about
Strachan or.asecretary or anybody else
— no immunity all the way down the
line, but it occurred to me that ‘parti-
cularly in talking to Rogers said how
in -the hell can they give John Dean
immunity after he’s the guy that sunk
Pat Gray. )

" HP. Well if I sound like a devil’s ad-
vocate — I am. I have been saying the
same to the prosecutors — how in the
hell can I immunize John Dean?

P. That’s the point. Well, I feel it .

-strengly — I mean — just understand
I am not trying to protect anybody —
I want the damn facts if you can get
the facts from Dean and I don’t care
whether — B :
"~ HP. Mr. President, if I thought you
were trying to protect somebody, I would
‘have walked out — )
"'P. If he doesn’t testify in open court
— or anything of that sort it doesn’t
make any difference — I am going to
match my decision on the basis of what
you can tell me Dean has told you and
— just a little feel of the whole thing.
But I've got to do it my way. )
HP. I know — No problem with that.
P. T've got- to get (inaudible) handle
on it so ‘what T am going to do is this
— when charges are made — if your
‘charge is made that’ certain co-conspira-
tors, and so forth and so on — out! —
even when they are unindicted — out,
‘out — so that takes care of that. But
that-is the time to do it, and I. am

going to say that — oh, I am not going
to use your technical terms— .

HP. Well that is understandable.

P. But T am just going to indicate
‘that there must be cooperation, that

if there is any evidence to 1ndict any-
body on...

_'HP. Let me ask you this, Mr. Presi-
‘dent, what would you do if we filed

indictment against ‘Magruder, hypo-
thetically, and — .,

P. Yeah — Magruder or Dean?

HP. Magruder — ,

P, Magruder — oh you have indicted
him. =

HP. To which he is going to plead,
and we named’as unindicted co-conspi-

‘rators ‘eéverybody but Haldeman and
‘Ehrlichman -— neéver mind that the

variation improves between them for
the moment"
P. That you would name Colson
for example? S ’
HP. Well I don’t know about Colson
— Colson is again peripheral, but

Mitchell, Larue, Mardiah — what-have-
you... - o S Ra
- P.Colson :was .a- big fish in my

opinion.
- HP.-Yeah, and a-— . ‘
P. Would you name Dean for exam-
ple? . .. - i
. HP. Oh yes.
P. Oh yes he was —
H. And we name all of those people,

‘We leave out- Haldeman and Ehrlich.

man. Now one .of -the things we had
thought about —
P. I get your point —

HP. Leaving them out was to give
you time and room to maneuver with
respect to the two of them.

P. Let me ask you — can I ask you
— talking in the President’s office —

HP. Yes sir.

(Sets up appointment — had to take
time out to sign some papers)

P. You see we’ve got to run the
‘government too (inaudible).

P. You 'mean if Haldeman and
‘Ehrlichman leave “you will not indict
‘them?-

HP. No sir, I didn’t say that.

P. That” would be a strange (in-
audible). - [

HP. No — it was not a question of
that — it was a question of whether
or not they were publicly identified
in-that pleading at that time.

P. Yeah.

HP. And, well, for example, as a
scenario” ‘— that comes out and you
-say — :

P. (inaudible) ‘
HP. This is a schocking relevation —
P. Yeah. i

HP. As a consequence of that I have

consulted-and I have just decided to
clear out everybody here who might
have had —-and as a consequence Mr.
Ebrlichman and Mr. Haldeman are
going. Thereafter, we would proceed
with the evidence wherever it took
us. That.is what we were thinking
about to be perfectly honest with you.
.. P. Well you really ought to include
them (inaudible) if you include the

others.

"HP. Well — .

P. Oh, you don’t want names in the
indictment of Magruder.

. HP. That’s right — unless we were
able to go forward. Well, T don’t want
to belabor the point — I have made
it clear that my view that I think they

have made you very . vulnerable, I
think they have made you wittingly
.or unwittingly very very vulnerable
to rather severe criticism because of
their actions. At least in public forums
they eroded confidence in the office of
the presidency by their actions. Well.
you know it, I don’t have to belabor
it here — I .

- P. Well, let’s begin with this proposi-
tion. Let’s not get in the wicket where
we’ve got Dean in an immunity posi-
tion. He’ll.talk. He'll talk. .
“"HP. Well that’s another thing. Have
you decided to accept Dean’s resigna-
tion? [

P. No, I have decided T have to treat
them all the same. ‘

"HP. T was going to say that would
be terrible the effect is he would be
out talking to the press immediately.

P. Oh no, no, no — T tolg Dean I
was going to handle them all the same
(inandible) — no that would be unfair.

HP. I agree. .

P, Absolutely.

HP. I agree. I .

P. No, no, I talked to Dean about
it — he said well he would do it if
they did it too. He would like to do it
if they did too, and I said well are not
going to do it on a conditional basis
— I said stay on until we see what
happens. No, I am not going to con-
demn. Dean until he has a chance to
bresent himself. No he is in exactly
the same position they are in

HP. Alright, Ok, R .

" P. You see that’s the, point: See I
put all three in the same bag. %

HP. Very good. . AN

P. How does that sound to you? Do
you see what I mean?

HP. Yes, indeed—

P. So they have the same rule and
if Strachan comes in, I am not going
to throw Strachan out simply because
he’s been.down before the grand jury.

HP. No—TI agree with that, ¢

P..If you put his hame in that in-
dictment, I'm going to throw him out.
. HP. Well you know Strachan right
at this point is. debating whether he

-wants to be a potential defendant or a
. witness. 5

P. Youve got him down there now
haven’t you?

HP. Well, he’s not down there now

~—his lawyer called around noon time

and we told him go back -and talk to
your client and let ys know one way
or another. : 2

. P. Right. (pause) oh you mean you're

‘not covering the immunity thing there?
-. -HP. No—but we have to distinguish

between variations of immunity.
P. ‘What?
HP. In all pro‘babilit_y there is not



enough -evidence to implicate Strachan
as a—

P. Principal—

HP. Principal. There may be some
evidence to reflect some degree of cul-

‘pability, but he is at least at this point
in our judgment a fringe character.
The type of person where we would
not have to formally immunize him—
we would say look— 3

P. Yeah. "

HP. You are a witness rather than
a defendant—tell us what you know.

P. What you mean—you are telling
~him you will not prosecute him? .

HP. That’s right but it is distin-
guished from formal immunity which
‘requires— )

~P. Oh, I see.

HP. A filing in court.

P. What you say—look we are having
you here as a witness and we want
.you, to talk. By

HP. That is described. as immunity
by estoppel.

P. T see, I see—that’s fair enough.

“HP. That is really the prosecutor’s
bargain. .

P. That is much better basically
than immunity—Ilet me say I am not,
I guess my point on Dean is a matter
of principle it is a question of the fact
that I-am not trying to do Dean in—I
would like to see him save himself
but I think find a way to do it without
—if you go the immunity route I think
we are going to catch holy hell for it.

HP. Scares hell out of me.

P. Rogers says (expletive removed)
he says “tell Petersen (expletive re-
‘moved) if you give them immunity

here—he sees (inaudible) the Gray
thing and all the rest—Dean is.” What-
ever area we think Dean is in, in the
public mind, he is a big shot. Ervin
“thinks he -is a big shot, the whole
Senate: Judiciary Committee—Dearn is
the guy that the whole executive priv-
ilege thing is about. So we .give him
immunity? I hadn’t thought about it
when you first talked about it.-

HP. Sounds . .. ) )

See TEXT, A21, Col. 1

TEXT, From A20 ~

. P. But you must have thought about
it. : ‘

HP. I have—indeed. It is the tough-
est decision I have facing me.

P. Well what the hell—he can talk
without any immunity can’t he? Oh I
guess if he is a defendant he wouldn't
talk to you. o

HP. That’s right. 3

P. (inaudible) of course he wouldn’t
(inaudible). Is that your problem?

HP. You know if I get — yes — of
course even if I come up with a lesser
charge that damn Sirica is just liable
to blast hell out of all of us to prevent
him to plead even to a lesser charge.
The ideal position would be the same
as Magruder you plead to one count
felony indictment—take your chances.

r. ‘I'nat 1s what Magruder agreed to
plead to?

HP. That’s right. .
P. To one count felony indictment.

HP. And that’s what we are trying
to work out with Dean and that’s
where the . . . .

P. (inaudible)

HP. Five years—max. .

P. Five years—out in two years?

HP. Probably '

P. That’s the way it works, isn't it?

HP. Yes sir. ' 5 .

P. Dean’s lawyers say (inaudible)

HP. Dean’s lawyers say we will try
this whole damn administration. *

P. Huh?

HP. They say we’ll try this whole
administration.

P. Yeah, I know. I heard that. So
that puts you in a hard spot.

HP. That’s right. I don’t know, I am
just aghast at the whole damn thing
and you must be too. Because I see
no rhyme, reason—

P. Slightly—

HP. Anything to . . .

P. Yeah—for all this treatment—for
this?

HP. And you know, I look at John
Mitchell and I have admired him—
and— '

P. Yeah—I know—good man.

H.P. And I'm just shocked. '

P. But what happened we know is
this: these jackasses got off... see
this Liddy is crazy and Hunt and the
‘whole bunch conducted this (inaud-
ible) Mitchell wasn’t minding the
store and Magruder is a ‘weak fellow
—and the damn thing—and then after-
wards they compounded it by what
happened afterwards.

H.P. That’s right.

P. They were caught in it and they -

said—Oh we can’t—and basically they
were trying to protect Mitchell—Let’s
face it. You know that.
. H.P. Well, you know Larue broke
down and cried like a baby yesterday.
P. He did? That’s too bad.
H.P. He was not so bad on admitting
the obstruction of justice and subor-

‘nation .Resigned, said he’d probably

plead—said he didn’t even think it
worthwhile to bring a lawyer with
him—ah— ) '
P. He had (inaudible)
H.P. Not- fully—hé broke down but

when it came to testifying about John -
Mitchell he just broke down and start-

ed to cry. It'is a terrible thing. ..
P. (inaudible) As we all do, hut we
are going to do the right thing. Don’t
you worry about that. I am just trying
to do the right thing in the way that
is...
H.P. Mr. President, if T didn’t have
confidence in you—I wouldn’t be here.
P. Yeah— : :
H.P. You know—
P. Yeah.
P. Did we do any good on the Liddy

call?

H.P. I don’t know—Maroulis—
P. (audible)
HP. His lawyer, flew down—P., (in-

audible).

H.P. And we had Liddy brought
over to a cell block of D.C. Court and
‘made him available—and that was
yesterday and. of course I am sure
Liddy is thinking it over—but—we’ll
see. That man is a mental case...
(inaudible) .

HP. T guess Bill Rogers was shocked
too? (pause) God almighty.

P. Bill — I think everybody is
shocked, but we are in it. So what do
.you do? In this thing—in these things—
you’ve got them, you handle thém and
g0 on to something else—that’s what
we are going to do.

H.P. Damn, I admire your strength.

I tell you.

P. Well, that’s what we are here
for. -
HP. Well T know bzut I’ve been
around government long enough . . .

P. Frankly the Dean thing troubles
the hell out of me—I would like in
one sense I would like to see the
poor bastard you know, out of it and
in another sense I think the immunity
thing scares me to death. .

H.P. Well it does me too. T agree.

P. How shall we leave that? You
will go back and—you haven’t made
a decision then?

HP. Well were still negotiating.

P. You are going to try to see if
you can get it another way—

H.P. That’s right—that solves th
problem for me—and if . . . ’

P. But you may not be able to and
then we will have to get Dean. He
is the only one, so—otherwise you go
the other way. )

H.P. Yeah. Incidentally, I talked
with Pat Gray again— : )

P. Yeah— . o

H.P. I went back again today— A

P. Do you think you can put that
piece together? y

HP. Yes sir—I'll tell you what
happened. He said he met with Ehr-
lichman—in Ehrlichman’s office—
Dean was there and they told him
they had some stuff in Hunt‘s office
that was utterly unrelated to the
Watergate case .They gave him two
manila- envelopes that were sealed.
He took them. He say, they said get
rid of them. Dean doesn’t say that.
Dean says I didn’t want to get rid of
them so I gave them to Gray. But in
any event, Gray took them back, and
I'said Pat where are they ,and he said
I burned them. And I said—

P. He burned them?

H.P. I said that’s terrible.

P. Unrelated—only thing he can say
was—he did it because it was political
stuff I suppose?

H.P. Well, you know ,the cynics are
not going to believe it was unrelated.

P. Oh yes of course.

H.P. I said, did you read it?



‘P. Who handed it to him, Dean?
Who knows:the contents?

H.P. Dean and Ehrlichmah. Dean—
Gray says ‘he never Iooked at 1t——
never read it:. ..

P. Did Dean?—Did we ask Dean
what the contents were?

H.P. T didn’t ask Dean because he
said it was— . ,

P. Did anybody?

"HP. Not.at this pomt We’ll have
get to that obviously.-.

P. Sure. Dumb damp thing to do

HP. T thlnk 1t 1s 1ncred1b1e ang I
just —. 7

bl e)
HP I sald Pat why dld you do it
“P.i Pat’ § nalve

HP He d e well I surxpose be-
cause T took.them at theu' word. .

(Apparently someone brought 1n a
statement) '

B (mauchble) oh thls is a (1naud1—
ble) Senate select committee. Let me
read it to you-if you ean (inaudible)
it for me a little.- “For -several weeks
Senator Ervin and Senator Bakei and
their -counsel . have:'been in contact
‘with White House- representatives, Mr.
Ehrlichman and . Mr. Garment. They
have been talking about’ ground rules
to preserve the separation: of powers
without stressing facts, .I believe that
-the committee ground rules that have
been adopted totally preserve the doc-
trine. They provided the . . . ap-
pearance by a witness mnamed — in the
first instance to be in executive ses-
sion if appropriate. Second, the ex-
ecutive privilege would be expressly
preserved (inaudible) - proceeding
would be televised (inaudible) . .
that ‘has never been a central issue
especially  since the separation of
powers problem is otherwise solved.”
(inaudible) does that sound -right to
you?

HP. Yes sir.

P. Forthcoming and so forth, and
so forth? All White House staff will

President: (Expletive de-
leted) You’ve got to believe
me. I am after the truth, even
if it hurts me. But believe -
me, it won’t. -

Peterson: I understand
that, you see. But you know

e o o

'Plresident- Just like to
won’t hurt you. We are "do-
-mg our. ]ob

P Why dldn’t he Just put 1t (maudl '

appear and testify under oath and :(in-
audible) all proper questions fully as
far as I am :concerned.

Second announcement “When the
Watergate ‘case (inaudiblz) several
weeks ago,'I began to look into this
matter as a result of ‘printed stories
in the press and private information
which had come to me — pnvate in-
formation? -

HP. I don’t think that ought to be
there. ;

P. Basically it was the Larue t!hang
—not the Larue—but the MecCord
thing that really set my invest . . .
that is when I started to work with
my .

HP I don’t see how you can say
private information that came to you
without—

P. Yeah— E

HP. Almost becommg personally
involved —; at least as a result of a
witness .

P. As a result of some very serious
charges that were —

-HP. Yes, I think that has to be modi-

fied. (noise of paper being moved
around — - obviously the President
was working on the statement) .

P. We could say that I — what was
the term we_ used?. This says real pro-
gress has been-made — that isn’t very
good — what is the term that we
wanted to say about signlfrcant deve-
lopment? :

HP. Slgmflcant development is a
term—

P. Any person in- the Executive
Branch wha . is indicted by the grand
jury my pohcy would be to im-
mediately suspend him. If he is con-
victed he would. be automatically dis-

charged. No -person in past or present -

positions of 1mportance can (inaudi-
ble) the prosecutmn Yo

HP. I don’t think you ougn}z L say
that Mr. President. I mean;< T think
that is fine for you and I to .shax_te your
concerns on that, but to staff that
publicly seems to me will have ten-
dency to prevert people from coming
in. In effect, we will be right back
to where we were without the im-
munity -statute where the ° Fifth
Amendment is a complete bar, Now
even if we never utilize immunity
the fact that it is there and can. be
used: to strip them of the Fifth Amend-
ment rights is a terrible important
tactic to have available. That phrase
in there . takes that tactic away from
us.

P. The Tactlc of" v

HP. Of immunity— .

P. This doesn’t refer to, . ..

. HP. For example, we might want to
immunize Strachman—

P. Well no, no— -

HP. Well then .you get into a ques-
tion of who is a person of importance
—Washington Post may very well
think that Strachan is a person of
importance. Anybody who works at
the White House is a person of im-

portance as distinguished from —
minor underlings so far as you are
concened.

P. Should we say major government
employees? Government empolyees
holding major positions — how is
that?

HP. I would perfer that we not say
it. :
P. Well T am just trying to cover
my tracks on the Dean thxng — that
is all.

HP. Yes.

P. And if he is — then that ig the
U. s. Attorneys‘ job —

HP But that is-a sophisticated point
lsn’t it?

P. Yeah. Sure, we could say that
Dean was let off° .000h—

HP. Oh, it is-a sophisticated point
after the fact but at this point in time
in conjunction with this statemen it is
going to take a rather astute reporter
to raise it. Is.immunity gomg to be
utilized? — the questions is easily de-
fended — you know — that is a pro-
secutorial.tactic and.that will be
handled ; by the prosecutors if and
when it is necessary

P. Righf.: " - TG g

. HP. You could say I wmﬂd hope —

P Yeah——

HP. That o 51gm
would be 1mmumzed }: =

P. I express my — :l.want to put
something'— many of you know — I
would hope — what could -I say? I
‘would hope any major — any official
holding a major position, ah— .

HP. I have expréssed my concern —

<P, My — I express 'my view -

-HP. To the Departiment of Justice —

P To the Department- of Justice
-that no person, that it is my expressed
view .to the department that ne per-
sons should be immunized. -

HP. No. — that is- too strong
- P. Huh?. . q.

:~HP. That is/too strong That’s a
double entendre.if you like —

P. Alright. — what would you say

t:‘ ﬁgures

. then"

" HP. In effect that says that you
are taking away a prosecutorlal tool
from them.

P. I express my view to the appro-
priate authorities — shall .we sgay —

HP. That would weaken it.

P. To the appropnate author1t1es
that I do not favor —

HP. I have expressed my hope to
the appropriate author1t1es that it
would not be necessary to immunize
any major official in order to develop
a prosecutable case.

P. Ok — I've got it Henry——other-
wise it is nothing new — (1naudLble)
through the appropriate ways — that
all White House especially are ex-
pected to cooperate fully — we said
that' — with the U.S. Department—

HP. With the. prosecutmn teamy

" P. With the prosecution.—.

HP. With the prosecution’ team. . It
says I have (inaudible) .an .ocecasion



to attempt to pass the word to. others
who might be able ‘to. help -to (in-
audible) cooperation.. I dpn’t that
means anything— i .
- HP. I don’t think that means any-
thing and I think it says too much.

P. Yes. .

P. Yeah — well what you are in
effect saying to me — as I say — I
want to be very clear on the Halde-
man-Ehrlichman thing. That if "they
were left out -of the non-indictagle
list it gives me a little running room.
I want to be very clear — that under-
stood? = . L o
. "HP. That’s right, that’s ‘right:

P. It doesn’t mean that they aren’t
eventually” be indicted if you get the
facts. .

" HP. That's right. e SR

P.'But it does“mean that ‘they have..
an oppor <— they aren’t canned as a
result of the fact — that is what we
are really getting down to isn’t it —
you would have to piut Dean on that
list wouldn’t you? .

. HP. Yes sir. )

. P. T guess you would have to with
everything with him because basically
Magruder is going to name him —

. HP. That’s right.

P. Hmm. _

HP. And, if we get down to . . .

P. Magruder is not naming Haldg-
man and Ehrlichman though. That is
‘the problem is it? C
- HP. Yes but he does — but not in
firsthand sense— )

" P. Only by hearsay—

. HP. But you see — if he makes that
statement in open court — :

P. Yeah, I get.it —

HP. It seems to me it makes your
practical difficulties just as severe as
if we had named him in the first place.

P. Well I'am glad to get this kind
of stuff so I get a clear view of every-
thing — what the options.are —

HP. And if we frankly — if we think
that Sirica is going to elicit that kind
" of statement we will include him in the
charge to the extent that we can.

P. Yeah — sure you don’t want to . ..

"HP. Subject .only to the fact that
we can corroborate it later on. -

P. Timing now. What about Magru-
der — you don’t expect him tomor-
row? 5
HP. Well I told them . . . probably
not today, but I guarantee you at
least twelve hours notice.

P. Can you give me that much?

HP. I will guarantee you that. I will
hold it up to make certain you get it.

P. Yeah. The only — yeah. On the
other hand I suppose you sh_ould say
(inaudible) story — it got a hell of a
big play. . £

H.P.Ididn’t seeit. - . :

P. And other stories that are not
so likely (inaudible) could, could—
everything is likely to _blow around
here. But at least you .give me the—
there is nothing in this that we 1rr1ta):e
the .fact that do we (inaudible) till

-down there in that court we know
this damn (inaudible),

H.P. That’s right—

P. So basically we are in a pretty
good-position to say that except as I
said I don’t want The Washington
Post to break this case. b )

H.P. That’s right.:We don't either.

P. I want the Department of Justice
—and, frankly, the White House—be-
cause as you can see we’ll cooperate—
* (inaudible). )

P. Ok—I can see what you mean.

You would anticipate then that if

you didn’t include Haldeman and Ehr-
lichman in your general thing that
Sirica will question the defendant
Magruder—and he then will bring
in—

“"H.P. If he brings that out—if we
thing that is a real possibility then
we will have to decide whether or
not as a matter of conscience and
professional ethics we.can put them
in. If we can answer that yes—then
we will put them in. If on the other
hand, we think there is no basis for
it even if Sirica does bring out the

hearsay—we will just have to take -

the knuckle for it. I

P. Sure—which is basically what
Sirica wants. Colson I think we should
know about him too. I

| HP. Well— | Ny
. P. Not yet, Huh? ..- - .. o
'H.P. Well, Bittman went to Colson
to urge leniency—Colson then got.in
gouch with Ehrlichman and Dean.
Ehrlichman is alleged to have said—
. Make no‘bornmi'tments—" - %2
H.P. We’ll do the best Wwe ean—make
no commitments. Then' thereafter you
know' apparently money flows—or so
we are told-—whether there is any’

relevancy- or relationship remains to'

be determined. " Co

P. What did Bittman want?

H.P, Well' apparently the funds, but
that remains to be developed—ah,
Dorothy Hunt ias,. according to Me-
Cord, the intermediary 'the. leniency
thing (inaudible) i

P. Right.

HP. And another, ‘intermediary ' was
Larue and Larue used the “alias ‘of
Baker—two aliases—one “was Baker
and I have forgotten the other one,
for the transmittal of money. One of
the things that concerns me in this
area and you kitow again-an area in
which I may have made a mistake
earlier in the game was. with respect
to Kalmbach. Now I understand he
is your personal lawyer—is that a fact?

P. Yes, yes — very capable guy. (in-
audible)—as T understand—they called
and said raise some money for the (in-
audible) and so forth. I am sure he
was no damn co-conspirator. (inaudi-
ble) after the campaign, 3 .

H.. Here’s one thing—in. the earlier
stages of the proceedings when they
had Segretti in the grand jury—

P. Yeah—

HP. I told Silbert—now—damn 1T
Silbert keep your eye on the mark—
we are investigating Watergate—we
are not investigating the whole damn
realm of politics and I don’t want you
questioning him about the President’s
lawyer., : _

P. Right— c :

H.P. Well, he didn’t. Well now
Kalmach comes up you heard on the
news I am sure today—he apparently
is going to be called by the Senate
committee—but he also comes up in
this investigation with respect to acty-
ally Kalmach raising ‘money—or pas-
sing on money at Mitchell’s direction
for the co-conspirators—so "we are
going— K

P. Sure— ) .

HP. To have Kalmach back ‘into
the grand jury. -

P. Well in ‘that inétance, T suppose
there you’ve got to prove what he
thought he was raising it for.

H.P. Well, even .if he didn’t know

-or he was misled—the fact that he—

P. (inaudible) . .

-‘H.P. Did at the time We may very
well end up with him being a witnes.

P. Damn Right—oh I know that. I
would seriously—I mean. And again
on that particular count—I guess you
were the one, I think who said the
question is motive—what they raised
the money for. . :

H.P. That’s right—

P. If you are trying to. help them
out with their defense that is one*
thing—but if you are helping them

.out to keep them quiet that is a hell
of (inaudible)—that is an obstruction

job.
HP.. That’s right—you know if you
are acting out of Christian charity—
P. Right-—
HP. That is fine. - .
P. That would be Mitchell’s defense

‘on that..

~ HP. Of course all the inferences run
the other way and that'is a hell of a

-defense to have to put 1o the jury.

P. Well 1 guess you have given me
enough to chew on here—whether 1
get something out today and well
know how—about it tonight—TI'll see
—I may have a little bit of time. You
don’t think that you are going to in-
dict sometime today.

HP. I will be glad to give you twelve
hours notice. Nothing is going to hap-
ben -today I am certain—even if we
get an agreement today—you know
I can still hold it off a day.

‘P. Yeah—you might hold it off even
tomorrow, huh? )

HP. That’s right. If we have to. go
see Ervin and Sirica—both of them
—it -may very well take a full day
before we. can get hoth things accom-
plished. = .~ ’ )

P. T'ver got to -accept a ‘big huge
schedule: tomonowfenergy message,
and so forth, and so forth; and I don’t
want-to tell' you to“hold:it off except
apparently it is going to take you
some time anyway—I mean there is
always "2’ chance of leak—Ileaks aren’t



going to mean: much—

HP. There are so many I's to dot
and T’s to ‘cross on- this' thing—when
you talk about holding off a day or
two it doesn’t make that much differ-
ence. . g :

P. Except leaks—What do you think
on (inaudible)?

HP. I think it is terribly important.

P. Get out. front? '

HP. For you to get out front on this
thing—irrespective of— -

P. Even with a statement like this
that doesn’t say much. Well cooperat-
ing with Ervin but that’s—

HP. It says that—that is significant
news. I think it is significant that it
reflects, that you are taking a personal
interest in it—I think it is significant
that you say there are significant de-
velopments which means you are per-
sonally informed and not only have
endorsed what the . prosecution is
doing. It certainly is not significant
in terms of evidentiary facts but we
are never going to be in a position to
do that anyway—unless the public ex-
posure in the court. You know there
is another dimension, Mr. President.
These. fellows Magruder, Dean have
talked to us — they’d be less than

White: House Pi‘_ess_ Secretdry Ronald Ziegler

hurmnan if they didn’t watch to see if
the system was surviving the test so
there is another reason  for their
delay. Conceivably they say well, this
may be too strong for the Department
of Justice or the President—or the
people at the White House—they're
not going to have the courage to face
up to this—let’s wait and.see what
happens. and if we don’t see  some

Rogers: Sirica was, he
tas suspicious there was a
cover-up. ©



President: That’s right.

Rogei‘s: He was trying to,
he was trying to put pressure
on the ones who knew so he
could— S

President: Not only to con-
fess about themselves, but
about other ones . . .

movement then our bargaining posi-
tion “will become_increasingly tougher
day by day by day.

P. Yeah. (inaudible)—keep in my
mind—(inaudible) get the damn thing
over with—and I know the trials of
Mitchell and all these people wﬂ_l take
a long time — (inaudible) — Mitchell
will never plead guilty, never. Fight
it all the way down the line. (Inaudi-
ble) What would you do if you were
Mitchell?

HP. I think I would probably go to
Saudi Arabia to tell you the truth.

P. Poison— ’ :

HP. When I think the former At-
torney General of the United States
being subject to criminal trial is just—

P. For obstruction of justice—not
the bugging—the obstruction of jus-
tice. : :

HP. It is just terrible.

P. Ok — Alright — thanks for your
help. T'll see if I can work something
out today and if I dom’t, maybe to-
morrow. We'll see about - it.

HP. Thank you. Have a good day.
Mr. President.

P. Yep—we’ll {ry.-
. [ X

Meeting between President Nixon,
H. R. Haldeman, Ronald Ziegler and
John ' Ehrlichman, Oval Office, April
17, 1973, from 3:50 p.m. to 4:35 p-m.

E. This is'John Ehrlichman for Bill
Timmons.

E. Ah, I'm in the President’s office
Bill, can you call—get the first page,
first two lines of the second page
(unintelligible). Pardon me? No, just
tell him that’s the statement. Bill, just
go ahead and do it. Thanks. o

P. I completed the round with Peter-
sen and he said he completely agreed
with me, that he’s been arguing ‘that
with the U.S. attorneys. He says the
problem — ' _ .

E. He’s in total control —

P. He said the problem is (unin-
telligibe). I said, “Well you're going to
corroborate it, aren’t you.” ‘“Yes, of
course.” But I put it bluntly. No in-
dividual — ‘

E. Ya, I just want to check. Are we
already to go?

P. I don’t know if I can really make
it. How late can I g0? About 4:30.
Ok. Don’t tell anybody. yet. Thank you.
I'll let you know. -

P. Quickly. The new evidence, new
leaks. First, I said, I said Rogers and
I talked about it and Rogers thought
it was totally wrong to immunize the
President’s counsel. Rogers did say.
that . However, I talked about the leaks
in the grand jury (unintelligible) Mitch.
ell Dean. I said I just want you to
know that you are vulnerable. He said,
“Well I never gave them substance, I
just gave them (unintelligible) on how
they did and so forth and so forth.”
He says, “After all, it's my respon-
sibility. But anyway, I don’t’ know. I
didn’t get far with that (unintelligible).
He talked to Pat Gray and Pat Gray
has now told him that he destroyed-the
packet. He just shakes his head. i

H. Why would Gray do that?

P. Gray was told it was political, wag
told to destroy. I don’t know Gray was
told it was material, actually nothing
to do with Watergate. He was told to
destroy it, but Petersen says that’s
that. Here’s. the situation, basically,
(unintelligible). They’re going to hauj

him to court, have him plead guilty,

put a statement out because Sirica

always questions. the witnesses who
plead guilty. They are going to make
it a broad as they can and as narrow
as they can at the same time. By being
as broad as they can, they are going to
say that he has named certain people
and they are going to name a group of
people that is non-indictable co-con-
spirators. They're going to include
everybody on that list. I said, “Is Dean
going to be on that list?” He said,

“Yes.” He said, “Frankly (unintel- .

ligible) not include Haldeman and
Ehrlichman,” which gives you ‘an
option.” I said, are you telling me

that if Haldeman ang Ehrlichman’

and Ehrlichman decide to take. leave,
that you will-not then—proceed ‘with
the prosecution. “No,” he said, “I don*
mean that.” He said, “What mean is
that they are not going to appear on
that list and that (unitelligible) grand

_Jury and make case there (unintel-

ligible). So there’s the —

E. Well, whether we take leave' or
not doesn’t effect the list that they
read off. -

P. Yes. Yes.

E.'Oh, it does? Yes. It does. They.
will put us on the list if we don’t,
take leave?

P. Yes, because otherwise, he says,
he says Sirica is going to question.
‘Magruder and he’s going to question
(unintelligible) and it appears (unin-
telligible). If he does that, then it will
appear that the Justice Department
again is covering up. Two questions:
one, should we go forward with an an-
nouncement today or not, or should —

See TEXT, A23, Col. 1

2 . - TEXT, From A21

E. Well, from your standpoint, you

gpu_s't. Even so. This thing will get
.away from you otherwise.
i, P. Well, the real question, I suppose,
.John is (unintelligible). I don’t think
/we can — here’s the whole point, in
(offect, — if the — your names will
‘probably be on the list. That’s what
/he's saying unless you decide not to,
'decide that your not (unintelligible).

H. It isn’t that (unintelligible), we .
shave to resign. The (unintelligible)
‘doesn’t aceomplish anything.

P. (Unintelligible) ~
- H. What does he mean from that?
I don’t ynderstand?

.. E. The guy to gain from that is

H. Ya, They'ré putting us in the
| 8ameé bag with him,
\.-E. Ya,
P. (unintelligible) he said Dean’s
lawyers say Dean is going to make a
ease against this administration. They
are going to try this adminstration.
That's what he said. So, I guess that's
where we stand with Dean.
- E. Well, it’s ag broad as it is long
s far as I'm concerned. If I'm to take
-leave — you think I should — that
.18 or has the same effect as being —
-, P. As resigning? (unintelligible) tak-
ing leave you couldn*t come back.
»+ . Ya, Tll never come back.
- . P. Of course not. I understand that,
'+ E. On the other hand, If I'm indicted
and take leave, and then I'm acquitted,
L could come back. But to take leave
and then not appear on the Magruder
.. list, it’s a confession.
- P. That's right. So I think their
" (ynintelligible) approach just doesn't
. work., , ‘
. H. Well, then you look worse by
that than you do the other way, You
1ook bétter te have us on the list,
than to have us take leave and then
not bé on the list.
E. Cause that looks like you're cover-
"ing up, that it haen’t come out.
P. I think so, too,
¢ ‘H. X we're going to be on the list,
Bo be it!
- P, That's right. I think you’re right.
H. I think we're in'a terrible —
these guys are working in a most
' ibloodthirsty way, They’ve lied to Stra-
‘chan. They've told him they had all
this stuff. They've not told him what
"*his rights are properly. I'm sure his
lawyer has gotten it straightened out,
-But it’s really something. . '
E. They’re trying to get him.
H. Trying to get him to take a' cop-
‘out and they won't make a deéal. They
told Strachan if he covered everything
that he had, everybody he knows, they
asuréd him they already had it any-
way — j .
. P. That’s a taetie. ‘
¢ "H. They said you, Strachan, have a
ehance of getting  out because you'll
become a witness and not a defendant,



“‘morning,

but they will not give him immunity,
P. That is imunity, however.
H. Well, unles — it keeps their
options open and his closed.
" P. Strachan is (unintelligible). |
H. (expletive removed), I hope so.
.And the (expletive removed) you know
“Strachan made that mistake on the
“350, called Silbert the next day and
““8aid, “T would like to cotrect that. I
made a mistake.” They said, “Fine,
come up in the morning and well
“ ‘gtraighten it out.” He wént up Monday
and they laughed at him
.and said ie're not going to put you
‘ibefare the grand jury. See that’s when

i.they kicked him around, yesterday

" morning. Then today when he went in
: they said, “We will not let you correct
' your statement on the 350, we’ve got
you on a perjury count.”
=+ P, That’s not true,
H. That’s what they told him,
¢+ - E. It certainly Is not fair.
i-H. Well, apparently by the law, ‘
P. I think under the law if you go
“, forth and volunteér something — -
H. But they wouldn’t let him go in,
so he didn’t volunteer, but he sure
did it constructively as far as —
-~ P.'Well, shall we get to work? Shall
I just go out and read it.
.- E. I think so. ’'m having Timmons
-+ Just read this first part to Ervin.
_P."All members of the White House

P. “As a result of serious charges
reported publicly — publicly reported
— “I began-inténsive new 'inquiries

. into this whole matter.” I think we

better get Petersen back in here.

E. Name him.

P. Ya. After all, this Kleindienst
@ing 1s very gereral (unintelligible)

E. “And Assistant Attorney General
Pétersen.”

P. “Assistant Atornéy Gensral Petst-

" gen have met to review the facts at
" length in my investigation and the

progress of the Department of Justice
investigation.” How's that? “I can
report today that there have been

major new developments in the case.”
Dislis Mhat cannd vidght?

E. How about Just saying, “Have

been major developments in the case

"onc_ex"ning which I should not be more
Specific now, except to say that real
progress has been made.”

P. “Major dévelopment in the case,
concerning which — specifie — which
would be improper for me to be more
Specifiec now except to say that real
progress has been made in getting to
the bottom.” What do you say, “in
getting to the bottom of this matter?”

E. “Has been made in expesing the
truth.”

P. “In finding the truth.”

Why don’t we just leave it “indieted”
and not indicate what charges are
made? Don’t you agree?

E. I think so. I think “indicted”’
ought to be the test.

P. “Indicted by the grand Jury.” My
policy would be, “if he is ‘conviéted,”
and then I would say, “if he is con-
victed, he woyld be automatically dis-
charged.” And then, the way I could
put it, “I expresed to the appropriate
authorities my view that no individual
holding a position of major impor-
tance should be given immunity from
prosecution. That means that no per-
son can expect” :

E. Yep, this is fine. _

P. I don’t think I want to say “lead
to believe.” Do we have to say that?

. E. No, I was just. trying to_get you
off the hook, and say, you know, well, -
this—how about going on with the
next ‘sentence?

P. “The judicial process is ‘moving
to get all the facts.” Or, “moving—" -

E. “Moving ahead as it should.” ,

P. “Moving ahead as it should. As I
have said before, all goverriment em-
ployees, especially members of the
White House staff, are to fully co-
operate with the grand jury.” Or do
we want to say “grand jury?” )

E. How about “fully cooperate” —

. All right,
. “In this whole matter” \
- Well, we've already said matter.,

. staff will appear (unintelligible) when
- réguésted by the committee and will
- testify under oath and answer all

.. proper — are you getting all this or

period.
‘P. “Fully cooperate in this investi.
gation.” “To tully cooperate with law

Y Y

-should I get a girl in? Well. enforcement authorities.” How's that?
-, 8ho get a girl in € » E. Ervin and Baker  are t of
v, B Voluntarily, when requested by loproD. Teport today that major pocket. o

_the committée — Ok. developments in the case, concerning P. I don’t want to use the next sen- .

_P. The hext part is what’Pm con- oacht would be improper to be more  ygis John. : '

"“cerned about. “I began new inquiries,” Specific now, except to say that real E. All right.

__shall we say?

E. Well, Idon't know. .

-~ P. “I began new inquitiés into this
.matter as a result of serious charges
.. Which were reported publicly and

. brivately.” Shoyld we say that?

" E.Publicly, “which in some <&ases

“'were reported publicly.”

" P. “Four weeks ago we,” why don’t
.. we say, shall we set. a date? That

~sounds a hell of a lot stronger if we

‘set a date. -

. E. All right. -
 P. “On_ Mareh 21, I began™ new
““inquiries,” strike that. “I ordered an

. investigation, new inquiries throughout
" the government —

““" 'E. How about saying, “On Match 21

28 a result of serious ‘charges which
“were reported publicly and —”

P. “Some of which were reported

publicly and ‘some of which were

“"'reported privately to me —»

E. “Some of which I subsequently —

7. P. “As a result of serious charges

-~ ré&ported publicly and privately” -

E. “Some of which were reported
~puyblicly” — and thenh not say about
the result of them. I —
P. In other words, “On March 21
+ -we started ah investigation becguse
“of the publie hearings.”
E. That’s right.

progress has been made in finding the
tmm")

P. “Real progress has been made in

finding the truth.” And then you go on ..

to the (unintelligible),
E. If you don’t mind.

P. I don’t want to put the lmmu‘nity: ‘

thing in: I don’t think there’s a hell of
a lot gained by saying it publicly.

E. Except— ) .

P. All right, “1¢ any person in the
Executive Branch is indicted by the
grand jury, my policy will be to im-
mediately suspend”—shall we (unin-
telligible) of what we know is going
to happen? Shoyld we say “indicted?”

P. Then I think the last sentence
should be—I think if he puts that in
there we're going to have ‘a hell of a
tough time. (unintelligible)

H. I think if he'l} cover the truth—

P. Yep. * v

H. That’s what he’s got to do. An-
swer their questions truthfully,

P. Why didn’t he say, “Syre I'll be
a witness.” . Why didn’t he just say
that, take their offer? Maybe that's:
what he said. “I'll take your offer.”

H. I think that’s what we want him

_to do.

P. I think what.you should do is
say, “I don’t have anythihg to hide.
I'll take your offer,” and just make -
the point. ‘

H. Given that offer, he doesn’t have
to volunteer anything. All he has to do
is answer their questions.

P. That’s right Bob, he shoyld just
take their offer. Believe me, we don’t
have to have (unintelligible). He isn’t
trying to hide anything.

H. I'd feel fine with his doing that,
cause—so heé says some things that are
damaging. They are only slightly dam-.
aging, and we've had plenty of dam-
aging things already. ;

vP. That’s right: Bob, just tell him to
take it. All right? Tell him to take it
but tell them the mere truth. Yoy see,



they think it is worse than 1t is. ‘They.
think he is covering up and they are
wrong. That’s what it really gets down
to.

H. They are trying to confuse him.
That’s what has him bothered. The
poor guy. What'’s really worried him is
that he’s covered everything with
Dean, every step of the way. Every-
thing he has done, he’s talked with
Dean aboyt it over the last year and
he’s scared to death Dean will make
up something or take something that
is partly right and twist it, which is
what Dean is doing, and hang him on
it. And I think what he’s got to do is
Just go with what he believes is cor-
rect and hang with it. ,

P. Don’t you think we are right (un-
intelligible) tell the the U.S. attorney,
“Fine, yeu want to- name Haldeman
and Ehrlichman. You just (unintelli-
gible) they put you on as unidictable
co-conspirators, Then they've. got a-
case to prove. Now they aren’t going
to do that unless they figure they can
prove the case, so that woild give then
the problem. I think his argument is,
and I must say, I don’t know what to
hell Petersen is up to (unintelligible) .

I think, on the other hand, it looks
like. Let’s look at that.

H. That makes his case for him.
That makes his case for him —

. P. Maybe you're right. I was going
to suggest that we could get back, call
yoy, and we get Rogers over here.
And I think in this instance, you and
Ehrlichman with Rogers can sit down
and talk about this? 2

H. I think so. Yes.

P. You don't have any other lawyer?

Would you kind getting him over at
5:00 P.M. . :

H, Wé’'re meeting with our lawyer
at 4:30 to 5:30, which is the only time
we could get him. Would you want me
to get him in at 5:30?

P. Sure, Bob, my time i your time,

H. Well, I don’t want to screw up
your time.

P. You’re not. ’

H. That was the only time he could
take us. He's taking time out of a
deposition. :

P. I understand, but hope he can
learn from it in that time.

H. Well, we’ll give him a quick f£ill
and get him started on it. That’s all
we can.do . now;:byt ‘we need to get
started on it.

P. I guess (unintelligible) may resign.

H. That would be a very foolish
thing for him to:do. -

P. Hmm? - :

H. That would be a very foolish thing

for him to do..

P. He didn't say that. But, I meant,
you know how. strongly he feels. He's
wrong. He’s wrong, Bob. Look the
point is, (unintelligible) throwing you
to the wolves with Dean. What does
that” accomplish? T don’t know. what
it accomplishes. Except the President

learns the facts and as a result of
learning the facts (unintelligible). I
say, “Fellas, you’ve been charged and
I know that Dean has made some
charges.” Right?

H. There’s another way you could
do it. John won’t buy this if T don’t,
I won't do it if John won’t.” We've got
to do it together. Either one of us
has to hang together playing this game.
But, maybe we request of you a leave
of absence on the basis of the infor-
mation you have, which we have, be-
cause we've ‘been involved in the
investigation too. Now if we’re going
to be on that list, we're going to have
to ask for a leave of absence anyway,
it he puts the list out, and has us on it.

P. It’s going to be out. And, I don’t
know that you'll be on it. That's the
point. We've got to see. Nevertheless,

"you will be called. But we've always
;alked about being called to the grand
ury.

P. That’s right, '
_H. And said that we would appear.
You made a statement weeks ago say-
ing that anybody in the White House
would welcome the opportunity to
testify before the grand jury. Ah Do

you automotically syspend any witness

whose called before a grand jury? Of
course not.
. P. Well, now, if you come on that
list, the only problem here is that
(unintelligible), ‘
E. Oops. . )
P. The problem we have here, John,

~as I was just saying (unintelligible)

Dean’s lawyers, are they going to
this ‘administration? g~ =

E, Believe me, everybody is going
to try this administration regardless
of what (unintelligible). Ervin’s going
to try this administratjon.

H. We went through your statement.
Why don’t we go to sée the lawyers?

- Why den’t we re-group at 5:30° and

decide then — -
E. You have the first page intact?
P. Did “she yse the speech type-
&li'iter? I don’t want to go through
S — :
E. Take this back and put it on the

Speech typewriter., She’s running it

off on thé typewriter now.

P. Well, maybe it’s too soon for
Rogers. Well, I guess we just let Dean
8o ahead and try the administration,

_._E. He’s goinig to his work anyway,
with or - without Immunity. Ervin is
going to get him up there if he has
immunity or not and will take him
over the jumps, What you've done
her_e is to lay a ground rule for Ervin
on immunity which is going to be very

- tough- for him to live with if there are

El.'vin hearings, But eventually there

- will be Ervin hearings. I don’t think

there mych (um'ntelligible) The more—
more —
P. There will be Ervin hearings, Bob.
E T}}e more battles the President
wins, like the economical stablization

pe;f_brmance,- the more urgent the
Ervin hearings become. It’s the only

thing they have left, now. You're win-
ning all the big ones.

H. We better leave now. It’s 4:30.

E. Yep, ya. .

H. If you want to see Bill at 5:00
p.m. ahead of us, we can join you at
3:30.

P. You may not be ready by then.

E. He cah stay only an hour.

P. Fine, I'll see him at 5:00, And
the situation that you have here is 2
(unintelligible), Dean (unintelligible)
administration if 'm wrong? Damn,
no, it can’t.

E. I'll tell you as we lay this out,
and I'll be anxious to see what this
lawyer has to say, Dean’s testimony
may not be admissible.

P. On what grounds?

E. That his communication to us was
2 communication to you, and vice
versa. As an alter ego to the President,
"~ P. I don’t have any seéparate exist-
énce, .

E. But you have to assert privilege, .
in a sense, but I don’t know what
kind of political problems that make
(unintelligible) solicitor genéral, as a
disability, strictly from that stand-
point (unintelligible)

P. Would you discuss with your
lawyer the legal (unintelligible) and

" let’s think about this business, about

whether — Ron?

Z, Ya.

P. Come on ih.

Z. Leti néeds the ground rules before
he calls, and he’s in my office. Could
You fill him in?

E. All he has to do is read that to
them. Period. Hée doesn’t have any
comment, he doesn’t have any re-
flection. Ok. ] :

P. Who is this? »

E. Lén Garment. He’s going to ¢all
back. He’s just reading the first page
since we can’t get Ervin. Look, I don’t
want him to get into an argument with
him, -

Z. Ok. AN right, fine. Then John,
afterwards when they ask me what
the ground rules are, I'll just say —

E. Up to the committee (unintelli-
gible)

Z. We have plenty of video tape
recorders, so there’s no film problem,
P. They got it yet? Bring it in .
~Z. Ya. Did John raise with you thé
couple of questions in terms of the
next day or so? And afterwards Just’
say, “Is Dean still in charge of the
investigation?” We ought to just say,

(3 0.” 2

P. Just say that the President —
that we discussed ang that, “No.”
that the President is dealing with that
the Assistant Attorney General, Mr.
tl?etersen, is in charge of the investiga.
ion.

. Z. Then, secondly, they will say
does the President stand by the August .
29 statement that no one préesently
employed in the White House had
knowledge and so forth? There, I
think, I suggested to John, that this



is an operative statement — position
as it stands.

P. You could say that the August
29 statement — that was the report
that was made to the President by
White House counsel at that time —
and the facts will determine whether
that statement is correct, and new it
would be interfering with the judieal
process to comment further, -

Z. I will just say that this is the
operative statement.

P. You're not going to answer ques-
tions today are you? .

Z. No, no. But I mean if I walk
into the press room they’ll be pounding
on my door. .

P. Of course, Ron. Go ahead. Don't
(expletive removed) on Dean.

Z. No, I'm not going to.

P, He is; just say he — )

Z. I'll try to aveid it altogether, but
T just want to get guidance. Then I
could give the wires some backgrounds
on how aggressively and how mich
time you’'ve spent on this the past
three weeks and so forth. Should I
do a little of that? g

[ 24

Statement by President Nixon, April
17, 1973, from 4:42 p.m. to 4:45 pm.

The President: Be seated, please:

Ladies and gentlemen: g

I have two announcements to make.
Because of their technical nature, I ghall
réad both of the announcements:ta the
members of the press corps.

The first announcement relates to the
appearance of White House people be-
fore the Senate select committee, better
known as the Ervin committee.

For several weeks, ‘Senator Ervin and
Senator Baker and their counsel have
been in contact with White House Tep-
resentatives John Ehrlichman and Leo-
nard Garment., They have been talking-
about ground rules - which would pre- .

" serve the separation of powers without
suppressing the facts. -

I believe now an agreement has been
reached which is satisfactory to both
sides. The committee ground rules as
adopted, totally presetve the déetrine
of separation of powers. They provide
that the appearance by a witness may,
in the first instance, be in executive
session, if appropriate.

Second, executive privileges is express-
ly reserved and may be asserted durifig
the course of the questioning as to any.
question. ) p

Now, much has beeti made of the
issue as to whether proceedings could .
be televised. To me, this has never been
a central issue, especially if the separa-
tion of powers problem is otherwise
solved, as I now think it is,

- All members of the White House staff -
will appear voluntarily when requésted

by the committee. They will testify under

oath and they will answer fully all

proper questions.

I should point out that this arrange..
ment is one that covers this hearing only-
in which wrongdoing has been charged.
This kind of arrangement, of course,

would not apply to other hearings. macn
of them will be considered on its merits.
My second announcement concerns the
Watergate case directly.
On March 21st, ag a result of serious

charges which came to my attention,

some of which were publicly reported, I

began intensive new inquiries into this
whole matter. o :

Last Sunday afternoon, the Attorney

Géneral, Assistant Attorney General

. Petersen and I met at length in the EOB

to review the facts which had come to

meé in my investigation and also to re-:

view the progress of the Department of
Justice investigation.

I can report today that theré have been
major developments in the case concern-
ing which it would be improper to be.

more specific now, except to say that |
real progress has been made in finding :

the truth. 5 i o

If any person in the executive Branch
or in the government is indicted by the
grand jury, my policy will be to im.
mediately suspend him. If he is con-
victed, he will, of course, be automatic.
ally discharged. . :

I have expressed to the appropriate
authorities my view that no individual
holding, in the past or at present, a
position of major importance in the ad-
ministration should be given immunity
from prosecution.

The judicial process is moving ahead
as it should; and I shall ajd it in all
appropriate ways and have so informed .
the appropriate authorities.

As I have said before and I have said
throughout this entire matter, all gov-
ernment employees and especially White

- it was the right mov.

House staff smployees are expected fylly
to cooperate in this mattey, | condemn
any attempts to cover up in this case,
no matter who is- involvad,

Thank you.
[ X ]

.‘_Y_Meeting' between President ‘A'Iuvixon,
illiam P. Rogers, H. R. Haldeman .
.and-John Ehtlichman, Executive

Office Building office, April 17, 1973,
from 5:20 p.m. to 7:14 pm.
‘ 'P. Come in.

R. Mr. President,

P. Well, :

R. Well, did you make the anhounce-
ment? n e

P. Yeah, N

R. Sounds good, I hope,
P. See if I—

R. See I heard it when yoy did it.

- Won't hurt anything, .1 think

R. Yeah—right, _

- P. After our talk yésterday, T re.
ferred to — I was aiming at the Ervin
committee — mahaged to get thit one
over (unintelligible) tertns we dis- -
cussed. Figures through — I mean —
Len Garment ig prétty good. Talked
to Petersen again today — he was’
down hére at the White Housé. And
(unih_telligible)— ¢harged with- “got to
resign.” Just figures you can’t keep
them. Walked out in the .sun angd
frankly pyt them ahead of Mitchell.
But.T just don’t think — you have apy
different views today? .

R. No, I don't.

P. You thinl_c this is the right step
to go? I

R. I do. S -

R. It can oecur — ity going to be

'~it’s going to be bloody.

R. I think ‘that,
P. Believe me,

R. That the top peéple in govern- -



ment deserve the same consideration
as anybody else. -

P. Damn right. .

R. The idea that a top person jn
government is, you knew -— it isn’t
the question beyond reproach, you
know. A petson could be beyond re-
proach. Take me — I should have
been fited mahy timés becausa I've
been so heavily etiticized ih the press,
many of those were things I didn't-
'do. You remember, '

R. Well, as a matter of fact, it's a -

little bit the same attitude that

Lucius Clay had about you and the

fund.
" P..Right.
R. That there’s Mr. Eisenhower and

~you should g8t off. Well, that wasn't

really what hé said.

P. I think the people will probably—.
they will have a view that — The
New York Times will have a view in
an editorial tomorrow that the Presi-
dent should fire the whole White
Housge staff. .

R. Oh well, that isn’t—

" P. Anybody who did it. But I think
the people — I don’t know. correct
me if I am wrong. I think they like
.2 man who stands up to them — pot
to ' condemn. people before théy’re
proven. T doA’t know.

R. Well, 1 think that — swhat did

Petersen say on Ehrlichman? Doeg he

have any other evidenée except what’s

in that piece of paper becauss if he -

doesn’t there wasn’t anything in there.
. P. Nope — nope. Well, it’s hardly
anything. Except that Pat Gray now
recollects he did get the damn piece
of paper and he destroyed it, because
he ‘was told in was politica] material,
had nothing to do with Watergate.
We’ll take him on thigs — this has des-
troyed him. Theré’s no place in the
FBI to (unintelligible) it — it’s an un-
beliéveable story. : )
R. Well, now Elirlichman didn’t tell
him to destroy it?
P. Hell no. Gray went back — Dean

did give it to him. It was in Ehrlich- "

man’s office. And, Incidentally, I put
it-hard to Petersen. Il tell you about
that point. I éven used your flame. I
said; “I talked to Bill Rogers about it
yesterday and I had a very (upintelli-
gible).” I said, “He looked over: thig
and ‘he said, “You don’t have mach of
a case on Ehrlichman.” That problem
‘— and he‘sald—

. R. That piece of paper didn’t have
anything on Ehrlichman. i

P. They’ll pound on that. They’ré .

trying liké hell to just frightéh people
to death. They’re going to send ’em
to jail and so forth. Strachan—sthey’re
trying to- break him. I don’t under-
stand. hell, he can either pe a witness
or a defendant. So — well, the other
thing and I told Haldeman; I said,
“Tell him to be a witness” -
* R. What’s happend to Dean? -
P. They made a deal with him, And
that’s why I put in that statement, I

hope — that's the point.

P. T gaid, “Look, I talked to Rogers.”
I said, “We think we have a grave
problem in giving immunity te the
President’s counsel.” Ha said, “But,
suppose that it’'s Dean’s testimony
that we need to get Haldeman and
Ehrlichman: Then should we give
him immunity — shouldn’t we give
him immunity?” 1 said, “No — not
unléss you have corroboration.”

R. Well, well, what you do, Mr. Presi-
dent, on things like that: is you say
to a fellow, “Well, you've got to —
you violated the law. You've got to be
indicated. We'll consider the help you’ve
given us when it comes to the Question

of sentence.” In other words, you —

P. Yeah.

R. Hold out the prospect to him.
__P. But, how could you give John
Dean, the President’s counsel, - total
immunity when he’s involved? He
admits involvement throyghout.

R. Of course, if you - gave him
immunity — . __

P. But, I — _ ,

"~ R. You = You get. o _

P. I said No. I said, by no means,
I'd get the rack.

R. They’d say that you wotked it
out so Dean—

P, Well, they're going to. THen the

" other way — the way Dean’s appeal is

the U.S. attorney’s pedple. Well, Peter-
sen said he agreed with that. He was
trying to convince the U.S. attorneys
of that, but they are hot on trying to
give him immunity and they're going
to. And they want to’ (unintelligibie)
Haldeman and Ehrlichman. Frankly,

that’s it. and then they sald — and

then it's a eop out (unintelligible).
Why do you think they should ge?
On what basis? Hete’s what we have
in mind. I'll tell you what .this state-

‘ment was on. They'’re going to have

Magruder in open court eventually.
Haven’t made the deal with him yet
either, but they will. ‘(unintelligible)
Questions (unintelligible) they’re going
to put out this statement in which they
will name other what they ¢all non-
indicted co-conspirators. I keep hear
ing ahout the names of people that he'
must charge.  That’s all (unintelligible),
He 5aid Sirics, ‘otherise, will ask him
questions and he’s going “to testify
publicly in open court about othe

people. I think that is a hell of a pré.
judicidl thing to do ~ the rights of
an individual — but I don't know how
—have you @ver héard of that? Anqg I
said—and then they said, “Are you tell-
ing me if T fire them, you won't prose-
cyte them?” “Oh no, no, but I mean
won’t bé on that list.” But you—Have
you said if they’re on that list they’ll
have to take ’em?” And then they said

- Isaid, “Well, what are you saying?” He

said, “Well, we just felt we were giv-

ing you an option, that yeu ¢could move

ahead of the herd basically by just

letting them go.” But ‘on the other
hand, Bill, I think—TI think that wheth-
er they're on the Hst—if I let 'ein go
they’re on the list anyway. It appears
that I just—I heard they were going
to b& on the list and I fired them and
they were on it. Then it looks as if
we're not prosecuting. That’s my prob-
lem. We're niot prosecuting my two top
people and I let them go. I don’t think
that makes sente.at all or do you
agree? Am I missing something here?

R. You don’t seem'to, 3 -2

P. Well, tell me that. Well, wouldn't
it look had? Bad? . Ly
o - Oh, sure. From your standpoint.
Yeah. _ .
- P. It 1 let Haldeman and Ehrlichman
go and they didn’t have them on the
list, they will call them before the .
grand jury and then indict them if they

" get information.

R. Well you see, Mr. President, the
ohly reason a judge questions a defend-
ant whén there’s a plea of guilty

P. Yeah.

~ R.Is to make sure that he's pleading

voluntarily and that he knows the na-
ture of his pleading. o

P. Yeah. But right. Right. But Sitica
has exceedéd that hasn't he, Bill?

" That’s the point.

R. Well. i na

P. He's asking now who else was in- |
volved, See that’s what he’s going to
ask. “Was he involved?”: - °

R. It seerms to me that if he’s 'doing
that— ) N

_P. I think he'll act like he did ovéer
McCord. -~ - .. Ao i

R. Well, if he does that, tha's a per-
version of the grand jury process. The
whole idéa.of the grand Jury process -
is to'protect people—

P, Yeah. : .

R. Until they are indicted, And once
they are indicted, then they are pre-
Sumed ‘innocent until we go to trial -
One of the reasons you have a grand -
jury proceeding is so you don't have
innocent names and then (unintelligj-
ble) to the public,

P. Well, I'll tell you, Let me put it
this way. (unintelligible) Haldemai,
and Ehrlichman, on'a thing like this—
Ehtlichman— Frankly, I think he's
g2oing to beat it. I don’t think it's going
to help h if by letting him go, I
know that Me’s gone to the: prosécution.

1 told hifit—

R. You shouldn’t—you shoulds’t be

 faced with those probletns.

P. 1 know I don’t have any unintel-
ligible). Do’ you agree with me that
that was—you knew I am concerned -
about my people. I know that Halde-
man and Ehrlichman are not guilty of
a damn thing. You know what { mean,
It's only. tangential on that, -Bill—tan-
gential. Sure they knew we were rais-
ing money for these damn deféndants,
but they were (unintélligible) in the

-campaigh. I mean, I mean (upintelligi- )

ble) Dean at the meeting, wasn't he?
R. Yeah. b :
P. Ehtlichman wag handling the
whole domestic thing and Haldeman



was working with me at the time. They
didn’t work in the campaign. It was
all over with Mitchell. Mitchell was—
in this whole thing—and frankly, Dean
was handling it f the White House.
(unintelligible). Ou} people were aware
that he was. We were aware about that

R. How did you leave it with Peter-
sen? I don’t know whether — T think
from now on you better let him go
into the brawl I don’t khow. -

P. I have. [ left it with Petérsen.
He’s going t6 report to me and I said,
“If you. get any corroboratinf testi-
mony, I'd like to know. I think that’s
better. . '

R. Sure. " ' ;

P. And if I gét some corroborative
testimony, I said, “I'd like to be
warned and I can call in my people
and say, ‘Look, I found this out and
I’ve got inforination and yoy — there-
fore, you ought to.consider whether
you shouldn’t resign’” That's all I
told him. Well, I'm not going to talk
to him any more about ‘that. ‘After
all, 'm the President of the country
— and I'm going to get on with it and
meet Italians and Germans and all
the others. You know, really — _

R. Oh, you do that. I think you, I
think that — C

P. I've béen Hving with this for (un.
intelligible) that’s all I've been deing
for half the time now. And having all

See TEXT, A23, Col. 1

TEXT, From A22-
these (unintelligible) that I had trust
in. What trust. I trust Ehrlichman,
I had him working. I must Say he
completed the job. He got {o the bot-
" tom of the thing. Had a meeting with
Mitchell and questioned  (unintelli-
gible). This was before Magruder went
. to the (uninmtelligible). -And -he- said,
‘“There is a possible, ‘possible situa-

tion of the act of — what you call it?
R. (Unintelligible). =~ =

B, If, the individuals knew, that_fthe
purpose. was too keep ‘people. from

talking in court. In court, not openly. .

" Apparently; it's — you might k'"eep’“,l
'em from — but he said, “Anyway,
that’s the problem.” So, I don’t know. _

I still don’t know if it is-a problem.

I don'’t see, I'm ‘thinking of ‘Haldeman .:

and his kids, Ehrlidhxflan :gnd_Il)fea'n
and his. You knpw what I mean. I'm
thinking . of the possibility - of their

mocking a great'career. Their'service

has beén efficient — marVélously . (un-
intelligible). 'It's been all over . (un-
intelligible). Tl tell you, if they.aren’t
convicted, Bill, they’ll-come out. ‘You
knoW what ‘1 mean. (Unintélligible).
Charge, and everybody’s going to

understand. This'll be .in better .per-

. spective, in-a.year, I think.:-. ./»

R. I thinwk so. I think once, that
the — well, the first blush will be.—

P, Terrible. — Sre gk
- R It'll-be trrible.

P. Yes, sir. . .

R. No doubt about that.

P. Oh, yes! . - e

R. And it will — it: hag .se -many
little Pamifications.that you —= -.. -

P. Yeah. s el I s dem

R. To this story.

P. Right—right, - .~ - - ..

R. But when it’s all over —finished
P, The Watergate mess., . - < -

R. When it’s finished — -, ..,

P. I'l be here, all along, Bill;:The *"
jury indicts, moves. We're going to

<

- get om: with. this .country. A lot, of "~

people in ‘the country, we may find,"
they feel the President is-doing .the
best he can in the damn thing. If I+
had wanted to cover-up — they prob-“
ably think the President can ¢over-up. *
It T wanted to, I sure haven’t done it
very well, have 17 cE LI P ‘.
R. See, you_only got..what your— "=
what the press will do to your own
people. Press will persecute people.
P. They prosecuted Mifchell, s
R. Did Dean at any time give.you
any indication of what he's going
to do? . :
P. Make .2 deal. Both :——-make a
deal with Dean. Make a deal. I would
-.think that Dean-would just say, “Look,

son, if you're indicted, I'm coming °

(unintelligible). Gee, fellows, what the
hell is .(unintelligible)” And any of
the others. But he’s going to.try this
whole administration I weuld. expect.
And my.view on that is let him try

- the whole administration. Ron Zeigler

-has an interesting point. He ‘said,
“Dean had in February, had said, 41,
for nine -months conducted this in- -
vestigation.” Now he comes in and
charges inaction.” Dammit, why didn’t
he come in earlier, and tell me. thege

- things, Bill? Why didnt he do it? If

he knew, I would think that — - - .

R. It’s one-of those,things that I:
just — (unintelligible) Mitchell

P, Oh.

R. Well, these things happened.-

P. And once it did happen, :not ‘cut-
ting it off right then - stepping for-
ward and saying, “I. (unintelligible)
this. These kids shouldn't.have done
this and that’s my. (unintelligible) best .
judgment.” Well, I think T know —

P. They just.thought  that might
hurt the election. : :

R, Same thing is true in Vesco. That
case he’s-involved in. . -- .

P. Belongs-to the courts. I’d rather
have it there than ih the committee.

R. Oh, sure, d ' e

P. Wouldn’t. you? At least the court
doesn’t try — : £ah

R. Well, that’s the way it's supposed )
to be. That’s’the system. The system

is— B
P. It sure shows the system works,

though, doesn’t it? And I-get-amused.
I had (unintelligible) in"all Sunday, -
had ’em.ini Monday, I had.him in here
today. I fired out my statement,’and
Isaid— -~ : )
R. What'd he say about your state-
ment? : 8 A T
~ P. Petersen? Oh, he thought ‘it was
fine. I got to thank him for it.

- R. Is he going to (unintelligible) ac-' _

cuse other people in open court?
P. That’s just like Si;'ica (unintelli-..

- gible).

R. Well, T can see, I can see —_
Sirica was, hé was supicious there was

‘a cover-up.

P. That’s right. I

R. He was trying to, he was trying
to put pressure 6n the ones who knew -
so he could — 2

P."Not only to'confess about them-
gelves, biit about other ‘ones, “That

-point, of course, they’d siy that Mag-

ruder-has acknowledged, Magruder has’
confessed — but what about others?

‘What about- (unintelligible)?

R. What I mean is here ‘you've got
a willing witness; Befors He ‘was doing
it to reluctant ‘defendants;’ Here' you -
got a willing, as I understand it, a"
willing one. - i ‘ ' o

P. Who will testify. . P o :

- R.Who will testify, has been working:-
with the prosecutor and who’s going

to, will be called before the grand

jury. Why the hell he’s — that (un-

intelligible) open court. That’s the —

that’s what the grand jury’s for. Makes -
a nice little backdrop for your Italian .
dinner. v

P. Oh, it'll be alright.: They’ll have
a fine dinner and wine.

P. They just heard the story. “Thank
God, the President’s finally said some.-
thing about Watergate.” That, I think, -
is going to he partial reaction.

R. Ido too. 1ot v

P. I don’t know. I'm not: taking any—

B. No. I don’t either. ... . '

P.- Comfort out of it, because for a
period of time it’s going to be painful.. -
When Mitchell gets indicted, and when
possibly Haldeman and Ehrlichman
get — ' ' :

R. (unintelligible), o :

P. They're talking to them now. I've -

asked them both to tome over here for
a minute when they get (unintelligible).
I feel frankly that we should. And a
question that he makes’ now. which is
still open, you see, he still left it open. -
They, they’ll leaye if evidénceé (uninteli- ..
gible)- brought to my attention.

R, Yealpz.. .o w7

P. (unintelligible) approgeh that I
have my sources. Now, if he doesn’t
have enough to sink ’emn, but. he makes
these, he’s doing enctigh. to sink them
—where are you getting (unintelligible
on-the other story? Whether or not .

Haldeman and Ehitichman pught to wait -

their names are publicly-brought .
to- this’, Magrudér shouldn’t. He said
he’d give'me twélve hours’ notiee on
‘that, byt I~ T'think that probably. it’s .




‘going to (unintelligible). "
" 'R. I think John and Bob ought to re-
sign, but'talk to their lawyer first (un-
mte]hglble) but I don’t think —

P. Your 1mmedxate reaction though -
is —

R. My reaction is I don’t understand.

P. What should I do?

R. What the hell: they’re going to.

What Magruder’s ‘going to-do. I don’t '

know. It seems to me if Dean has men-

tioned them -that’ way that they ought

to then take a leave of absence.
P. Yeah.
R. T don’t see how —

P. But you would wait until their”

names were mentioned? That’s the whole ,
pomt

R. Yeah. I don't" see on’ what basis
you need to do it. Now in the case of —

P. Well, ‘on this basis-now, let’s say -

that the President had knowledge from .
the U.S. attorney-that charges had been

made against them. Let me emphasize,

I nailed him hard. I said, “Now.let’s” —
I said, “Rogers ahd I read this* whole
thing over. But it’s uncorroborated ” He
says, “I agree., ,

P. But he wants ime to sack ’em.

R. He can’t corroborate it? ;

P: And T have a“feeling for- a guy
that’s supposed : to- uphold -the nghts of

innocent befors " (unirntelligible) “:are .’

guilty or not. Well, let e say this. I've
got-to live"with w1th myself I don’t want
“to 8p it irf that “(uninteligible). That
“isp’t f4ir: Oh the-other hand, P trying
“to "think™ 6f theéir- standpomt If “they're
‘going to get — if they could get some
‘advantage, either' — any advantage by
~not thereby - being: named in-this state-
ment and- ther, of éourse, not even
being indicted maybe -that’s’ something

But ‘they're "geing — . -.
R. (unintelligible) Specaflcally almost

-have:to point but=.* -
P. They,- they; on the other hand

they’re going:to: be -called. They’]k be -

indicted and’ (unintelligible) although, I

.'guess appearing .as non-indicted .co-con-*

spirators—what the hell do you: say to
that? I mean (unintelligible). -

--R. When you.have a case that’s seri-
ous and when you have people who are
on the periphery and you want to name
them in order to have them available
as witness, you name them as a co-con-

- spirator without indicting them. Well, -

the problem first —

P. These guys are avallable

R. The problem first — that’s just as
bad as being indicted, especially when .

you know somebody was (unintelligi- .

ble) lying. So you're named, but you
can’t clear your name.

P. That’s-right.

R. But in case you're indicted, then
-you - have .the. opportunity to clear
the record. Little traﬂ then acquittal
then you . —. this is as if it didn’t”
happen. If yowre named as a co-con-

splrator and . forced to resign, . T’henA

you're convicted without a trail.

R. In that case I'm no really — you
got to protect them.because I don’t —.
.1 think probably-in- the- final. analysis"
they—'Im afrzid Bob: is probably in—-

P. Going to be 1nd1cted —_—

R. Trouble. Buf —

P. I'm not -sure. he'll, be indicted.
R. I'm not sure he’ll be indicted

: but—

1

P. Well, staying too close to the

money. He never can explam that. In

terms of legal involvement though but

he..could -never explain to the people
and you (unintelligible) some of that

damn money back.there for ’em. Testi-,.

fied by Mitchell,. by, by Dean. Was
it a (umntelhgmle) of the defense?

. R. Why don’t we do this? (unintelli-.-
gible) — -or, they’re just talking to

lawyers. You dont have a chance to
assimilate it. But don’t let them (un-
1ntelhdlble)

P. Well—

R. And you're going to have twelve
hours

P. Yeah —

R. All right. It gives u¢ a lttle

_time to see how your how your state-

ment plays.
P. Always had a (unmtelhglble) had

,(umntelhglble) I really d1d think—

R. Oh.
P. But that he probably didn’t know

. about — know what. it means. My feel-
ing  was that Mitchell .— basically

always thought Magruder knew the
damn thing. Mitchell just wasn’t tend:

_ing the shop. 'I‘hat’s what I under-
.stand. ‘

R. I'm stu-prlsed ahout Dean T
thoyght — I thought. Well from the

beginning, .I thought Magruder lied
-and I thought Mitchell probably — -

he may well, have giveh the go ahead
and said, “Oh. yeah, to hell with.this,”

.and the damn thing Was then ap-

proved. :
..P. Yeah. “Don’t tell me. about 1t 2
"R. “Go ahead. Don’t tell .me, Go

ahead and do it.” Well I'm surprised

about Dean .because I didn’t think—
P. Now Dean claims that he didn’t

- have anything to do with having them

go ahead. Understand that. After that
Dean came in in terms of the obstruc-
tion of justice. There’s where he’s
vulnerable. That’s all. He's not. vilner-
able on the flrst -part in my opmlon
I think he' == .

R. From:the. same posmon 1f he’s
gotten two people he’s trying to bar-
gain with %~ Dean and Magruder —
and he — did he say he got written
statement from both of them?

P. I don’t know - I think -what

‘they've dome is:just sat down and

debriefed. That’s what they call it. It's
all: (ynintelligible) with- an- agreemenet
certainly; though. Where Dean is con-
cerned, nothing they can do to shake
him. On that one he. stands firm,

, twelve. 1 would like for
you to.put your mind to the problem,
if you would, because .I really think

~we’ve got to start helpmg ’em. Help

‘adivse them. They’re m the eye of the
~hurricane.

R. I wou.ld think that the one fellow
that had to know about this and should .
just take a leave .of absence is Dean.

" P. (unintelligible)- It looks like this
might (un1ntelhg1ble) of ¢ourse, set
him off.

R. We don’t.” - |

. P. Worse than he 1s

‘R."Well I thmk your point is. true
enough. He appears beyond the thmg
although he— .

P. He was the one. .

"R. Pretty hard. Pretty. hard to say,
“The lawyers-—" g0

P. Well hé was — he was not Not
in this matter, I can assure ,you. He
handled the whole thmg He .was de-

. pending upon — regarding. the . fact

—when I started, .My .investigation on

_the 21st of March. I saw Dean at least

(unintelligible) times. At - ‘Camp David,
he was to write the (expletive deleted)
up so we could put out a statement.
He said, “I really can’t write a state-
ment that you can put out.” So I must
say, “I've done everything I can to get
to the bottom, Bill, as your can see. I

said, “John, you got to let it-all hang
out — now-find out — you got to tell
me what the hell-the score is so we’ll
know how to deal with this, We’re not
going to be nibbled to death by a
thousand . hurts.” “That’s exactly what
we've done. Se we've got just (unin-
telligible) the - time when MecCord,
which I — T dont" know what he’s
talking -about. There are =~ at least,
he’s made a lot of-allegations that he
can’t prove. But there’s enouigh there

‘that would * put*anybody on ‘notice
‘that without a: doubt theres some-
Athmg wrong. ! .

R. Yeah. i "

P. That’s why I had to' move ‘and I
have — at_Teast ‘T -produced - good
—I thought the statement” would re-
veal that I"have-been working on the

- (expletive  deleted) smce the twenty-
- first  of March. )

R. (unintelligible) why don't we —
why don’t we try it agam tomorrow
night and then — -

P. Right. :

R. Why' don’t you get —_ st111 in the
— in the — in a real Sens‘e it’s up
to the — it’s up to John and Bob

P. Yeah.

.. R. It’'s damn difficult for anybody
else who doesn’t know what the hell
he’s talking about. For example, I-
don’t really know—you know—-fwhat
the facts are.

P. Yeah.

RI . "

P. 'm not sure that I know. y
. R. You don't .either. So it's very
difficult for others. Your judgment
tends to be superficial. Although a
sophisticated fellow John, after all, is
a lawyer:so he claims. that he’s (un-
1nte111g1b1e) thofightful .kind of a fel-

_low, and if he.isn't shaken now, this

is a fellow that’s not just a rambling
idiot.

P. Yeah — he’s taking (unintelli-
gible). Had everybody over this morn-



ing. “Going to fight, discredit Dean—
discredit 'the prosecutor” You know—
“going:to fight.” That’ll be one hell of
a big:fight but (unintelligible) the ad-
ministration (unintelligible), .

R. (unintelligible)

. P. Dean’s (unintelligible). .
. _R. You don’t expect the head of the
- FBI to pick up:and burn the damn
- stuff. . You can .always put it in your
;safe-and say it is unrelated to the in-
. vestigation: But,. burn it? Makes you
*look likeé a common crook:? -

.P. We’re "working as ~hard <as we
can, The guy we're thinking of Bill
(unintelligible) frankly (unintelligible)
a Democrat, Irish, Catholic, bachelor,
forty-two years of age. He’s finishing
the Ellsburg case and received plau-
dits for being just as fair as he can.
Thank God there’s a jurist' of that.
kind. And -based on (unintelligible)
sense of :(unintelligible). And I feel I
think he’d: get a 100 per cent because
lhe has the best investigative experi-
ence. A great man for the job.

R. (Unintelligible) * .

P. He will get a hundred votes in
the Senate. I think (unintelligible) why
did you ‘burn it? Wouldn’t you say,
“There’s no place in the FBI. We have
.nothing to do with politics. This ig
political material. Turned it over to
us, showed it to us because they
wanted to be sure they weren’t sup-

" pressing anything and it did not in-
volve the Watergate. (unintelligible)
thought the best thing to do was the
FBL.” . . ;

H. Do you want.us or. not?

P. Oh sure, come on in. - )

R. I was just saying to the President
maybe we ought-to. wait-until ‘over-

night: “The’ two -bf-jqu_ ‘buzzed or ;‘f}lst
not feeling well, - - el
E; We talked to your Mr. Wilson,

“P. Was he lying. down? Wilson? An

Oldtimery " B e

. .H. Nothing. like—contrary to. your
feeling that we wouldn’t want to. work

~ with him, I think well find him very
Tood and, tough, " ." . T L

. E. He's- very knowledgeable, e
..'H..Sharp " as. hell. Technically; he’s

-too, old, biit mentally he’s very bright.

_.--P, Just’let me say, I'm. so .glad you

“have him, somebody, to; talk ‘to.. I, de-
finitely— . . ..., . pan e

R. My ,only reservition. would. be—
(unintelligible). =~ = . . ,

H. Well, that’s a problem. If we go
to. trial, he’s got a heart problem and
all that so you can’t—

P. You don’t need a trial lawyer

H. We need brians right now.

P:. What you need is brians, judg-
ment. - . )

H. He’s got.that. P )

E. Well, he knows the cast.o§ shar-
acters. He knows. Petersen..He knows
Glanzer. He knows -all those people
and he despises them. - ... ..

R. All the people we don’t li‘ke'.,

H. Maybe he startea oug that way
before we said anything.

R. Well, I'm glad because I was wor-
ried about his. condition. - ..

P. Bill brought—incidentally; T ask-
ed him about -it again, how he liked

the Garment approach. And: he said,”

“no problem.” We should go 'with him,
I told him this is the only question you
see, I don’t have anybody to talk to. I
never talk “to Petersen - any more.
That’s done, except—except for all the

information I want. You ‘know what T

mean. : :

E. Wilson said to us, “Beware of
Petersen. He talks,” he said. He cited
a case that he had that Petersen was
involved in— . )

H. And he said that one problem in
dealing with him was: that every point
he makes is accompanied by a story,
and that latter is so. -~ -~ -

~P.. He probably - foxed. him, Well,

then, maybe all I'll do  with Petersen
—he said that he’d give me 12 hours
notice- with regard to: the: Magruder
thing and I think I want that, -

H. Yeah. ¢ .

P. Bill doesn’t know how .the hell
that  procedure works— &

E. Let me tell you. what that pro-
cedure is. Wilson explained .that to
us too.-He-said -that:where & man goes
in on an-informationr and ‘pleads guil-
ty 'in .this District, it is- customary for
the judge to interrogate if he- wishes
to. And also for there to be filed a
statement . of . the ' case—ah—in the .
nature of information. Now the in-
formation which they will file instead-
of indictment names the. co-conspira-

tors.in the conspiracy charge who are..

not indicted.. o

E. That does not mean tilg:it you.

won’t be.indicted: later. -Tt. means for
the purpose of that infox;mgxtion which

is then filed,, you. are . not- indicted. ..

And so this is a list of Dbeople who in a

descripation if a conspiracy pattern .
are co-conspirators.. His analysis of
the pros and cons of this are that for,

the prosecutor to come forward and
say, “If you will suspend these birds,

I will, name . them in the list of co.

conspirators,” gets the prosecutor off a*

difficult politicial hook hecause when "
the judge asks, “Were there any other

co-conspirators and .so on?” He says,
“Well, they have already been suspended
—ah, and may be.indicted.” We re-

serve the right to indiet them, but we: -

are going.to have them before the’

.grand jury.. © = . . =
-.R. B0, are they going to help a bit? -

E. Well, it doesn’t help. us. It helps
the prosecutor with his problem, On
the .other .hand, he says,.there is a
certain negative in it. From a political
standpoint for the administration in
that the question will arise, “Well,
why weren'’t. théir. names. on there if
they’re co-conspifators?” = .~ -

P.Right, =

E. Somebody’s eavered up. .

R.Yes. T . e

H. That’s worse than putting them
on the list. : o

E. Yeah, and so, he said— .

R. T don't know, John. And let me
go back for just a moment on this
procedure. The information is filed
by the prosecutor himself, without a
grand jury action?

H. Yeah. o

R. If the prosecutor names, for all
practical purposes, the fact— )

P. In the public mind— G

R: Particularly that you are going
to leave public service— o

E. That’s what Wilson said.

H. That’s what Wilson said.

P.If they.are indicted. ~~ 7. - -
R. Well..You've been indicted. .
. P. That's right. Let’s face it.*
‘R. The ‘indictment,:Bob? Ts' a ‘char-
- R: The indictmient, Bob? Is;a charge—
P, It daesir’t convict anybody. - _
-R. What_th¢ Constitution*providés is
that before' charged, a grodp. of citi-
zens to view the evidencei~.
" E. In secrete—.. .. :

R. In-seeret, to see if there is suf- -
ficient evidence  to. make a public -
charge against them. That’s the pro-
tection that everybody has. If there
is an exception and I. guess there is -
in this case, the lesser crime would
result: But in this case. the ‘gravity is
such that it is all baloney. That’s all
right if spmebody is accused-of steal-
ing an automopile from -the sidewalk
or -something.. You know,.people in
government positions .are entitled to
the protection .of -the.'grang. jury be-
cause if they want to make.a public

" charge against an individual then present

it to the grand jury, That’s what you :
have. But here you have a perversion
of:the. system, | . Tt

. B.Sure. . .., .

~ R.’Being compelled, to leaye the gov-
ernment. Hell, as far as'the piiblic is
concerned, you are_already i;:dicted.

E. Really, the job—they.ihave this
capacity by using that progess. They
could ruin you.and never give you a
day in court. : .

R. Of course.”” .~ i 3

E. They could list you'as a'co-conspira-
tor, don’t call you to the grand jury,
don’t take an indictment against you —
© H. Force the President o suspend
youand — . S enE e

“E. You are ‘cooked . forever. You are
a conspirator in the Watergate case.

R. As far as the public is concerned,
you -are indicted even if they don’t call
it that. . : .

E. That’s right. Co

R. That’s what it is nowadays. The
President has. been. forced: to- have you
leave. . - - :

E. It's non-actionable, It’s privileged.

"You can’t sue for slander.

H. We do have a public record in that
regard in that we have a public posi-
tion that commands substantial atten-
tion. . : e

R. See, Bob, the protection of the
grand jury gives a citizen is that the
charge is heard in public.

H. That’s right. To turn this around.

R. Then the charge — then everybody



shuts up. The evidence ‘is not disclosed.
Nobody says a word and the judge cau-
tions everybody to take the oath not to
repeat the evidence'and then you go to
trial. And everything is then controlled
by the rules of evidence. Then the. jury
makes a decision based on'that evidence.
That’s the systém. Nowif you do it the
other’ way,: you don’t get the :trial. You
both would be indicted and convicted by
the public ‘beforehand.:

E. That’s @ tough political eall = that
we were framed up there. In this: con-
versation, we don’t need to-decidé here
beyond mentioning it, Hut it's :something
that will havé to be decided. Our vela.
tionship to Dean—prebably was client
to attormey. Bedause - we °were already
noted and present.inall ‘these transac-
tions. ‘What ‘T ‘said to Dean and what
Dean said ‘to'me is private.conversation

-with no third .party. present. It could
be'a question:ef. privilege. The Question

. is, /if ' vequrested .by- . the ‘prosecutor, to
waive -the - privilege.- It is that Dean
conversation where he says-he came and
told me that Liddy had confessed.

- P. But he-did it-in, California, didn’t

he? s

E. Well,: the only reason to tell me
was not for me as me but because I was
qne .of .two, cofiduits. that he Had to the
boss. He 'didn’t have, I mean, the organ-
izational set-up was that way.

H. The President’s log.ds eyery inter-
esting. I.don’t know if you've “gotten
through all of this, but from the time
of the Watergate break-in until the end
of August whén he signed your votes
in the office, you never saw John Dean.

P. That’s of course — - _

H. During July and August the

. President had no communication' with
Deéan at all. .~ . .~

E: Now, he gave alot of legal’ advice
about this case. A Iot of traffic and all
that, but there’s, also developed a poor
relationship ' and "soorer or *later the
President “is. going to have to decide
whether he wants to consider privilege
— if Dean becomes — .5

P. My privilege? Lawyer-client privi-
lege? o TS

E. Yes. Dean’s communications to me
and my communications to him. And the
same with Bob. I"think. That’s a tough
problem. You probably won't want to
reserve it. c ' '

this politically. What do. you think abeut
that? - e o
i+, BRIt igreally ticklish, -~

member.’ Tt’s “almost 2~ yéar

E:Dixon-Yates things, - = - .
H. He was offered the budget thirfg.
He refused, «. - e Farendy
E. Canal is open.: o N
-H. He-stayed.at the White House for
several months. .- ..o . .. . 4

b

. R. My oply thought on (unintelligibls)
maybe “he"is” 16oking out to not ‘huyt
himself at all. .
* P.ULike what? ¢ TR BEOCT

R. Well, what it-teally' means jers_
it is hard to understand he was: couinsel

-to you-as.well as tp the President. -

E.«I-appreciate’ what: you:are: Saylig
and -that-is: impertant; and;-I; under-

stand::n 8 Fans .

o ReHeow idid hie s cos
ent? ez, i * L T saniiag
» IR Dean? He'dealt with oné’ of: us.
B In our c%if)-ééi-_t‘y'"’gé‘ make Jdécisiths.
* ‘He was redlly ar ‘adviser in that sity.

. ation. -Not'a (unintelligible) 4nd soffe.

times he Tollowed and sometimes he

fnck s P,

dido’t;s M e
... B That's tommon. Everyone -wants
. to carve his place. " .
. AL Yeah:

ire, ‘that’s right.”
.P. And ferred to, Him. in ‘this
«damned investigation, Remember you
said, “T ‘think you ought to talk 'to
John Dean,”. Remember. And.T called
him in there. And—I listened ad.in-
. finitum and’ carted him off to camp
David. ik e o
H. (Unintelligible) I deferred to him
on most oceasipns. oy
R. Well, why. don’t we think-it oyer?
P. Well, let’s start with one thing.
- I don’t see anything. to ‘be- gained by
the procedure of Haldeman gnd’ Bhrl-
<ichman. Yoy see, here’s theproblem.
Kleindienst, Bill; on Sunday. —"they
--both came-in-and -said, “Becauseof
.Haldeman ..and ‘Ehrlichman—just _the
fact-that both of these clowns hadim-
: -plicate;d;i-them‘-:andffthey' ought to'fe-
. sign. They haven’t served ‘you -well,
. Mr.: President,” "and . all ‘that sortvof
thing. oo TR e 5y el
R. I think that’ges -~ <+
. :P.--«Theyr-said-,'fi“Ma_kef*tthem'l‘ési'gn, Te-
~8igns” 1 «said; “Well;«damn it;:I ‘can’t
»do -it. ot runcorroborated testimonly.”
The point is—I.think—a moment- of
“truth for them when they come in—
and say they’ve got corroborated testi-
mony. Do I have to examine the
“damned -testimony? I say, “Look, fel-
lows, -1 -think" under thés¢ ‘circym-
stances, you had better voluntarily—"
siy—see what I mean? That’s what,
my concern—Bill has made the point

that a person in public office should .

have no more and no less rights. than
a person out of public office. That's
my theory. Right, Bill?
‘H. Well, there is a.good counter;ar-
gument which jis that a person in pub-
lic office has a higher .obligation than
a person not in public office. This is
one of their points. Cgen m b
R. I think though, that is for.the
individual to decide. That in effect has
to be done. It hasn't been done,
‘E. I think if we turned up in_this

crazy information—junk—eyen though -

we are not charged with a crime, in the
ultimate sense—% could write-you a

letter and say that due to these charges,
that obviously-I don’t want to impair
your situation and I am going to take
a leave_ . @ PR b3 R

P. You could say T have asked you
to put me on leave -until the charges

. are cleared up. '

E. Sure, and I think that is the - di-

" rection from'which it otight to come,

P. I'personally ‘think that is really
the course: of action we should take
‘and let -them put it out if they want
to that way. ‘And if they do and fiyou
are ‘named you can immedidtely say,
“I am confident that these charges
will not ‘stand up and that I, that I,
and ‘so forth”—and, “my -usefulness,
of course, will be Seriously ‘impaired
and T therefore request a leave yntil
the ‘matter 'is cleared up.” ‘I think
that’s, I think we can all’ agree on'that

" without an indictment, 1 might-put a

P.S. on there and say, “I am’ shocked
"with' the procedure followed and when
I am reinstated I am going to see'to it
that the Justice Department changes

_ its procedure.”

‘R. If' the. prosecutor came to the
President dnd advanced Sufficient evi-
“dence for you to ask them to resign,
and he looks at that evidence and says, |
“I dgree.” That’s your decision. But
in this kind of a case, normally, that
‘kind of a judgment wouldn't mean in-
dictment—that’s all we have (unintelli-

" gible) but under these circumstances

(unintelligible) in effect, Deart would
be doing a greater disservice to you
than a bonafide grand jury indictment,
P, That’s right, he would. ' - ,
" R. He’s working for and already. de-
cided before the . Attorney Genera]
coiild come on the cage, o
"P. I think that, I think that before
yow.have.your day in court. That really
means something to me, % o
R. Well, if you were to consult aside
from the Attorney General, thaf’s a

- different. matter, I don’t—the thing I

think—based . on what Petersen gave
to.the President, which I looked at, I
don’t. think . there's sufficient = there,
There may he something I don’t know
about. it , 2

E. Well, I put those to Wilson and
he said, “Well, I’ll have to take-it with
my bed of crumbs tonight.” You know,

- his reaction was . . .

_P. What are. we. going to do to—go
ahead'. .. ,:.w n - - oo e
“*R. The Star newspaper- ‘said .'that
you had meetings in June or some-
thing, AT L
© PI'Say it again, - that’s what "Dean’s
saying: : § o

E. And even then, after that,

P. That cannot be broper, Bill.

R. But even supposing you Rad said:
that. Suppose you said that, Then there
was, then it isn’t what you say, it’s

‘what you did.

P. Yeah, |t ow. mr s
See TEXT. A24. Col: 1. -
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R. So, what did they do? They
turned all. Everything in the safe
over to the FBI. They turned over the
materials dealing with the Watergate
to the agents that were investigating
it, they turned over other material not
related to Watergate and was not
under investigation to the head of the
FBI. Now how in hell can you say,
“That is obstruction of justice to turn
over all the evidence to the FBI?

P. Except that, when Pat Gray
burned it, it makes it look like it—

E. His wild geese—‘“deep six.”

R. Pat Gray says, Pat Gray was told
to do that. He said—

P. He was not told to do that.

E. On the other business, which is
very suspicious, and that is the
business of “should he leave the coun-
try,” I've checked with everybody in
that meeting and they don’t remember
anything like that. It turns out Dean
-called Liddy and told him to have
"Hunt leave the country. Colson recalls

- Presldent Nixf)n:' “The judicial process 'i;s.;bg-oving_‘,@]iea&” -

Dean mentioning this to him, not in

 my office, and Colson saying to Dean,
-“You stupid bastard. What a terrible

mistake.” Then it was countermanded
50—
H. And he didn’t leave the country.
" E. And he didn’t leave the coun-
try, so I suspect that Dean many —
E. Have acted unilaterally on that.
P. Here again— ;
H. Colson brought him up short.
P. Here he is trying to pass this up

_ to Ehrlichman, too.

E. Well, he has to have an explana-
tion for why he did it.

P. And how is that going to come out
from the others if they said, “He was
told to leave the country”? Or has

~Hunt already said it?

E. Well, yeah. There is no question

( that he got orders from Liddy who

said that, “my principals say —” and
he said, “Who are your principals?”
and he said, “John Dean.”

P. John Dean said, “Oh no, it’s

" Ehrlichman”?

E. Yeah. Get into one of these “he

to be miserable. But tne propapiiities
against the surrounding circumstances

E. Now I have no illusions about this
at least as of now look good.

- credibility. Everybody gets used wup.
. process, when you give it the test of

There is nothing left so you just have
to expect that that’s the end of the

~ ball game.

P. Well, it is for this time, but now

_and then you have one fight and win
- the battle. The three, the three-fifty
- thing is the toughest thing, Bob, about

this whole thing. Mainly, to me there’s

‘no question about it, just basically

that they had knowledge that it was
going to those defendants and so
forth. They wanted it for that pur-

.pose. And the question is what you
‘thought it was. And then again they’ll

say that they don’t believe you. It'll
get down to that.

. R. Dash, ete.

P. There again, though, course they
have a route to this. Larue. He broke
down and cried, I guess.

E. That’s alright. Are you going to



have spaghetti tonight? o

R. Spaghetti and singing Toscanini.

P. Well, Bill. you go ahead. I'll —
let them go home. It’s possible we may
ask your advice tomorrow with all—
. R. I have reason to feel good that you
got John Wilson.

H. We sure appreciate your help.

R. Yeah.

E. He was enormously -gratified to

~ hear that you had recommended him.

H. We told him you had suggested
him and it was the only name you

“could suggest and he said that, “Bill,
and I have been on the same side and
on opposite sides. He wouldn’t speak
to me on one matter.”

E. It was on the Swiss deal —

H. Something he wouldn’t speak to
me — Never (unintelligible) worked
over here three days a week and never

" 'say President Eisenhower. Never got

" an autographed picture and so we
said, “Maybe in this case that could be
arranged.”

P. Provided he had nothing to glo

E. He’s very clean by the looks of it.
with Watergate!

P. Well, so are you. Damn it!

R. Ok. Good bye, Mr. President.

P. I'm glad he feels good about hav-

ing him come over here.
' H. Yeah. Well, I don’t now about
that. I don’t know anything about law-
yvers. I never had one before so. For
exactly reasons Bill thought we wouldn’t
like it — he’s an old man and we won't
like working — I do like him.

P. How old is he? Seventy?

H. Seventy-two, Well, he’s well-pre-
served. He has some difficulties. But
T'll tell you the guy has got—his mind
isn’t slow at all. He is right with us
and then some. He’s got an abundance
of stories.

" P. Sure.
H. Well, I feel pretty good about
" him.

P. Well, it’s good to have him. Very
good. It’s a fight.

H. I need—a—he is so devoted to
other things. He’s just devoted to the
cause, i '

H. He said, “It’s a great honor to
meet you men.”

P. What is his reaction to the whole

" damned thing? Comic tragedy? Trag-
edy of errors?

H. He didnt characterize it. He
didn’t, ah— :

" P. Hello. Have you been busy? Yes.
i How did it go? I've heard that. Yeah.
" Yeah. Yeah. For later. That’s right.

Either way. That’s right. Sure. Well,

get a question about whether I talked
-~ to Mitchell, huh? Yeah, Mitchell. But
there was a time set. From this period

on. From the 21st on, did you talk to

Mitchell? Very good. (unintelligible)

very good. How are you? Good luck.

(Unintelligible) well. I just feel that,

I just went through that, now they

may have told you that the basic heart

of the matter—

E. Well, I tell you. I think youve

put him in a box on that. They are
going to have to have some damn good
reason for that Sirica thing.

P. Dean’s credibility is totally de-
stroyed you know.

H. Dean (inaudible).

P. Sure, Dean was in charge of the

investigation. Did they ask him that? .

Yes. I put it up to Ron and I made
this point to Ron. “You know Dean
somehow has sold out the White House,

the administration, ete.”

H. That’s a good statement. It is a
good idea. It puts you exactly in the
position that you should be in now.

P. We'll get kicked by the press on it.

H. For giving in on Ervin, ete.

P. Giving in on Ervin. Oh Ervin’s
great—hell, that doesn’t bother me a
bit. T was always ready to give in on
Ervin and I said, “This is very satis-
factory now. We have now accomplished
our purpose. This a good deal.” I said,
“It hot only applies to this case but it
can apply to other things.” I ad libbed
that when I said it. I worked it in.

H. It was a very good answer.

P. No, I shouldn’t pick on the press
but, “Why did the President act so late
on this case? Why didn’t he act earlier
on this matter? He had the charges
floating around.” The answer is that
they are charges that were just float-
ing. I mean, I think really, that’s true,
newspaper charges and so forth.

E. They were all relying on Dean,
frankly.

H. Well speed was not of the essence
in this case. It wasn’t a matter of
whereby moving quickly would stop
something. It was done. It was a mat-
ter now of doing it pr'ope'rly]; Not
quickly.

P. That’s right, Bob. That’s the point
of the whole Garment thing. There is
this tendency John, to talk, and basic.
ally I though he was a (unintelligible)
but he was totally non-plussed by that.

H. He said, “Where’s the Attorney
General?” He’s taken himself out of
it. Wilson said, “Where’s the deputy
attorney general? He’s not involved in
it. Where’s the chief district attorney?
Where’s Titus? Who should be on top
of this? Why did Silbert call me in-
stead of Titus? Silbert—he’s an old
boy from the Justice Department and
they band together.” He said, “Did
John Dean ever work for the Justice
Department” He also said, “I bet you
those lawyers that Dean has—and Ma-
gruder has—both were old Justice De-

partment types.” He says that Glanzer
is a very bad operator. He knows him
well. He doesn’t know Silbert but he
knows Glanzer very well. Says he's
a bad buy. (Unintelligible).

P. Well, don’t you both agree though,
John and Bob? :

H. He did it. But I've heard he was
the L.A. Times leak this morning.

P. I knew about the leak. It was
going to come yesterday.

H. No, I don’t think it was intended
as that. And I don’t — not because it
triggered us, but because it “set the
stage. .

H. It let out ahead of time that the
White House was going to move on
something. And then you did.

P. Well, did that story say the White
House was going to move? Oh, oh, oh.
Heads are going to roll. That probably
came directly from Dean. I think Dean
did that. T

H. “White House likely to admit
some Watergate responsibility — will
have a dramatic admission of whether
one or more high level officials bear
responsibility.” It doesn’t say White
House officials. Your action  now say-
ing something substantial will develop
that’s all going to fit together rather,
rather—

P. Yeah, Yeah (unintelligible) about
that—tell us about that ransacking and
(unintelligible). It's been about two
years'ago. It’s about not letting (unin-
telligible).

H. He said it was 22,000. Was the
difference to money material? Can a
case be made out of that? Did he keep
the money or was there something
about that? :

P. He ecalled the same day, too,
didn’t he? B

H. No, he called the next day. He
called within twenty-four hours, That
was the next day. Testified on Thurs-
day and called on Friday.

E. They are using every lever they
can lay their hands on—these guys
that say that.

H. I saw on ABC News tonight,



which also fits into all this. It says in
the last three weeks in the White
House, Haldeman has been coming
down very hard on everybody: “If you
have anything to say to say it now.
This was the message that was given
to Mitchell Saturday at the White
House. Haldeman evinced no protec-
tion and no apologies. Anyone and
everything will be disclosed.” It should
have been Ehrlichman instead of Hal-
deman, or get out White House for
cracking down hard on the Watergate.

It’s not bad. It’s a damned good posi-

tion to be in. And when Ziegler talked
to him he said, “I can’t give you any-
thing official on that but off the rec-
ord you are not going off base.”

P. Was Bill Gill on that one?

H. Not tonight. Gill called and asked
for confirmation and said he was going
with the story and he wanted Ziegler’s
comment. Ziegler said, “I can’t give
you any comment.” -

P. The story probably isn’t even out.

H. Well, that’s what I said to Ron,
“Hold the statement until tomorrow,”
and looked up my story (unintelligible)
was on. No, It will be on. It’s on.
There's another item.

P. The right day too. We had to get
it out. (Unintelligible).

H. That’s right. That’s right. The
Post won’t put it in tomorrow. If The
Post had something to go with tomor-
row, I would say they wouldn’t go.
They’ll hold up now and wateh for
something. They are playing the long
game.

P. 1. get your point, John. On the
(unintelligible) I think we, I think we
have sped the process up. This kind

of stuff, this kind of stuff here would .

have had stories for three of four
months.

H. That’s right. . )

P. That Ervin. Right. We get into
the grand jury and then they get an
indictment. d

H. Well, there’s no question that it’s
the best way compared to the Ervin
process. It is essential to go this way.

P. That’s right. If it weren’t for the
fact (unintelligible) possibility of (un-
intelligible). I (unintelligible) my theo-
ry to take this thing to the grand jury.

E. Yep.

H. We have to face the possibility of
indjctments and those would have to
come anyway. They wouldn’t have let
you get away with it.

P. Well, I think what would happen
for instance with Ervin’s problem.
They would be saying, “We refer this
to the grand jury.”

H. They would have murdered us.
Something would be out every minute.
Demanding that you fire everybody.
Demanding that you do this and that.

E. Well, as a mater of fact, you
might have turned the set up some day
and watched your White House coun-
sel crap—for the glorious television.

It would be at least surprising.
H. That’s right.
P. Oh, It’s done up there?
H. Sure, he pulls it up there.

P. Let’s face it, up to this thing. '

Dean handled a lot of stuff well.

H. That’s right, Yes.

E. I would hate to have you appear
in the position of not, (unintelligible)
sort of conditionally holding the job
open much heyond the time that Dean
is—

P. I'll say this. I think that one thing
for sure John is — I think that I've got
to play, I want to play, I know the Dean
thing very well. We have played it fairly
well. I think what we ought to do —
make our deal or not with Dean within
a week. I don’t see how Dean can pos-
sibly miss being involved in whatever
they put out on Magruder. He can’t
miss being — and the way this guy talks,
I think all of you, all of you, everybody
may get it.

E. He may get it. He’s had (unintelli-
gible) go around and talk with the U.S.
Attorney types. I think we may have
Wilson go over on the hill (unintelli-
gible) and say, “Ok, you are about to
ruin these guys. I just want you to know
that they are going to have to go out
and protect themselves.” You are going
to be in a knotty problem. (unintelli-
gible) I mean. He has quite a close re-
lationship with Titus. He’s not going to
get much of a total on this. This state-
ment, and he’s going to make it, any-
thing he can to press for, not immunity,
but functional immunity, so-called where
he .doesn’t need to make a side deal
with the boys and they can grant im-
munity. And that would be my hunch.

P. Alright, we shall go over — come
in.

H. Hell, Mr. President.

P. Same old thing, Huh?

E. I would force him to go to Sirica.

P. Put that in the library.

E. Showing the judge what kind of a
witness this is. Come on, get the Hill
off the hook of the executive branch by
having the judge grant the immunity.

P. The judge can attack that state-

ment.

E. You are putting yourself with the
angels on that.

P. I am just saying that immunity is
not granted to any major — LI

E. I think that will be read as re-
lating to Mitchell and three or four of
that ilk as well.

P. Oh, sure. )

H. They may decide not to do this.

P. That’s the point,

H. Dean will be (unintelligible) or it
could be done quickly. )

P. But I have told the big five, I
told the assistant attorney general, speci-
fically, that nobody should be granted
immunity in any case. Rogers agrees

. with this and (unintelligible). .
H: The other point that our attorney

makes, which is significant: “That’s

Petersen: When I think
the former Atiorney General
of the United States being
subject to criminal irial is
just—

President: For obstruction
of justice—not the bugging
—the obstruction of justice.

Petersen: It is terrible.

right, the judge can grant immunity,
but that in the executive, only the
attorney general can grant it.” That
holds somewhere else too.

P. Dean is the only one who can
sink Haldeman or Ehrlichman.

H. How am I going to explain that,
after putting out a statement?

E. What do you say, “Dean is some
little clerk?” He’s myv cBunsel.

P. That’s righ% *£s involved in the
Gray thing. They are not going to throw
the whole thing in there. I am thinking
whether to see Dean again unless its
useful — I don’t think you can control
him, he’s fanatic. If you feel it would
be useful, let me know.

E. T will tell you what is lurking in
the back of my mind is that, based
on the chain of circumstances, Dean
may be provoked to make a public
statement which is slanderous and hos-
tile.

P. Another thing. I would like the
libel suits. I think both of you, and °
Bob particularly, you ought to get your-
self a libel lawyer, Bob, and check

- the or have Wilson check and use the

most vicious libel lawyer there is. I'd

.sue every (expletive deleted) (unintel-

ligible). There have been stories over
this period of time. That will make —
that also helps with public opinion.
Sue right down the line. It doesn’t
make any difference now about the
taking depositions and the rest, does it?
The important thing is the story’s big
and I think you ought to go out and
sue people for libel.

H. Do you mean Senator Weicker?

P. He’s covered.

E. Oh, he’s not, not when he was on
“Issues and Answers.” .

H. (Unintelligible) or using news-
paper interviews.

E. That’s right.

H. It was not on the floor, he’s too
buzzy, stupid.

P. The point is the thing with
Weicker (unintelligible) is whether he
said — how did he say that? Was it
libelous? : '

H. I think so. I better ask a lawyer.

P. Was he that specific?

H. He was damned specific.

P. That Haldeman knew? .

H. Yes. “That Hgldeman directed



and Haldeman was in personal com-
mand of all personnel.” I repeat, “A_Il
personnel at the Re-election Commit-
tee.”

P. Good, sue him.

E. I think you should.

H. He said that I was in personal
command of Liddy and Hunt.

P. I.would sue.

H. And McCord (unintelligible) I
have never met or heard of him.

P. John, this libel thing. You may
as well get at the libel thing and have
yourself a little fun.

E. Might make expenses. )

H. Operating procedure-wise we’ve
got to, or my recommendation would
be that we should maintain a facade
of normal operations as long as you
have taken this position. I don’t think
we want to look like something is radie-
ally changed.

P. Nope.

H. Then I think we should come
into the office at the normal time in
the morning—and a—

P. Right. And have your staff meet-
ing, plus you will be at the meeting
tomorrow with the energy conference
and you should be at the quadriad
meeting. You are right.

H. Go and go as we go along.

P. Unless and until something hap-
pens. Now the only exception here is
Dean. )

H. Dean should not, but nobody
would know whether he does his normal
job or not. But see that nobody gives a
damn, he is not visible.

P. Well, the thing that—

H. And he has been out of here for
a month anyway.

E. Any objection to going to Florida
this weekend, if you go?

P. Would you like to go down?

E. Yes.

H. I don’t expect to get much sun-
shine but—

E. It might help.

H. I think we should unless our
lawyer keeps us here and he could.

P. Yeah. )

H. We normally would and I think
we should. ;

P. Oh, I think you should Bob.
Right, now understand that if they
crack this

H. Oh well, then that would be a
problem. )

E. One concession that I would ask
and that is that people on leave be
considered for use of Camp David
occasionally.

P. Let me say, what I had in mind.
I want you to go forward and if this
thing comes out which T can’t believe,
I want you to go forward at all costs
to beat the damned rap. They’ll have
one hell of a time proyving it. Yours
is a little tougher I think Bob, and
it shouldn’t be—the 300. That’s why I
hope you could raise with the judge
and your attorney—that at least gave
you the law on that point. .

H. Yes, sir. On that point, yeah.
We haven’t gotten into (unintelligible)

of the law at all on obstruction of
justice.

E. He’s briefing that tonight for us.

H. He says its damn tough, loose.

E. He cites Glanzer as the leading
authority on it. He uses it like a
bludgeon.

P. Only if it's a (unintelligible)

E. Oh, he hasn’t given us that yet.

H. He didn’t give us the opinion. He
just said, “I'll tell you in the top that
it’s very tough. It’s Luke’s law and
cases go all ways.”

P. I hope he has an opinion some-
time on the case involving Dean to the
effect (unintelligible) establishing—

H. Why the hell we didn’t see then—

P. Remember I was a little suspi-
cious of Chuck. T was not, after all, I
said, “Damn it, what’s he talking to
these people for?” And remember the
way I put it is, “He was saying, ‘Gee,
I have talked to these guys and they’re
mind-picking.” » .

H. Well, they’re not in error.

P. And I said, “I think they are
taken.” Remember? I said that.

H. Yeah, sure did.

P. Well, I don’t—TI think he was be-
ing taken by the Senator.

E. Well, I think he figured rape was
inevitable so he was going to enjoy it.

P. Bob, remember, 1 said, “I think
they are taking Dean.”

H. Sure do.

E. Well, as I said before. We beat
the rap but we're damaged goods.

P. Right, you can’t go back in the
government, but I will tell you one
thing, you are not damaged goods as
far as I am concerned. It’s one hell of
a thing. The point is that lets wait
and see what happens before we see
where we are,

H. Sure.

P. We ought to expect the worst but
I think that what T would like both of
you to consider 50 per cent of your
time also for editing ete., and so .on,
with the foundation. The foundation is
going to be a hell of a big thing, it’s
bound to be. These first four years are
terribly important and so forth. I
mean after all, you understand, that
looking down the road, looking down
the road, as far as—you say your dad
was good at looking down the road?

H. Yep.

P. If you are indicted and tried and
found innocent, it washes away.

H. Well— .

P. Agree? For government service,
I mean. .

E. Or for the practice of law.

P. I don’t think so. Really?

- E. Well, I think so. I think so. Jeanne
is furious about it.

H. That isn’t true John.

E. It depends on the circumstances.
There is nothing I can be discouraged
about at this point. But I think we've
just about had it. I think the odds are
against it.

H. You can always handle traffic
cases— 1

E. Well T am not too pleased with"
the traffic cases.

P. The hell with the traffic cases.
Well, anyway—

H. Well there’s all kinds of things
we could do.

P. Well T have a foundation. I just
think it is fair, I don’t know whether
I can find anybody to do it. I don’t
know whether you would even do it.
Incidentally, it is terribly important
that poor Kalmbach get through this
thing.

H. I think he is alright.

P. How could he learn? Did you
talk to him there? Did Dean call him
_about the money? :

H. Yes, sir.

P. Does he say what said?

E. Dean told me that he told him
what it was for. I don’t believe him.
Herb said that he just followed in-
structions, that he just went ahead and
did it and sent the money back and—

P. They said they need it for?

‘E. I don’t even know if they told
him what for. It was an emergency
and they needed this money and I
don’t know whether he can get away
with that or if it’s more specific than
that.

P. You can corroborate then Herb
on that one. ~

E. I can if Dean is the accuser. I can.

P. If Dean is the accuser, you can
say that he told you on such and such

a date that he did not tell Herb Kalm-
bach what the money was for.

E. That he has told me—that he has
told me—

P. That’s right—that’s right.

H. If we have to get out of here, I
think the foundation funding—is one
thing—but there is a lot of intrigue
too—I hope to get funding for the
ability to clear my name and spend
the rest of my life destroying what
some people like Dean and Magruder
have done to the President. )

[ )

Telephone conversation between

President Nixon and Assistant Attor-



ney General Henry Petersen, Apru 18,
1973 from 2:50 p.m. to 2:56 p.m.

Operator. Yes, please.

P. Would you get me Assistant At-
torney General Petersen, please?

P. Hello. .

HP. Hello, Mr. President.

P. Well what’s—anything I need to
know today? '

HP. No, sir. There is no significant
developments.

P. Right. Uh, huh. Alright.

HP. Strachan is coming in. Fred Vin-
son, former assistant attorney general
under Johnson, is representing him.

P. Representing who? .

HP. Strachan, I think it is, who is
going to come in.

P. Strachan? Oh, yeah, yeah. Gordon
Strachan. ‘

HP. But there have been no develop-
ments. We are still negotiating. We
have a problem with the grand jury.
The only copy of the grand jury tran-
seript has been locked up in the prose-
cuotor’s office. We have the FBI check-
ing out the reporter on the ground that
they have leaked it. The judge called
us in about it this morning.

P. Uh, huh. Sirica did.

HP. Yeah.
P. About what? About part of it leak-
ing?

HP. He was concerned about leaking
and, of course—

HP. Anderson has been printing
some of it. We have changed reporters.
We haven’t even been bringing it over
here for security reasons. ‘

P. Yeah. I would hope to keep the
grand jury from leaking. But—

HP. Well, you know I don’t want to
go too far on it either, because I don’t
want to get into a diversionary battle
with Anderson.

P. Hell, no. I wouldn’t pay that much
attention to it. I agree, I agree. What
I meant is just do the best to control it.

HP. We are indeed.

P. Because we know that it’s just
wrong. Now we are handling it over
here, I trust, aren’t we? I just told
Ziegler he won’t comment on anything
because it might affect the rights of
either the prosecution or the rights of
innocent people or the rights of de-
fendants.

HP. We are not taking any calls from
them over here. B

P. So that is all we are saying.

HP. You can’t talk to them at all.

P. Fine. -

HP. I was kind of pleased with the
reaction your statement got.

P. I think it was probably the right
thing to say.

. HP. Yeah.

P. What have you got—you haven’t
made—you haven’t finished the thing
with Magruder yet, then, huh? :

HP. No, we haven’t finished the
thing with Magruder. Ah—

‘P. Dean the same, huh?

HP. Dean’s, well, we have . just
backed off of him for a while. His law-

yers want time to think.

.P. T have deliberately, Henry—1I left
Dean in a position where I said look
he was going to be treated like every-
body else because it wasn’t fair, I mean
for him to be at all, you know—what I
mean, like:when we talked about resig-
nation, etec., since he was making some
charges. Well, it isn’t that. Since he
has at least had some private discus-
sions, but they haven’t yet been in the
grand jury forum, so I have to respect
those. .

HP. I think that is right.

P. So that was your suggestion, at
least, that we should not do anything
on Dean at this point.

HP. I think that is right. I think you

ought to just let him sit.
P. AIl I have is just information-—
HP. That’s right. '
P. Basically from' you and from

him, but it is information the gravity

of which I just can’t judge until I set
whether it is corroborated.

HP. You have to treat that as pri
vate, in any event.

P. Private, don’t I? Yeah. And for
that raeson if I were to move to do it—
so I think we are in the right positiol
and, then, fine. OK—then I won’t ex
pect any more from you today. I won’
bother you.

HP. No. I am a little concernee
about Senator Ervin’s committee. They
have just, under the agreement Klein
dienst worked out with Senator Ervin
have called the Bureau and asked ti
see the interview statements of Magru
der, Porter, Sloan and Larue. ‘

P. Oh, my (expletive removed).

HP. Ah, and I feel like I am sitting
on a powder keg there, but I don’l
feel like I can dare go to Senator Er
vin until T get a definite commitment
from Magruder.

P. Yeah, yeah. On Magruder, what’s
waiting besides the committee witk
him? Oh, the deal with the D.C. jail
and—

HP. Well that is right and whether
or not the judge is going to clap him
in right away, and whether or not the
committee is going to put pressure on
him.

" 'P. In other words, you think—youy
haven’t yet tried to talk to Ervin?

HP. No, sir, and I don’t want to until
I can tie him down.

P. "Til youw've got him tied? I get it

HP. Well, I've got to be able to say
that T am coming out with something
public in terms of a charge.

P. I see. Right, right. '

HP. Ybu know, have a valid basis for
asking him to slow it up.

P. OK. Well, in any event, I am glad
you thought the statement went well.
I worked on it to be sure that it didn’t.
compromise anybody one way or the
other and as you noticed too I put the
immunity thing. It leaves the ball in
vour court, but—

HP. I noticed.

P. But on the other hand, I had to
express the view because basically
people are going to ask me, what about
Mitchell, what about, you know, a lot
of people and you know I just can’t be
in this position.

HP. I agree wholeheartedly.

P. Lower people are different, But
you know, upper people, you know,
they might think I am protecting (un-
intelligible).

HP. I agree.

P. OK.

HP. Alright, Mr. President.

P. Fine.

[ )

Meeting between President Nixon
and attorneys John J. Wilson and
Frank Strickler, in the Executive Of-
fice Building office, April 19, 1973,
from 8:26 p.m. to 9:32 p.m.

P. That is my EOB office where I
do alotof... ’

W. Yes. We were—you know those
initials that we were . ..

P. This is were I do most of my
speech writing . . .

S. We saw your Oval room tonight.

P. What’s that?

S. I said, “We saw your Oval Office
tonight.”

P. Oh, you were over there? You
hadn’t seen it before?

S. No. )

W. No, I've never been in it.

P. My gosh. 3

W. You know we are local boys here
and ... :

P. You are going to get to see the
things that tourists see . ..

W. Yes. One of our dear friends is
a dear friend of yours and that is the
Marriotts.

P. Oh, aren’t they great people?

W. Aren’t they? We have represented
them for years—until young Bill got
so he wanted large out-of-town law
firms.

P. Foolish.

W. But Bill and Ollie and I have
been—I have been friends with them
forty years; they are the sweetest peo-
ple in the world.

P. Well, they are really fine Ameri-
cans, and you know—and gee whiz,
they don’t drink themselves but they
make a lot out of selling it.

(Laughter)

S. There was a time when they didn’t
do that, as you well know. i

P. Oh, I know and it’s interesting
they were telling me that they had a
custom now in some of their houses
where they—where they reserve a cou-
ple of floors for people who don’t
smoke. -

W. Yes.

P. So people who come in—incident-
ally, do you guys smoke?

S. I gave it up.

W. I never started.

S. —Five or six years ago. I feel
that ... .

P. You didn’t start? Cigarettes or . . .

S. I was a cigarette smoker—about
three packs a day. When I gave them



up, I missed them. | was a hopeless
addict. :

W. I never smoked in my life.

P. Like some coffee? Uh? Coffee or
Sanka?

W. A little Sanka—would be nice.

S. Coffee.

P. Coffee or Sanka? I have Sanka, 1
guess, Manolo?

M. Yes sir.

P. Get a little sleep tonight.

W. I don’t guess you get very much
(laughter) .

P. Yet all of our other problem:
we've got—we’'ve got the one you've
got. ‘

W. Yes. We admire you so much—
that we both are dyed-in-the-wool Re
publicans. I was just telling Bob Halde
man that T joined the party years ago
I said, “No sign of beating Calvin Cool
idge with a liberal!”

(Laughter)

P. Well, tell me where it stand:
and ... \ -

W. Yes.

P. And, if you will, both from th
standpoint of ‘the people you are rer
resenting and from the standpoint o
the presidency, which, of course, w
got to (unintelligible) and I .. .

W. I can tell you (unintelligible)

P. Oh, sure, one of those thing
where people with the best of inter

See TEXT, A25, Col. 1

TEXT, From A24

tions—I mean everybody. John Mitch-

ell T love. ' :

. W. Of course.

P. He did things here, you know, that
were (unintelligible) on a less, here we
have people who got involved—tangen-
tially. Really and . ..

W. We have had three days—three
different daily sessions with Bob and

- John. | : )

P. Right. . "

W. And two today. And two were ... -

P. (Unintellighle) - : '

W. By our visit to the District At-
torney’s office. - - :

P. Right. :

W. By our visit to the district at-
first, go over the Bob situation. He’s
written a memo of things which boils
down the sensitive area. .. )

P. You’re talking about Haldeman
now. ) : :

W.—Boils down to Bob—boils dewn
to the matter of $350,000.

P. Three fifty, right. I am aware of
that. - : .

W. And-what knowledge he has.. ..

P. And I have questioned him very
thoroughly on all things myself.

W. —Uh—Tm sure you have and he
said that Dean had come to him and
of the need of this money.

P. For what purpose?

W. To help alleviate families and le-
gal counsel of the Watergate people.

P. All right. )

W. And that was one occasion. Later
on, when the money was trasferred
over to the committee, he just wanted
to get rid of it. And he had no inten-
tion as to where it might -go. And—
uh—that’s that. Now we said to.him
that we don’t doubt that— about the
truthfulness and what parties in these
two effects (unintelligible) we said,
“Circumstantially, if it be wrong to
have done this, a jury might think that
he did it with (unitelligible). :

P. If what? If what? That it would
look ... . .

. W.-It’d look like it to an impartial
jury. .

) P, When you put it to a jury it looks
like—it’s just very questionable?

"W. Yes. Yes. . .

S. Depending upon how the testi-
mony comes out of the various people,
it could become an issye.

P. Right.

W. Now that we—he said, “But wait
a minute. What is thig sin? What is
wrong with this?” Well, by a far
stretch, this might be something of ac-
cessory after the fact to a conspiracy
at the Watergate. This, Mr. Presi-
dent . ..

P. Accessory? For what? For the pur-
pose of? ’

W. Of sort of aiding the conse.

_quences. I gave an example of Dr.

Mudd ...
P. Yeah.

 W.—In the John Wilkes Boothe case.

P. Just got that pardon.

W. Yes. I pointed out that he didn’t
commit the crime but he did sort of
aid in the thing afterwards.

. )
P. Right.
W. Uh.

P. Now, I suppose—it was evident? -

I suppose there, too, the motive as to
whether he gave it to Dean with the
knowledge and with the intent of
keeping the defendants quiet. That. ..

W. That would -be the argument.
Uh...

P. The argument of the -prosecution?

W. Yes. : C

S. Exactly. Now, we  don’t know
what Dean will say on this. -

P. Well, I. guess you don’t because
he is involved himself, i

S. Yes, this is right. -

W.But... - =

P. (unintellighle) you’ve got to.

S. We' assume the worst. In our
thinking, we assume the worst.

‘P. Exactly. Absolutely. :

W. Now, we are old prosecutors, Mr.
President. o

P. Good. o

W. And we think that this is not a
case, according to our standards. This
is not an indictable case against Bob.
On the other hand, bear in mind that
we have got a group of zealots—uh,
particularly in Seymour Glanzer who
is a fire-eating prosecutor, and uh—
these zealots always shoot for the top.

P. Sure.

- W. And they are not always consci-
entious enough to, uh ...

P. To see what’s wrong about it.

W. Whether it’s a convicting case
or whetherit's . .. )

P. In other words, they may indict
even though they don’t think they can
(unintelligible).

W. That’s it exactly. I couldn’t—we
couldn’t exclude the possibility that
the prosecutors might take this up. On
the other hand, we—we—we don't
think it amounts to a criminal case
in a practical sense.

P. In other words, if it goes to a
court — you — whoever tries it—you

think you might be able to defend
_him?

S. On the evidence that we now
have, yes. . o

W. Yes. That’s our feeling., -

P. Now, that’s (unintelligible).

W. I want you to-know we are guess-
ing at this, Mr. President. -

P. The letter to Larue—was it to
Larue? - -

S-W. Yes. Yes. )

- P. The letter to Larue—was in one
sense a—(unintelligible) admitted that
he was raising money for the defend-
ants—have you got that?
"~ S. Yes. We have that.

P. You must have it all, you see.

W. Yes, we have that. When I say
that we -don’t think -this is really a
good case, this is just our best judge-
ment.

P. Sure. I understand.

W. We could be as wrong as the
devi] about this thing, and, yet, com-
ing to certain conclusions—that’s the
reason we are presenting it to you in
this way. Now this is Bob’s situation
—Bob and John brought up their prob-

.lems three days ago. I want you to

know that I never knew these guys.
S. But they are wonderful fellows.
P. They are. Theyre great, fine
Americans. And they tell ‘the truth,
too.
W. Yes...
P. I can tell you one thing about
your clients. They’ll tell:you the truth.
They don’t lie.

W. Yes. Yes. Now, now—we took up
John’s situation about the deep six.

P. Yes. This is Ehrlichman.

W. Yes.

P. Okay.

W. And—he tell’s us that he (unin-
telligible) Hunt’s safe and that there

-was a pistol there, there was some

electronic. ..

P. Right.

W. Equipment. Bob din't think it
was bugging. But it was msre record-
ing than bugging. But this is unimpor-
tant. s o ow ©

S.-Arnd a batch of papers. .

‘P. Right. . .

W. Sensitive or semi-sensitive in
nature. )

P. Sensitive in what respect—politi-



cal or other? ‘

W. I don’t think it was much politi-
cal as it was—didn’'t he have some-
thing to do with national security?

P. Yes.

S. I think it was a mixture of both.

W. Was it—guess it might have been.

P. Yeah. ’

W. Anyway. Uh—what I was going
"o say today. ) : ‘

P. Go ahead. :

W. The same day, or almost—jyes, I
do. .
S. So the FBI was brought in and it
seems that ...

P. They got the pistol.

S. They got the pistol. They got the
bugging equipment. And they got 2
large quantity of papers.

P. Which they gave toDean, I mean
to Gray. o »

W. Well; presumably riot this par-
ticular sensitive area. ’

W. Gray, as the head of the depart-
ment, may have seen it. But this is
not the particular instance where we
see Gray. Uh, Dean held pack some
papers.

P. Oh. They gave some of the papers -

to the FBI?

W. Most of them. Now Frank, correct
me this if ...

P. Thank goodness, they did that.

W. Oh yes. It was promptly done,
wasn’t it?

S. Yeah, it was.

P. They saw the papers and they
secured the area and they gave them
to the FBI .

W. Yes.

" P. And other papers though they
didn’t give to the FBI? . :

W. Now, do you recall whether John
said tha{ Dean informed him he was
holding these back.

. B. Yes, not contemporaneously but
later on. )

W. Yes.

S. Dean had...

W. Not at the moment.

S. Not at the moment.

W. Now let me go on. Dean had a
little envelope which was unopened
as far as John was concerned. He was
unaware of its contents, and Gray
was sent for. I think Dean suggested

that Gray be sent’ for. Or maybe that
was John.

S. ’m not sure whether it was Dean
or John—I think it was John, though.

W. We have taxed our system in the
last seventy-two hours.

P. I know, I know.

S. (unintelligible) did not make (unin-
telligible).

W. At any rate, this next meeting
which was almost the next day — it
wasn’t more than twenty-four hours
after the FBI had entered and as John
described — Gray sat over there and

- John sat — he sat here — and Dean
handed Gray this package of papers
which as I say for John’s purposes
was sealed. He never saw the contents.

Gray took it — the meeting did not
last over four minutes. .And left. Now
Gray approached John.

S. Ehrlichman.

W. And said,. I want you to not
mention the fact that I received those
papers.

P. Gray said that? To Ehrlichman?

W. Yes. And John said, “Well, I
can’t do that.” He said, “This was a —
(unintelligible) in this somewhere. I
didn’t know where it was. f
I never asked you what was in it.” And

Gray said, “Well, 'm embarrassed be- -

cause I destroyed it.” Now this is

- Gray’s fault.

P. Terrible damned thing to do.

W. Oh terrible.

S. Wasn’t there a solicitation from
Gray on the basis that he had testified
to the contrary? .

W. I think he had.

S. And the — and then.

P. I don’t think he — as I recall —
he didn’t testify. He told the U.S.
assistant — U.S. — Petersen.

S. He’s got it wrong.

P. Yeah. It’s in the record.

S. John left a rather equivocal res-
ponse to the request. He called him
back, upon reflecting, and said, “L.ook,
I want you to know that T have got the
question of papers.” .

P. John Ehrlichman?

5. John Ehrlichman, yes.

P. Then Gray got to. Petersen and
said, “Look, I did get it. And I
destroyed it.”.

S. Yes, that’s right.

P. That’s the story. ) -

. 8. Incidentally, you mentioned Peter-
sen...

P. And I guess the only basis Gray
could say that.it was political stuff
%ng I didn’t want to appear — pretty

ad.

W. Yes. Yes. With respect to Peter-
sen, I must give you an aside. I don’t
trust him. Myself. .

P. You don’t?

W. We both have had one experience -

with him. He' divulged things we
thought was confidential in a very
serious - matter to a potentially co-
defendant’s lawyer who was an ex-
Department of Justice lawyer when
we played golf over the weekend, uh —
and told him the whole of our business
and I got it back from a lawyer ‘in
Philadelphia who heard it from the
golf partner the next day. And I'm
always aware that Petersen is dealing
with ex-employees of the Department
of Justice.

P. I'll remember that.

W. Well, I wish you would.

P. Well, I've got to talk to him now.

W. T know you do, but I don’t go
around maligning everyone.

P. I know — I understand. T need to

know.

W. He’s on my list of people I don’t
trust. | '
P. I understand.

W. Now, the second phase of John

Ehrlichman was the idea of raising
funds.

P. Which he was approached on.

W. Yes, and this was not to come
out of the three-fifty. This was —

P. He didn’t know about the three-
fifty. .

W. Oh, I think he knew about it —
the — heé must have according to the. ..

P Well. what I meant is, it wasn’t
his field.

W. That’s right. But he did get (un-
intelligible)

2. Raising money and Dean says,
“Can I talk to Kalmbach? And he
said, “Yes.” And— . :

W. And Xalmbach went out and did
raise the money, Now these matters
involving John alarm us even less, if

-1 zan make a comparison, than Bob’s

do. Because I don’t quite— :
P. Do you mean from a criminal

side?

W. Yes, that’s it. See—

P. He said they come to him and
they say, look here. I'm going to raise
Some money. And Kalmbach here sug-
gests okay. You mean that doesn't
make him guilty of something?

W. Well, let’s go back to the acces-
sory after the fact idea. This gets even
removed further then the release of
the money from the (unintelligible).

P. Yeah. -

W. Of the White House fund to be

‘used for that purpose. Now this com-
.pares—this contrast is not to be taken

as making any great division between

. Haldeman and John. Well, frankly,

our judgment .is that neither one can
be successfully prosecuted.

P. Because of what you see here?
T W. Yes. - '

P. . Well, now. wait a minute. Let me
ask you this_though. When you talked
—give me a little rundown of your

-talk_with the U.S. attorney.

W. I certainly have.

P. Have you?

W. Yes, now we have—neither of us
—Js . ¢ I

P. And also give me your judgment
on this thing that Petersen told me
abeut this—rather, I—I—

W. Non-indicted—they’re better—

P. It seems to me the moment they
come out of that, they killed them
selves. They are dead. .

W. Let me, yes. .

P. I have never heard .of that.pro-
cedure before. But .I may be naive
about the law.

W. Let me answer that one, first,
because that is more brief. In con-
spiracy indictment, very frequently
they will name express defendants—
conspirators—and they will name eco-
conspirators by name as well as other
people to the grand jury unknown. But
will not indiet them. Now that's the
(unintelligible) it’s characterized as a
non-indicting. It isn't—the word is not
unindictable—non-indicting.

P. Which means that they were in.
dicted in public



W. Well, it’'s—they certainly are. And
usually from that group they find wit-
nesses who will testify against the de-
fendants. Now that’s what that phrase

Petersen: Dean says I
didn’t want to get rid of
them (the Hunt papers) so
I gave them to Gray. But in
any event, Gray took them
back, end I said Pat where
are they, and he said I
burned them . . . :

President: He burned
them? '

Petersen: I said that’s ter-
rible.

is. It’s commonplace in the law of con-
spiracy. And, uh, I've seen it—I've
been privy to it as a prosecutor myself,

P. Yes.

. W. Pm sure Frank has too. Some of
_that (unintelligitle) it’s a black market.
It might be compared to the treatment
over (unintelligible) that people think
that I'm guilty. o

P. Well, for Bob and John—if they
put them on that list—it kills them.

W. Oh. . .
~" P. 1 mean—it may not. It may not
kill them legally, but it kills them
“from’ the standpoint of the public. .

W. Now, as to our visit with these
gentlement this afternoon. We contact-
ed—we sought to contact—Glazer first,
whom we both know very well, and he
- was—uh—said to be unavailable and
we asked Silbert, whom I had met on
‘one occasion, Frank didn’t know him
at all. . ' -
© P. Yeah. Yeah.

W. And so we were—we made an
engagement for 4:30 and they said—
-this was with—do two things—and that
they were going-to go before the grand
jury and that they were going to be
very busy and they couldn’t give us
mcre -than an hour. We came in—I'm
telling you this so yow’ll be (unintelli-
gible) we were taken into the room at
-(unintelligible) I .began the presenta-
tion by saying that we were there
representing Haldeman and Ehrlich-
man. And I had the-strange feeling—
and I think Frank will—now, you
weren’t there for the first .few minutes
.. 8. I was not there the first ten min-
utes. A

W. I think he indicated ‘surprise to
me—1I think it was a ‘mixture.

F. Glanzer?

W. Yes. He was alone with he until

2a subordinate named- Campbell came
in. And then eventually Silbert.” But
his surprsie to me, I felt was t}_lat in

a certain sense he was surprised that
Haldeman and Ehrlichman -had en-
gaged me. This gave me a little en-
couragement as to whether he thought
that they should engage (unintelligi-
ble). I will tell you why in a couple of
minutes. Uh, secondly, I—he suspected
that we were down there possibly rep-
resenting John Mitchell. And I said,
“Well, that isn’t so. Anymore”—and
he said. “Well, these people—these
perspective people have been switch-
ing counsels,” and he said, “I wasn’t
sure Mitchell was going to keep his
counsel.” And I said, “Who was his

_counsel?” and he said (unintelligible).

Now, somebody said this. But anyway,
uh—I said, “Now Seymour, you know
I have heard you tell me before and

I said I will (unintelligible) if my
clients are being kicked around at the

. courthouse.” I asked him many ques-

tions. Get as many answers as you
can. I don’t come away with many
answers. But I'll get mine. I said, “I
asked you pertinent ‘quiestions and I
am not offended if you say you can’t.”
Now, this is the way we talked. And
we thought he was a little tight today
because he was in-the presence of his
superior. We have found him more
loose—and maybe on other occasions
we’ll be able to get him alone. And I
said, “What have you got planned for
these two? You going to have them be-
fore the grand jury?” He said, “We'll
have an office interview which will
not be recorded. We’ll take no notes
and you can be present while you
take no notes. We want to know what
they will say before we take them be-
fore the grand jury—if we go.”

P. Petersen had told me they were
going to be called before the grand
jury. ) :

W. Well, this is—this is quite DOs-
sible. We’ve got some more to tell you.

P. Tm (unintelligible) about this
thing. ’

W. Silbert arrvied about this time
and I repeated everything that had
transpired. (Unintelligible) and he
-qualified Glanzer by saying, “Well, I
think we are going to have to talk to
the Department of Justice about the
interview.” This wasn’t the interview
versus the grand jury, I don’t think.
.This was. interview at all. Did- you get

“that impression? So, we—then he said

to me—said to us Silbert did—“We see
from the papers that Ehrlichman has

..been conducting investigations.” Can

you admit this? (unintelligible) have
been witnesses. I said, “We would like
to have his notes on this.” And I said
“We had them.” He says, “It’s all in
the paper.”

P. This is true. .

W. Ehrlichman says (unintelligible)
I don’t know and I’m not getting any
answer from him (unintelligible) “Now
Pm going to ask, you what have you
(unintelligible) from . the -other? He
said, “Nobody’s giving us any coopera-

tion.” And then Silbert said, “You
know,” he said, “this will (unintelligi-
ble) against the (unintelligible) prob-
lem. (Unintelligible) and the said, “Well,
if you come up with one of them (un-
intelligible) proceeding (unintelligible)
and then Glanzer came to his rescue
and said,- “What could be-—what is
 morally wrong with this whole thing—
(unintelligible)” then we got into—
they . volunteered this quite interesting
problem. They volunteered that these
leaks from the grand jury were irritat-
ing the hell-out of them. And I said—

P. Do you think (unintelligible) put
it out (unintelligible)?

W. Well, I do too—but they think
a court reporter. I said.

P. Bull (laughter) a court reporter!

W. He says Anderson’s getting. it
right from the court reporter,

S. Fire him.

W. Well, I said, “Why do you bring
the court reporter back the next day
for?” I said, “This is a crime in itself.”

P. And a very bad thing. :

W. They—we didn’t take him seri-
ously. Now, general inquiries. “Oh,”
I said, “How are you proceeding? Are
you proceeding with packages? Have
you got a forerunner of some indict-
ments? Have you got a package of
other people? A second, set of indict-
ments?” He can’t answer that. So I
said, “Well, we understand—we’d be
happy—we know you ecant stay any
longer. Can we leave here. with the
assurance that you will communicate
with us?”’ (unintelligible) — an agree-
ment with us that whatever you're go-
ing to do in the way of getting a grand
jury—we got it pretty well committed
there that (unintelligible) permitted.
The interview would come first.

. P. Yeah.

W. And he, and we left there with
a commitment from them I think
that’s—a commitment for what it’s
worth. (unintelligible) we didn’t—we
didn’t trap people like this. This is a
(unintelligible) thing. Anyway, we left
there with sort of a commitment that
this would happen. Now this wasn’t
much, but. at least. we have kind of
(unintelligible) and then I added a
question. I said, “Are you going to
get around to this before Senator Er-
vin begins .his proceedings?” He said,
rather deliberately, rather hesitating,
Silbert said, “Yes,|they would get
around before then.” Now, I had in
mind the fifteenth of May, which is
(unintelligible).

P. Yeah. )

. W. But that’s the only point—any
point there was. This was a relaxed
meeting except that Silbert is not a
(unintelligible) fellow. He is a serious
man and a business-like man. But
that’s because, it seems to me, I met

im one day (unintelligible) chambers.

P. (unintelligible)

W. He didn’t even remember me
that day. He said, “(unintelligible) who
you are” Glanzer, (unintelligible)
with his boasting—and with some of



his weaknesses. Isn’t that right?

S Oh yes, oh yes. Glanzer (unintel-
ligible).

P. Yeah. He is obviously rough —

W. Oh, he is a rough, rough fellow.
He exaggerates and at times he doesn’t
tell the truth. And at other times he
tells you half the truth. But we couldn’t
go about it any other way today. And
with Silbert practically sitting in his
lav. We couldn’t handle it any other
wav, but when the chips are down —

S. He is obviously clear (unintelligi-
ble) point. - .

P. Do you think he’ll go back and
" (unintelligible)?

W. Oh, I think he will (unintelligible)
but Hunt was before the grand jury
this afternoon.

P. Yeah. }

W. And his lawyer was in two rooms
from wheére we were meeting. .

P. What happened? Of course, no-
body knows what happened.

W. No—and then they—apparently
nobody got the press in, to give them
an opportunity to sée him—he possi-
bly went out a back door. I ran into
a photographer down there and I said,
“Did you get a picture of him?” and
he said, “No—we—they shipped him
out the back way.”

P. Hmmmmm.

W. So, that’s where that stood. ‘Now,
Mr. President, Frank and I—uh—have
these conclusions if I may get the con-
clusions. ’

P. Right.

W. NoW, do you have any questions

before this?

P. No. I'd like your conclusions and
then TI’ll ask some questions. Youve
thought it over. You know what my
questions are.

W. We think—we think that you and
these two men —

P. Let me say my good friend Len
Garment and some others think that
—uh—that Dean out there is a loose
cannon —

S. Yes.

P. Threatening, and all that sort of
thing. And I think obviously what is
happening—and I think that Glanzer

and Silbert are giving, trying to give,.

Dean an incentive to lie in order to

get Haldeman and Ehrlichman. Dean -

is scared and Dean is capable of doing
that. Do you agree with that.

S. I think so.

P. And Mitchell told him so. But, of
course, that wouldn’t get him out of
it. There’s no way he’d (unintelligible)
criminal, (unintelligible). Now, that’s
one point. : ’

W. Let me say this.

P. Yeah. :

‘W. (unintelligible) see if this (unin-
telligible) I don’t know whether Frank
wants to-talk to you about it. When I

President: On March 21 st,

as a result of some serious
charges which came to my
attention, some of which
were publicly reported, I be-
gan intense new inquiries in-
to this maiter . . .

was at that meeting today, I had a
feeling—and here again, it’s only my
(unintelligible) have a feeling that
these two men—Ehrlichman and Halde-
man are really not (unintelligible).

P. But Petersen certainly indicated,
when he came to see me here last Sun-
day—he said Haldeman and Ehrlich-
man should resign, and so- forth (unin-

telligible) it is non-corroborated testi-

mony, you know. General Eisenhower
where Adams was thrown out for this
sort of little thing—the poor guy—he
sort of got — - - :

W. And he served. him.well.

P. For seven years and that damned
vicuna coat. Unfortunate thing.

S. Yes. .

P. But my point is we have very
great pressures, you know-—quite can-
did about this—and say that Haldeman
and Ehrlichman destroyed in the public
mind and they’ll say breach of a public
trust. (Unintelligible) two . questions
that I really think—one, T -don’t want
to do anything—the heat’s going to
be on anyway. I dont want to do
anything that would jeopardize their
case. I want these men to be (unintelli-
ble). T know there is. I really.

W. Quite so. We (unintelligible),

P. The second point, however, I have
(unintelligible) and they know that.
And if—if—uh—you conclude that the
best thing to do is for Haldeman to
step forward and say, “You're not
guilty of a doggone thing.” They have
released the 'grand jury notes. I've
been attacked by the press: I've been
(unintelligible) all this (unintelligible)
outside of this office including (unin-
telligible). In it,” one (unintelligible)
regard to the (unintelligible) as to
whether it affects their (unintelligible)
too in regard to the President. You've
thought of both of those points?

W. We have. Yes. We have.

P. All right. What is your present
conclusion?

W. Well, these. are related items
and in the area of présidential judg-
ment, we are (unintelligible). You
know you’ve had such an awful experi-
ence. Excuse me, if I state it frankly.
I think that either a suspension which
I understood has been proposed by
Petersen on the basis that . . .

P. They’ve been attacked.

W. Yes. ;

P. They’ve been named.

W. But there would be a suspension
or either their resignation is no assur-
ance that they would not be indicted.

P. I asked Petersen that today. He

said it would ...

W. There’s no assurance.

P. That’s right.

W. Yes.

P. Frankly, I said, “Now look here.
If they resign does that mean that—”
I put it straight to him.

W. Well, then my guess is . ..

P. If I thought their resignation
would avoid an indictment, I would
have them resign.

W. Yes, yes sir.

P. All right.

W. Now, I trespass on your area of
judgment when I say—I think that if
they resign or are suspended that this

_ iIs a reflection on the Presidency.

P. Well, if they don’t resign or are
suspended and then are indicted, that’s
all (unintelligible).

W. Well, yes. But if—you have al-
ready announced you would suspend
them then. )

P. That’s true.

W. And ...

P. Anybody who was indicted will be
suspended—anybody who is indicted
will resign. :

W. Is there, except- for their own
(unintelligible) is there any difference
between—if" they stay? By the way,
you know this. T don’t have to tell you.
They are willing to leave.

P. Oh, I know—theyre—(unintelli-
gible) my (unintelligible) absolute (un-
intelligible).

W. And yet on the other hand they
are willing to stand up to this thing.

P. Oh, yes. Yes.

W. If it doesn’t hurt you.

P. Yes.

W. And that’s the reason I look at
these two things in a kind of a
best ... .

P. Right, right, right.

W. Because .of—in an urgent way, I
think if they resign or are suspended
then—that it reflects on you. I think
if they are indicted and you suspend
them or they resign upon indictment,
I imagine that they wouldn't even ex-
pect you to . , . .

P. No—they know (unintelligible) or
if they are even included in this list
of co-conspirators . . . ‘

W. Yes. I just don’t think ...

P. Already said, of course . ..

W. That—there’s any difference.. I
really don’t. ) )

P. What do you think, Frank?

S. This is my feeling. 1 feel that
resignation now by these two gentle-
men will be a tremendous reflection
on the Presidency. There are—the ef-
fect to it—because the public state-
ment says that this is only in Senator
Ervin and other sources, because there
iIs no evidence to tie them into a
criminal situation. Now if they stepped
out at this point there is going to be
a public feeling that this is an admis-
‘sion of guilt and this is going to flow
“over from them right to the (unintelli-
gible) and I have a very strong feeling



that this is not one—and I don’t want
to say you shouldn’t run from it. I_t’s
not running from it—but it’s facing up
to it. That’s the way I feel about it.
P. Now, on the other hand—then
just take—you would say that you
would lean in the direction of taking
the risk which there would be—that
they may be named as so-called co-
conspirators? And, if they are, then
we just have to move in. )
W. That’s it. As I see this, Mr. Presi-
dent, and I hope this time schediile
works out—it is possible that if these
gentlemen submit to this informal in-
terview—and we -haven’t decided that
question yet—but I think we are lean-
ing toward doing it and I think'they
are leaning toward having it, too. And.
“maybe we will be present at the inter-

view. And I told them, I said, “We .’

don’t sit silent in these interviews.
We’re not just spectators. We ecover
for our client. And if the question is
unfair, I enter into the act.

P. Absolutely.

W. Oh, yes. This is not a thing where
we are throwing the sheep to .the
wolves. And so, they, I think they—
we didn’t make a decision, but I think
they—I think they are inclined to
think that way. Did you get that?

P. I wonder if you could give that
interview soon? Is there any way? ‘If
you could get that timing some way—
or other.

W. I think that— :

P. Or maybe you don’t want it soon.

W. This was a little (unintelligible)
that I had with him. Silbert turned .to
me and said, “(Unintelligible).” He
said, “The man who is being talked
about seeks the interview, or seeks-to
go before the grand jury, I—this, T
never would seek. You are in there
alone with no counsel and the prose-
cutor has been in there for months
and he controls the grand jury and
this is the score—of the rule. And I
said—now the other point is whether
we would ask for the interview or that
he would call us for it. T said, “Listen,
Silbert, (unintelligible) not taking" it
in the order in which the thing is sup-
posed to. You suggested, first, that
you want them for the interview. Why
don’t you play your cards? Why don’t
you call upon us first? I would prefer
it that way.”

P. In other words, wait ’til they're
ready? _

W. Yes. Yes, I would. Uh,now I...

P, I told Petersen they’d come any-
time he wanted them. That’'s the way
I felt it. )

W. Well, this is—we did not resist
it. (Unintelligible) any idea (unintel-
ligible) to the interview for. It Wasn’t
that at all. It wasn’t that we said, “If
they didn’t come—nothing like tha_t.”
But I have said—Frank, if you dOn’_t
agree with this, please tell _the Presi-
dent. )

S. No—Whenever I don't disagree
with John—I agree.

W. He's...

S. But I am not hesitant to disagree.

P. I understand. )

W. Oh yes—he is. He’s just awful
at times.

P. Good. '

W. And he’s always willing to be
critical when he thinks I'm going
astray.

P. Let me ask—in other words, your
advice at the present time is stand
with these men, because basically - if
you flush them now, it’s going to prob-
ably hurt—let me put it this way—it
will hurt: their case. Wouldn’t it?

W. Yes. That’s right.

P. Unless we can look at their case
first and then everybody. It will hurt
their case, don’t you think?

W. I—It will—in the public eye,

P. And you think that—but—and my

point is—so take the risk of going down

and letting them be indicted and then
if they—

W. Well, so you take a risk, hope-

fully, of the interview.

P. Oh, the interview. .Certainly.

W. Yes.

P. Then what? .

W. Well, let’s find out—let’s find
out ... :
" S. Then you take another look at
it...

W. What question they ask and what
they appear to have and what they
are after—and then reappraise this
situation. This—thig thing, Mr. Presi-
dent, in my judgment has to be played
in steps. 3

P. Don't go too fast?

W. Well, no.

P. You don’t know how much they
have and what they can prove? .

W. That’s it, exactly. )

P. Then, you got to remember Dean,
~as I have said, is a Ioose cannon,

W. I know he is. :

P. The damnest charges you've ever
heard. Some of them are unbelievable,

W. Yes. :

P. This fellow that was sitting in

here and who in the office of the Presi-
dent—a very bright young guy and
these guys would talk to him and so
forth—but he now wants to drag them
down with him., :

W. Yes. Oh, he’s bad.

P. They must have told him what [
they—I think—have told Dean that, “If
he’ll—if he can get Haldeman and Ehl-
lichman—he gets immunity.” Now, on
that point, do you want Petersin "to-
give him immunity, or not?

W. Uh.

P. Dean.

W. Well:

P. Should he? '

W. Ubh. Let me — as T understood,
they were hung up on that right now.

P. They are.

W. Now.

P. See, that’s why—I put out a state-
ment that no major figure should be
given immunity, ' il

W. Let me tell you—

See TEXT, A26, Col. 1
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P. Basically, because I think it would
look bad if—(unintelligible) from our
standpoint. What do you think about

| it?

W. Let me tell you abouf the two
kinds of immunity, may I get to this?

P. Sure—anything.

W. The prosecutor has the power, of
course, to say I'm going to (unintelli-
gible) that man, usually use him as a
witness and he may have other reasons
(unintelligible). So, he’d get case im-
munity. But it gets to the prosecutor
now to use him as a witness and he’d
involve in the cross-examination of (un-
intelligible). You admit he’s named
you, involving your total service. You
are going scott free while you hope
that this will contaminate him before
the jury.

P. I see.

W. So that’s case immunity. Now,
the immunity statute that has been on
the federal statutes for years—up to
1968—was a confusing statute. It was
to be co-terminus with the Fifth
Amendment. That is to say, that no
testimony was to be used against you.
But the (unintelligible) in the court
has variously confused. It was because
of that fact and so nobody would ever
believe that it was co-determinus with
the Fifth Amendment. So in ’68, per-
haps it was, thereabouts, Congress
- passed a statute which we call “use

amendment”—use means use of the
testimony. This does not exonerate him
from indictment. This merely says that
what you tell us cannot be used against
you, except for perjury.

P. I see. :

W. And that we can turn around and
indict you the next day if we can in-
dict you on independent evidence, hav-
ing no source. So we call it case im-
munity in the instance where the pros-

. ecutor turns a fellow loose, and that’s
it: 'And use immunity. Now I don’t
know whether Dean is dickering for—
by the way, this use immunity is a
very elaborate procedure. This Attor-
ney General must ask the distriet
judge for it and the district judge gives
it to him. As far as I know, I guess this

- is an open court proceeding. We con-

sidered one but it never seemed to
work.

S. I mean, we got them sufficiently
confused enough at one time on this
very question, but—

W. But we got it resolved in the
meantime. But this is a—this is a fairly
new statute—but if this means—in the
use immunity case—that the man can
incriminate — get himself immunity.
Now this is devastating where there is
a witness on the stand too.

P. Yes.

W. This is a weak link in the prose-
cutor if he has to use a withess who
got immunity by trading off his friends.
And for that reason I don’t know what
~ae is trading with you—trading with



trading loose on this whole mess—

P. Yeah. ' )

W. Or whether he’s trading him
loose on himself.

P. I don’t think Dean’s lawyers—
Schaffer is his name. Do you know
him?

S. Who is he?

P. I think Dean’s lawyers are just
trying fo get him off.

W. Yes. On this one case.

P. Off the whole damned thing.

S. What we have found in other
cases with Glanzer is that they don’t
want to go to the elaborate statutory
procedure and just want to have an
oral understanding, “If you cooperate
with us, we’ll give you our word we
won’t prosecute you.”

P. That’s what they told Dean.

S. That’s generally their procedure
when there are conspirators.

W. This is Petersen’s style. He
practically gave us this in another
case but he double-crossed us gently
and we just don’t believe him. You
see, let me tell why we—why we are a
little cocky. And maybe this—this is a
bad basis for judgment. But a very
prominent national industrialist was
charged with — threatened with per-
jury before a grand jury. In order to
get him to testify against a dubious
lawyer and it was said that Mitchell
wanted to get and uh—the man had
been threatened by—on the perjury
thing before the grand jury. If a man
gets indicted he’s not entitled to

W. (unintelligible). We studied law
for two years on that case until finally
we got alarmed and we brought our
client and we said, “Mr. So and So.
We've got to take a chance. The time
is running out on you, the time is
running out on the District Attorney,
but if you just want to stand the way
you’ve stood it for two years and—you
can’t do that for two years—it's your
risk. You can only judge us as you
would be judged.”

P. By the fact.

W. He says, “To hell with it. T will
stand up to it. He hasn’t got a perjury
case. He didn’t say anything.”

S. What this was—they were apply-
ing the screws to get this industrialist
to testify against the lawyer more than
they wanted the one against the in-
dustrialist. They didn’t have the evi-
dence against the industrialist but
they would just sit down in that office
and swear they had enough to return
an- indictment. This—this, I think—
this is what they are doing. I am con-
fident that they are going to tell each
one of these witnesses that are scat-
tered around — potential witnesses
against Mr. Ehrlichman and Mr.
Haldeman — they are putting the
serews on them — they are scaring
them. And they are using psychology.
Now this overflows—it overflows on

John, it may and the (unintelligible).

You have to recognize this—have to re-
cognize what we’ve got here. Go from

that to the merits of the case—this is
what I am trying to do, and when I
look at it from the merits of the case,
I don’t think they have a criminal
case against these gentlemen at this
point.

P Even on conspiracy? You see, the
fchlng is, I understand that conspiracy
1s very broad—

S. Qne overt act and they can bring
conspiracy.

P. But you have to have on overt
action.

W. Not on the part’ of every defen-
dant. Not on the part of every defen-
dant.. But the overt act could be in it-
self innocent if they are part of. the
pattern.

P. I think that is really what they -

are going to try to nail Haldeman and
Ehrlichman on. Not on the—not the
Watergate thing—they can’t do that.
(unintelligible) had approved the bud-
get that (unintelligible). They ecan
never prove that whole thing. Never
prove that that’s what (unintelligible)
never prove that.

S. Sure. Sure.

P. But on the otherhand, they will
say that on the threefifty— “Halde-
man and Ehrlichman were involved
with Dean and Magruder in an effort
to get the money to keep the defen-
dants quiet.” What’s the answer to
that? (unintelligible) MeCord—you say

W. Well, of course — Dean’s — if I

understand John and Bob correctly — -

Dean’s presentation goes no further,
as far we know, than money to take
care of their families. )

P. That’s right.

W. And legal counsel.

P. That’s right. )

W. Well, you might say -ecircum-

stantially that helping the defendants— -

P. Yeah. <
W. And (unintelligible) it, but it
isn’t quite as wrong as — ‘having to

pay the money to the defendants for
the purpose of shutting their mouths.

P. Yeah. The other thing — there was
perhaps one instance — very little —
very little where it said there is the -
matter of (unintelligible). I am con-
fident their motive in every instance
was to help their families and with
their legal counsel.

W. Yeah.

P. I can’t see that that’s wrong.

S. I cannot either. No, there’s no
crime in this. And we — we asked
them because the innuendos and in-
frences of pay-off to keep the defend-
ants quite — yes — surfaced quite a
while ago.

P. Well, McCord has said it. Yes,
and the defendants may so now testify.

S. Yes. That’s right. But none of these
actions have we been able to pin
down occurred after these allegations
arose, This to us —

P. 1 see your point.

S. Is significant. If they had —

P. If they knew that these allegations:
had been made and they still were
(unintelligible).

S. Yes. That’s right. If they were
chargeable with newspaper stories of
allegations of payoffs and then they
sent the money over, for the families —

P. I think there were newspapers
stories that the defendants were getting
money and so forth, but the allega-
tions that they weer paid off to keep
quiet — T think it was the first time
in court — but you better check that.
But I know — I don’t think anything
after that. It is a point worth checking.

W. You know, Mr. President, it may
appear to you and I repeat only be-
cause I, (unintelligible) if you had the
interview (unintelligible) and given
these two men together on the basis
of what we call the vernacular of
capital appeals. .

P. Oh, I understand.

W. And, I really —

P. Well, there are no good choices
in a case like this.

W. No.

P. Just take the least bad one.

‘W. That’s right.

P. Your point is that, which has some
merit to me, that probably it’s just as
bad — let’s look at it — at its worst.
It’s just as bad to sink them now as it
is to sink them if they are indicted.

W. Sure. :

P. Isn’t that the point?

W. Yeah.

P. If they are indicted, then I’ve
given them every chance. And if they
are indicted, we’ll let them go.

W. That’s right.

P. If on the other hand they are not
indicted —

W. You may —

P. You have to remember, though,
that they may even if they are not
indicted — this is the argument that
these prosecutors and Petersen will
make — that if they are not indicted,
they will be indicted in the public mind
with all this stuff.

W. That’s right.

P. Well, put your hat on now.

W. If they are named as not in-
volved—

P. Not named at all. Not named at
all Because of the newspaper stories,
and the leaks and the columns and in
the attacks by the Weickers, et cetera
—these men-are going to be really
merciless by—Dean’s testimony. They
are going to be indicted in the public
mind. Do you think their usefulness
will be destroyed by that?

S Won’t there come a time when
they will testify before Senator Ervin’s
Committee and have a chance to make
their public. presentation?

2. Yes. Well. no. I think they will
be testifying in court before that.

S. In court before then.

P. 1 don’t see how—I personally
don’t see how the Ervin. Committee
can possibly be allowed to go forward
at a time when these court suits de-
velop.

S. Yeah. They will probably say that



(unintelligible) too.

W. Going back to the Petersen—

P. Yeah.

W. And here again you must take
my observations with the fact that I
am prejudiced against him.

P. Yes. Tell me about—

W. Dean’s getting off the hook, pos-
sibly,

P. For having revealed too much to
Dean?

V. No. From indicting your top men.

P. He didn’t want to indict them.

W. Well, yes. And I — in other
words—

P. Well, he doesn’t seem to he con-
cerred about indicting Mitchell. He
is concerned—he is petrified. And
Mitchell will be indicted. ;

W. That’s what I am told. I have .

never been in quite this far as they
are with this situation, but I know—

P. You mean they are going to be
reluctant to indict the two top men.

W. That’s—that’s what I would say
except you know—I would put it this
way—DPetersen will handle—this prob-

lemm. I guess—a holdover from the

Democratic adminisiration.
P. That’s right. He is.
W. Well, I doubt (unintelligible)
F. What’s your judgment?
S. I was following Petersen. I don’t
know his (unintelligible)
W. I said, “His background — his

background as a Democrat—"

S. Oh, Assistant Petersen?

W. I thought as the prosceutor he
would love to—unless he was just
crazy or ruthless to want to indict the

top of the ladder. :

S Without the strongest case and I
think— | .

P. He didn’t want to indict unless
he can convict. . L

S. Yes. .But this is not one. I don’t
think he would throw in your two top
assistants—into an indictment as de-
fendants, without clear evidence
against them.

P. How about this co-onspirators—
not-indicting? Think they would do
that? )

S. Not wiithout clear evidence. I
equate either one as being one and
the same. " :

P. I do, too. Because they know if
they are named as that then I would
have to suspend them. They have to
fight that. It’s a hell of a procedure—
that co-conspiracy. )

W. Yes. But it’s been going on since
time immemorial.

P. Unindicted co-conspirators?

W. Yes.' And using that phrase the
man who hands down unindicted guys
would say—and others to the Grand
Jury unknown-—so they have a sweep-
ing cover that way in getting them
confused. I just think—

P Well, at this point, I think the
thing to do is to stand firm.

W. That’s what I wanted to say.

P. Stand firm.

W. Let’s play this almost—

P. Don’t panic

W. That’s a very good phrase. And
let’s play this slowly and as things de-
velop and take another—

P. These are good men. I just hope
we can save them. It’s a miserable
thing to have them go through:

W. But you do know, I am sure, we
have said to you that while we have
their interests — well, I'll say, not
primarily, but largely—in our heart,
they are—because they are our friends.

P. Sure.

W. We are equally interested in this
possibility.

P. T understand. :

W. We think it spills over other
people.

P. If anything’s done now—Ilet’s just
sit it out awhile—take the smears for
awhile.

S. One thing I was wondering and
I hesitate to bring it up because it is
more of my problem. The statement
from Huston—interviews in depth with
your top assistant that you have gone
into the facts with them—that you've
put your confidence in them—believe
what they say.

P. If I said that to them?

S. Yes.

P. Want me to say that?

S. Yes. *

P. Want me to say that? ‘

S. Well, ’'m wondering, I'm curious
—and you put-this critic and foe that
you have had this in-depth contact

. with him on this basis—that you be-
" lieve them—you plece your faith and

credit in them—and from what they
have told you—they have not done
anything wrong.

W. If you come to the conclusion to
do this, Mr. President, and while I

like Frank’s presentation of that—I'm '

concerned about the credit.
S. I haven’t given it any thought.
W. But I think you could add—TI'm

not trying to get any bouquets for this .

and their counsels then (unintelligible).
I don’t know that you want to say that,
but support for you because that—

P. Their counsels advise me that.

W. No, not advised (unintelligible)—

P. That they have not— A

W. That they have not—I mean I
don’t—

P. I think the timing on that—let’s
have that in a reserve—I think that’s
a good point. )

W. I wouldn’t mix the (unintelligi-
ble)— '

P. Let’s let Easter go by—hope the
weekend survives,

W. Now Magruder isn’t coming back

’til Monday, have you been informed
of that?

P. No.

W. They heard that‘this afternoon
while— '

"P. Hunt was th‘ére today.

W. Yes.

S. But, somebody is coming in tomor-
row—it was flashed by very rapidly

In an exchange. I don’t know who it
was. -

W. The thing is if they can work
and we’re going to be—obviously, we’ll
see these men tomorrow again,

P. We appreciate your work,

W. And, any time over the weekend
that they—

P. You going to go back and talk to .
Glanzer again some time?

W. Yes, aren’t we, Frank?

S. Oh yes, there’s always been that
we have a formal conference—then
maybe another one. Then you can
drop in the office and see them in-
formally and see—you go down on
another matter and Seymour is very
cooperative. '

W. You couldn’t do that initially—
this had to be a scheduled conference.
He had a man there—he didn’t know
us and besides he was jumping in first
(unintelligible). )

S. The problem—that we should be
trying to get information at Seymour
Glanzer’s level and you’re in conver-
sation with the Assistant Attorney Gen-
eral, but yet it seems worthwhile and
productive. :

P. I'm not sure that Glanzer is tell-
ing the truth.

W. Well, on occasion I've never been
(unintelligible) to that—He did some
good opinions.

S. You know why I remember that
case. He was an Assistant Attorney
General then but—

W. Yes, he was one of the (unintel-
ligible)—

S. He was doing all the work. Well,
we’re at your disposal.

P. Well, as I say, you've got honest
men; I know they’re telling the truth.

W. I'm extremely impressed with
them:. .

P. Well, they’re touched by this be-
cause anybody who was in the cam-
paign is touched by everything about
it. And frankly, Mitchell’s an honest
man. He just wasn’t tending the shop—
he had problems with his wife—these
jackass kids and other fools around
did this thing and John should have
stepped up to it—that’s what happened
in my opinion, And I think I—

W. Sure, I know. )

S. Well, we’re available to them and
if you would like to see us again any
time you want to and we can tell you
always be delighted.

P. Well, I appreciate that.

W. It’s nice to talk to you even under
these circumstances.

P. Well, we hope that by golly—that
we’ll talk under better—

S. Last time I saw you it was
crowded—out at the Wardman Park
—the Shoreham—I could have lifted
my feet off the floor and watched you



—you and your family on the podium.

P. What was that?

S. That was election night.

P. Election night—you were there?
Oh boy. That was a great night? Well,
that was what it was all about.

S. Yes, it sure was.

P. Well, we’ll survive this. You know
—people say this destroys the admin-
istration and the rest—but what was
this? What was Watergate? A little
bugging! I mean a terrible thing—it
shouldn’t have been done—shouldn’t
have been covered up. And people
shouldn’t have and the rest, but we’ve
got to beat it. Right.

W. Everybody does—the Democrats
have been doing—going onfor 20 years,
(Laughter)

S. Mr. President, on behalf of my
daughter Nancy—she asked me todoit.

P. How old is she?

S. She’s sixteen. ]

P. Next time you come in—7T1I give
her a little something—You've got—
they have good men to (unintelligible).

e

Meeting between President Nixon
and Assistant Attorney General Henry
E. Petersen, Oval Office, April 27, 1973
(5:37 p.m. to 5:45 p.m.).

P. Come in.

HP. How are you today?

P_ How was your hard day?

HP. I'm sure no harder than yours;
sir. .
P. Sit down, sit down. I was down
in Mississippi today. We have gotte‘n‘ a
report that, ah, that really we’ve got
to head them off at the pass. Because
it’s so damned—so damn dangerous to
the Presidency, in a sense. There’s a
reporter by the name of Hersh of the
New York Times you probably know.

HP. He’s the fellow that did the
Vietnam stories.

P. Right. Who told Bittman, who
told O’Brien, apparently that they have
information—Hersh has information I
don’t know. You can’t ever tell who
is saying ‘this is from Hersh” or “this
is from Bittman.” Information indicat-
ing that Dean has made statements to
the prosecuting team implicating the
President. And whether—and whether
—The Post has heard similar rumors.
Now, Henry, this I've got to know.
Now, understand—I have told you
everything I know about this thing.

HP. I don’t have any problem with
that, Mr. President, and Tl get in
touch with them immediately, but—

P. Who? >

HP. With Titus, Silbert and Glanzer
and Campbell? Who are—

P. Do you mind calling them right
now?

HP. No, sir.

P. OK. Say, “Now, look. All of your
conversations with Dean and Bittman,
do they implicate the President?” Be-
cause we can't—I've got—if the U. S.
attorney’s office and, ah—

HP. Mr. President, (unintelligible) I
had them over there—we had a kind
of crisis of confidence night before
last. I left to come over here and I

left my two principal assistants to
discourse with Silbert and the other
three. And in effect it concerned me
—whether or not they were at ease
with my reporting to you, and I
pointed out to them that I had very
specific instructions, discussed that
with them before on that subject, and
—well— g ;
P. Yes.

HP. As a consequence—I kind of
laid in to Titus yesterday and it
cleared the air a little bit, but there
is a very suspicious atmosphere. They
are concerned and scared. Ah—and I
will check on this but I have absolute-
ly no information at this point that—

P. Never heard anything like that—

HP. My gosh—As I said—

HP. Mr. President, I tell you, I do
not consider it, you know, I've said
to ‘Titus, “We have to draw the line.
We have no mandate to investigate
the President. We investigate Water-
gate.” and I don’t know where that
line draws, but we have to draw that
all the time.

P. Good. Because if Dean is impli-
cating the presidency—we are going
to damned well find out about it.
That’s—that’s—because let me tell
you the only conversations we ever
had with him, was that famous March
21st conversation I told you about,
where he told me about Bittman com-
ing to him. No, the Bittman. request
for $120,000 for Hunt. And I then
finally began to get at them. I ex-
plored with him thoroughly, “Now
what the hell is this for?” He said,
“It’s because he’s blackmailing Ehr-
lichman.” Remember I said that’s
what’s it about. And Hunt is going to
recall the seamy side of it. And I
asked him, “Well, how would you get

it? How would you get it to them?” so

forth. But my purpose was to find out
what the hell had been going. on be-
fore. And believe me, nothing was
approved. I mean as far as I'm con-
cerned — as far as I’'m concerned
turned it off totally.

HP: Yeah. My understanding of law
is—my understanding of our responsi-
bilities, is that if it came to that I
would have to come to you and say,
“We can’t do that.”” The only people
who have- jurisdiction to do that is
the House of Representatives, as far
as I'm concerned.

HP. I'll call them. Do you want me
to call from here or outside?

P. Use the Cabinet Room and you

wil lbe able to talk freely. And who

will you call, who will you talk to
there? . )

HP. T'1 call Silbert. If he’s not there,
I'll get Titus. |

P. You’ll say that “This is the story
some New York Times reporter has
and Woodward of The Post, but Hersh

is reporting that Dean had made a -

statement to the prosecutors.” Now
understand that this is not a grand

jury thing. Now damnit, I want to
know what it is.

HP. I'll call right away.

P. And I need to know.

HP. Yes, sir.

oS

Meeting between President Nixon
and Henry Petersen and Ronald Zieg-
ler, Oval Office, April 27, 1973. (6:04-
6:48 p.m.)

P. Come in. As, like all things, some
substance, some falsity.

HP. Ah, last Monday Charlie Shaf-
fer was in the office, and a continua-
tion of the negotiations. Charlie Shaf-
fer is the lawyer. Charlie is a very
bright, able bombastic fellow. And he
was carrying on as if - we're making a
summation in a case. And he said—
that—ah he was threatening, “We will
bring the President in—not this case
but in other things.” What “other
things” are we don’t know what in the
hell they are talking about.

P. Don’t worry.

HP. “In other areas,” more specifi-
cally is the word he used. That they
regarded—and didn’t consider of im-
portance they regarded as the elabora-
tion of his earlier threat. You know,
“We’ll try this Administration—Nix-
on—what have you, what have you.”
There’s a new conversation by them
with Dean since the Sunday we first
met (unintelligible). Whatever is said
is through Shaffer the lawyer.

P. What else do you have besides
that?

"HP. Well, let’s see. They did say that
at a later date in the proceedings that
Dean went to the President, and I as-
sume that’s the February or March or
whatever that date was. But that’s in
the course of your trying to find out.
Ah, today they were after the Cubans
and the receipt of the -money which
they confirmed. Dorothy, Hunt on be-
ing the intermediary that passed it
through. They are going to have But-
terfield in in a few minutes.

P. What T am getting at, Henry,
about this threat that—

HP. There’s no more on that other
than‘ I've just told you. v

P. Why 'in the hell can’t we stop
though — the paper that Hersh — to
think that to bring the President with
a thing like that (expletive removed),
you know. Understand. Let me say this.
If it were in with the grand jury I
want to know that too.

HP. All right. Well—

P. (expletive removed.) You've got
to believe me. I am after the truth,
even if it hurts me. But believe me, it
won’t. )

HP. I understand that, you see. But,
you know— .

P. Just like it won’t hurt you. We.
are doing our job. And somebody was
in here the other day and they were
saying, well, Dean is going to black-
mail you because of something you’re
supposed to have told me. And I said



(expletive removed), I said, you have a
right to tell me what was going on.

HP. The only thing I think is that
it’s either Dean or Schaffer or this
McCandless. Now, Shaffer says that
it’s McCandless that’s leaking this stuff
to the press.

P. Who is McCandless? o

HP. McCandless is another lawyer
that Dean has retained

P. He’s leaking to the press that
they are going to try the President,
huh? (unintelligible)

HP. Other areas, but what those
areas are, we don’t know. Now, Silbert
said, “Stop.” So, he didn’t let them
go on. He said, “Why get into that?”
Ah— -

P. It’s not this case. Go ahead. (un-
intelligible)

HP. Well, I told those fellows, look.
I told those fellows this. I know you
can’t believe these reporters all the
time. He’s had one or preferably two
weeks—

P. Pm glad we have that then. When
I heard that, T thought that Dean must
be out of his damned mind or some-
thing. The man is not, ah-—I don’t
know. Going to have Butterfield in?
Good. C

HP. Well, that’s in connetion with
the $350,000. Now, we are going to
have Jack Caulfield in to the Grand
Jury.

P. That’s on, because he worked on—

HP. He set up the intermediaries
that were being used as couriers to
transfer money either to or from La-
Rue. T :

P. Oh, he did? Caulfield, eh. What
would be the liability- of a man like
that? Would he be a conspirator?

EP. If it’s done with knowledge—
if it’s done with knowledge—

P. Yeah, with knowledge\ But also,
there is a certain—it has to be willful
or—there are two’ statutes— -

HP. When you talk about conspiracy,
you are impugning knowledge, and you
impugn the knowledge of the facts
unless there’s specific evidence of
the—

P. (unintelligible) I just don’t want
to see guys get hurt that didn’t know
what the hell they were doing.

HP. And we don’t want to either.

P. (unintelligible)

HP. But we are looking for wit-
nesses, to be perfectly honest.

P. Sure.

HP. Strachan. they are still negotiat-
ing with him on having flunked the lie
detector test T

P. Maybe the best thing to do is to
plead guilty to the’ prosecutor—plead
guilty? . ;

HP. Well, you know, ah—

P. What? _

HP. Basically, I mean, what we are

telling Strachan is the he has got to.

make the choice whether he wants to
be a witness or a defendant. “Yoyu can
Jjust hang tough, and you can be tech-
nically be a witness.”

(Ziegler enters)

P. That story, according to, Henry
Petersen—he just called the U.S. At-
torney’s office. It is totally false story.
Needs to be totally knocked down.

Z. Yes, sir.

P. Read me exactly what you can
recall the U.S. attorney—

HP. Called U.S. attorney and said
that in the past an attorney repre-
senting John Dean was in his office
and indicated that if we insisted on
Dean, that they would be tying in the
President, not in the Watergate, but
in other areas.

P. That’s not Watergate, but in
other areas.

HP. Whatever that means.

P. Well, that’s fine. Just let them
tie us in.

HP. Now, to put that in context,
they had previously said that if we
insisted on trying Dean and not Ehr
lichman and Haldeman that they
would be “trying this Administration,”
the President and what have you.

P. So basically that’s the game they
are playing.

Z. I can understand how—you indi-
cated that their attorney, the other
day, said they would resist in tying
in—did you say? In not the Water-
gate, but—

HP. They would be tying in the
President. I mean it was an emotional
statement.

P. Emotion at tying in the Presi-
dent, not in Watergate but in other
things. Right.

HP. Not in the Watergate, but in
1(;ther things. Whatever they would
e._

P. When was this?

HP. Monday. Monday of this week.

P. Monday of this week.

HP. Monday of this week.. ‘

P. Well, I think this—I think this
thing we just hit back on.

HP. Well, that’s the only thing. And
I don’t know that. And they had no
idea.

P. But Dean gave them

HP. What?

P. But Dean give them

HP. Oh, yes, but, but

P. That basically ties in the White
House. )

HP. That was one of the reasons
that so important to disclose that be-
cause they could have hung that over
our heads, you see and— )

P. You remember my call from
Camp David. I said, “Don’t go into the
national security stuff.” I didnt
mean—

HP. Oh, I understand.

P. ’Cause I remember I think we
discussed that silly damned thing. I
had heard about it, just heard about.
You told me that. That’s it, you told
me. \

P. What (expletive removed) did they
break into a psychiatrist’s office for?
I couldn’t believe it.

RZ. T think what all of this is—

|

P. What do you think it is7

RZ. I think it’s the attorney

P. T think he is bargaining for Dean.

RZ. I had occasion to talk to Dean
a few minutes ago, but a ecall—

P You did?

RZ. He is a very good friend of mine.

P. Well, tell us what you—now un-
derstand we have to watch how we
handle him now, beause we’ve got

RZ. It was a very good conversation.
He /said, “Ron, I am issuing no state-
ments.” Incidentally, he said, “I got
a telephone call.”

P. A telephone call from the Presi-
dert. You know, that shows you what
a person he is. I called—you know—
some nice things we do—I called six
people members of my staff. I called
Ron, Henry Kissinger, Ehrlichman, and
Rose, my secretary and John Dean. I
jusi go down a list of people, and just
say “I want to wish you a Happy
Easter.” That’s all I did. And it’s all
over the press!

FP. Well, you know, we got a report.
Agnin, I got it through Charlie Shaffer
that he was pleased and elated and
reassured. And you know, as a human
being—

P. I don’t want to hurt John Dean.
Believe me—TI'd like to help him.

RZ. He went out of his way to make
the point to me, just in this two-minute
conversation, he said “I didn’t make
that telephone call, Ron.” I don’t know
who may have done it cause he
knows—

P. Oh, you did not discuss this crazy
Hersh story.

RZ. No.

r. Now the problem about this Hersh
story, is that if the Times comes out
and runs this—

RZ. Oh, no. As a matter of fact I
talked to Clifton Daniels this after-

~noon, and he didn’t raise it.

.F. The Woodward story. Woodward
also has the same story. Woodward of
The Post

PZ. Woodward said that reliable
sources said that someone had im-
plicated the President in their testi-

mony, or referred to him.

P. In the Dean story?

RZ. No, that was Hersh.

P. What did Woodward say?

RZ. Woodward said they had two
stories; one was the fact that it was

- reaching a new plateau, and he was

not ready to read the story because he
was still working on it, and Woodward
was taking the position that he was
confused and needed to talk to some-
one to get a perception.

. HP. They are trying people.

RZ. What they are trying to do is to
get a fix on what’s happened over here.

P. OK. Take-a hard line. Gergen to
Woodward. Anything on that they bet-
ter watch their damned cotton picking
faces. Because boy, if there’s one thing
in this case as Henry will tell you,

‘since March 21st when T had that con-

versation with Dean, I have broken my
ass to try to get the facts of this case.
Right? Tried to get that da__mn__Liddy



to talk. We tried to get—finally got
Gray to refresh his memory. (unintel-
ligible). We finally got—incidentally,
we put Ruck in that thing rather than.
—1I didn’t think based on what you had
t0ld me earlier, we should put Feld—
because there’s too much (unintelligi-
ble) over there and Ruckleshaus is a
perfectly trustworthy man. He’ll stay
30 days — )

_HP. I know him and T think well of
him. .

P. And for that matter, we’ll have
another man ready. Does that sound
alright to you? I told Ruck, incident-
ally, that he was to cooperate with the
investigation and I said, “Ruck you are
to do anything that the prosecutor says
to do, Henry Petersen, or the prosecu-
tors, leave no stone unturned and I
don’t give a damn who it hurts. Now
believe me, that’s what he’s been told.
So you got a man there who will —

‘HP. 1 know him and I thihk well of
him, Mr. President. :

P. Well, he’s Mr. Clean, you know
so you understand

HP. Yes, indeed. He’s quite able, he
is indeed. )

P. So there you are. You've got to
knock that — Crack down. If there’s
one thing you have got to do, you have
got to maintain the Presidency’out of
this. I have got things to do for this

See TEXT, A27, Col. 1
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country and I'm going to have—now
this is personal. I sometimes feel like
T’d like fo résign. Let Agnew be Presi-
dent for a while. He’d love it.

HP. I don’t even know why you want ,

he job? y .
th%.J‘You. are talking about this story
—that Agnew -is getting ready /to re-
sign. That’s The Post also? i

RZ. Well, that’s The Post and Times.

P. Post? Well, what did Agnew say?

. RZ. “That’s: ridiculous.” Marsh
Thompson’s going to turn it off. ngl,
Look. Let me have Gergen call him
back, and say; : .

RZ. “He raised two points) with me.
Let me tell you what is, going on here_r.
What’s going: on here Bob, is the Presi-
dent is going to get to the bottom of
this.

RZ. And then have Gergen say, I
have checked this at a very high level
and youwd better, absolutely not even
go into any emotional concerns of run-
ning a story like this. Yog had better
just wipe it out of your mind. Because

there is nothing to it .
P. That’s right.

RZ. If you say you want to be re-
sponsible and fair, “Well, you had betr
ter not go with a source that you have

to speculate on. . .
P. Right. The same wlt_h the Tlmes_._

-

-
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RZ. The New York Times man, I'm
sure —

P. Well, Hersch is so damn unreli- -

able. :
RZ. (unintelligible).

P. I’d call Daniels. Hersch told Bitt-

man who told O’Brien that Dean. had
testified that there was a new—that
the President was involved, right?

RZ. Not testified, but told the prose- .

cutor or something.

P. Told the prosecutor that the Presi-
dent was involved, right?

P. Let me ask Henry a question. You
have Titus and those saying Dean,
neither Dean or his lawyers, have said
anything of that sort except this one
thing. :

HP. They said, “tying in the Presi-
dent” not in the Watergate but in

other areds and the prosecutor said,
“Stop! We don’t want to get in this. '

We don’t want to discuss this.”

HP. What I think is its bombast, its
negotiation—it’s ah — '

P. Again make it clear that Henry’s
made his check.

RZ. Just to put this into perspective.
This is not, as I sense it, about to
break in the papers, This ig just rumor
type. .

P. Well, kill it. Kill it hard.

RZ. Ok, sir. (Ziegler leaves.)

P. Let me say this, let me ask you
about (unintelligible). First, on Dean—
I would not want to get into a position
—You have told me now, “You can do
what you want with Dean.” You have
given up. You mmean, in other words,
fire him, hire him, leave him, treat
him like the . others, wait until the
Grand Jury acts, or something., You
see, I have three courses: I can wait
until the Grand Jury acts, T can take
leaves of absence, or I can take resigna-
tions, I have three different courses
on all three men. I can do different
things with each one of them. Right?

HP. Yes,. sir.

P. These are the. options, but what
¥ will do remains to pe seen. Now in

. Dean’s case, I do not want the impres-

sion left that—I have gone over with
you before, that by saying “Don’t
grant immunity to a major person,”

, that in so.doing.T am trying to block

Dean giving evidence against Halde-
man or Ehrlichman. :

HP. I understand .that.

P. I have applied that to others, and
I don’t want to—no. Do I make myself
clear?

HP. Yes, let me make myself clear.

P. Yes. ; .

HP. I regard .immunity authority

- under the statutes of the United

States, to be my responsibility, of
which I cannot divest myself.

P. Right. '

HP. And—ah—we take opinions,
but I would have to treat this as ad.
visory only.

P. Right. Well understand, I only
expressed -an opinion.

HP. I wunderstand.

P. And understand you have got to
determine who is the major culprit

too.

HP. Yes, sir. .. :

P. If you think Dean is an agent—
Let me say. If Dean, I—I think Hal-
deman and Ehrlichman in the case of
themselves with Dean. But my point
is, you have got to—ah—I don’t know
what you prosecutors think, but if
your prosecutors believe that they
have got to give Dean immunity, in
whole or in part, in order to get the
damned case, do it. I’'m not—I'm not
telling you what to do, but—you un-
derstand? Your decision. Now have
you talked to the prosecutor about
this situation?

HP. They vascillated. In the first
instance they, I think, felt quite
strongly that Dean should be immu-
nized, and 1 was resisting. And the
last time we discussed it, why they
had made other— i

P. Why? Maybe because of what I
said? See? I don’t want—I don’t want
them—

HP. No. I don’t so, because, one,
they are in a position to simply make
the recommendation and let me shoul-
der the heavy burden.

P. Why do you think that they had
turned around? o

HP. Well,” I think they see the
question of credibility. They have
come to the recognition that if they
are going to put him on the stand
and he’s going to have any credibility
at all, he’ll have most credibility if he
goes in and pleads and testifies as a
co-defendant against Ehrlichman and
Haldeman as opposed to someone who
has been given immunity and is testi-
fying against them.

P. Even an old man like Wilson will
tear hell out of him.

HP. Well, John Wilson may be old,
but he’s one hell -of a lawyer.

P. Oh, I can see— i

HP. A top-notech man— . -

P. I met him last night, I said pri-
vately and I won’t again, but I was
impressed with him. He is a delight-
ful man. And I could see, I can see—
I would want to be on the stand with
bim interrogating.

HPR. He’s a fair—

- P. He must be pretty good.

HP. Yes, sir, he is. And did you

Meet Frank Strickler? .

P. Yeah.

HP. They are both delightful peo-
ple. )

P. Yeah. Strickler, he just looks
like sort of a hig country bumpkin,
but there is a sharp mind in there.

HP. Very able fellow. And they are
decent people to deal with—as adver-
saries. They are decent. They are hon-
orable lawyers, they are a pleasure to
deal with. :

P. All right. We have got the im-
munity problem resolved, Do it. Dean
if you-need to, but boy I am telling
you — there ain’t going to be any
blackmail. .

HP. Mr. President, I—

P. Don’t let Dick Kl_eipdiengt say



it Dean ain’t — *Hunt is going to
blackmail you.” Hunt's not going to
blackmail any of us. “It is his word,
basically, against yours.” It’s his word
against mine. Now for—who is goinz
to believe John Dean? We relied on
the damned so — Dean, Dean was the
one who told us throughout the sum-
mer that nobody in the White House
was involved when he, himself. ap-
parently, was involved, particularly
on the critical angle of subornation of
perjury. That’s the one that—I will
never, never understand John.

HP. I, I can almost quote him He
said, “Henry, God damn it, I need
this information. That man has desig-
nated me to get all these facts.” And
he calls me in there and chews my
ass off.

P. Do you know something?

HP. And this was before the trial— .

P. Dick Kleindienst, incidentally,
Dick Kleindienst told me this last
night when I talked to him. He said,
“You know, Mr. President—" And I
said, “Do you know the first. time I
ever saw Dean alone was on February
27, 1972, except for 5 minutes when I
signed my will on August 14th.” Dick
probably repeated, because I think you
were in the room. He said, “Are you
kidding?” 1 said, “No, why? Did you
hear otherwise?” He said, “Well, Dean
was around here quoting the President
all the time.” Did he-indicate that I
was telling him to do this?

HP. He told me that he had been
designated by you to accumulate all
these facts and ‘he was reporting to

you personally. And that youwd be -

clearing his ass out if he didn’t have
it and I went back to him again, I said,
“John, are vou sure this\information is
not going laterally?” I said, ‘Not that
I distrust you, but you, where is it

going? Do you know?” He said, “Henry;

it is only going upward,” which I took
to mean—~Ehrlichman, Haldeman and
you.

- P. Ehrlichman. It went to Ehrlich-
man, T am sure. And then into Halde-
-man. And to Ziegler, because Ziegler
used Dean. But that was because he
had to (unintelligible). :

HP. Well, I didn’t have any problem
with that. I got in— ’

P. Dean. You will get Dean in there.
Suppose he starts.trying to impeach
the President, the word of the Presi-
dent of the United States and says,
~“Well, I have information to the effect
that I once discussed with the Presi-
dent the question of how the possi-
bility, of the problem,” of this damn
Bittman stuff I spoke to you about last
timel Henry, it won't stand up for five
minutes because nothing was done, and
fortunately I had Haldeman at that
conversation and he was there and I
said, ‘“Look, I tried to give you this,
this, this, this and this.” And I said,
“When you finally get it out, it won’t

work. Because, I said, “First, you can’t .

get clemency to Hunt.”
HP. I agree.
P. I mean, I was tr}_dn:g to get it

out. To try to see what that—Dean had
bgen doing! T said. “First you can't
give him elemency.” Somebody has
thrown out something to the effect
{:hat Dean reported that Hunt had an
idea that he was going to get clemency
around Christmas. T said, “Are you
kidding You can’t get clemency for
_Hunt. You couldn’t even think about
l«‘.t untll, you know, ’75 or something
like that.” Which you could, then be.
cause of the fact, that you could get

to the—ah—But nevertheless, T said

you couldn’t give clemency. I said,
“The second point to remember is

‘How are you going to get the money’

for them?’ If you could do it, I mean
you are talking about a million

“dollars.” T asked him—well, I gave him

several ways. I said, ‘You couldn’t put
it through a Cuban Committee could
you?” T asked him, because to me he
was sounding so damned ridiculous.
I said, “Well under the circumstances,”
I said, “There isn’t a damn thing we
can do.” I said, “It looks to me like
the problem is sue John Mitchell.”
Mitchell came down the next day and
we talked about executive privilege.
Nothing else. Now, that’s the total
story. And—so Dean—iI just want you
to be sure that if Dean ever raises the
thing, you've got the whole thing.
You've got that whole thing. Now kick
him straight— ¢

HP. That’s—I mean—that’s what we
had to do. I just don’t see how we can
minimize that man. That’s all there

is to it. :

P. But T suppose he talks to hig
friends. Is he talking to Bittman? No,

Dean was talking to O’Brien, wasn’t

he? Dean wasn’t talking to Bittman.

HP. Not to my knowledge. Wasn’t
that story that Bittman? That Bittman
talked to O’Brien—Bittman, Bittman
to O’Brien—

P. No. . Bittman to O’Brien said,
“Look, we need the money.”

HP. That’s right. -

P. Or was it Bittman to Dean? I
don’t know. What kind of a guy is
O’Brien?

HP. I’'ve only met O’Brien one time
and then only recently at a recent Bar
dinner. I don’t know him. Bittman, I
know' well. I just thank God I broke

- off social relations with him from the

time he represented Hunt. We had a
golf date, and I just broke it and I
haven’t seen him since then.

P. What about Bittman?

HP. What he’s concerned about is

the allegation that he, in behalf of
Hunt, was attempting to blackmail the
White House for substantial sums of
money in return for Hunt's silence.
That’s the allegation. And that’s what
MeCord said—ah s

P. McCord saif that Bittman—

HP. McCord said that Dorothy Hunt
told him all this sort of thing.

P. And so how do you get to them?

Do you have to call Bittmanr wnat ao
you do? ‘

HP. Well, we may get into the fee.
Fees are not privileged.

P. I see.

HP. Now—

P. You say, “Where did he get your
fee?” ‘

HP. That’s right. g )

P. And how would you go about that
one?

HP. We’ll have to subpoena the fee
records out of the law firm.

P. And then if he got the fees, you
say, “Did blackmail the White House
for this?” ) .

HP. Well, ah.

P. How did he pay the fee?

HP. No, no. I think that—one, we
try and find out whether or not the
amount of fees reflected on the books
of .the law firm were consistent with
the amount of money that was—oh—to
have gone to the law firm. In other

- words, what we think happened is that

a considerable amount within the law
firm was paid out in fees and the bal-

~ance went on to Dorothy Hunt for dis-

tribution to the Cubans and what have
you.

P. For support.

HP. The strange thing about this
one, Mr. President, is that they could
have done it openly.

P. Why, of course!

HP. If they had just come out in the
Washington Post could say, “Well
these people were—" .

P. They helped the Scottsboror peo-
ple, they. helped the Berrigans, you
remember the Alger Hiss defense
fund?

HP. And we're going to help these—
They were doing this—Once you do it
in a clandestine fashion, it takes on
elements— >

P. Eleménts of a cover-up.

HP. That’s right, and obstruction of
Jjustice. ) )

P. That's what it is, a question of
the way it was done,

HP. Sir. .

P. Curious thing. I get your point
there, I see that in other words, the—
So let’s look at Bittman. Bittman says
he is trying to blackmail the White
Honse: Alright you -called Bittman.
Bittman says that — he -says that
O’Brien — Where did you get ' the
money? And so forth— - - i

IiIP. Now Bittman maintaing that it's
a lie. .

P. He’d be better off to say it’s a lie.

HP. Yeah. He simply 'says that this
gs a :statemer}t by McCord that is lack-
ing in veracity. ¥
HP. And is attributed to (unintelli-
gible) and Dorothy Hunt,

P. Of course, you've got Dean now

corroborating—
. HEP. Well, we have Dean alluding to
it, but not in circumstances that we
can use it. It depends upon whether
not not— )

P. But Dean must say—this is also



hearsay on that point. I had forgotten .
thic is hearsay Because he says that
he had heard that Bittman needed
money, I mean, Bittman had said had
had to have a hundred—

HP. The link here is O’Brien.

P. Huh?

HP. The link here is O’Brien.

F I—oh, I see.

HP. The lawyer.

P. 1 see, that Dean had heard from
O’Brien. Bittman or O’Brien?

HP. No. I say the link we can break
into this is O’Brien. Cause O’Brien’s
a lawyer. He very scared and— )

. Yeah. So. O’Brien, Let’s see what
he says. I am just trying to see where
it sorts out. O’Rrien—can you get him
in? What’s he done? Has he spoken up?

HP. Well, I don’t know that I can
rea’ly predict-—ah—ah—but coneceiv-
ably if he said—ah— .

P. Bittman. .

HP. “As part of the scheme to en-
sure silence of of those that were
convicted, we made an arrangement
whereby money would flow through
Bittman in the form of legal fees for
distribution to those people.”—Then
you’ve got it .

P. In the form of legal fees, I see.
And then you’ve got Bittman and then
you've got O’Brien and then you got
the people that did it. If they—ah—
At least those that knew. Like Kalm-
bach, might not have known.

HP. That remains to be seen. And
LaRue, i

P. LaRue? LaRue did know. He had
to. And Mitchell. You've got Mitchell
there, you've got LaRue. Who else is
missing? LaRue, is he the one that
used the code name of Rivers?

HP. I don’t know whether— ]

P. T have heard that name Rivers.

HP. I heard Baker. Now there’s two,
but these may be couriers that Caul-
field recruited, I am not sure.

P. And in all that Caulfield is in-
volved, probably only coincidentally.
You can’t—they say some of these
down there. But O’Brien in other

words. O’Brien is scared. And O’Brien

says that Bittman—I am just trying
to see how they ever got—The only
way you could ever get—Let me say,
there is no way they could get that to
the President without going through

Halderman and Ehrlichman. But I am

referring to this man here. There’s no

way they could get it to here except
through the fact that on March 21st

Dean, as I had reported to you, did

report to me that Bittman 'had told

O’Brien that they needed the money.

They needed the money. It was dis-

cussed and we, I said, “It can’t be

done. We can’t do it.” He went on to
see Ehrlichman, and Ehrlichman said,

“No dice.” Nothing could be done. Now

that is the fact. As far as we’re con-

cerned. That isn’t much of a thing for

Dean to have. ‘

HP. Yeah. :

P. But you could have Bittman I
suppose Dean. He could have talked
1o him—but then you have hearsay.
But Dean is not credible. He is not

~credible. He really can’t. He can’t g0
- out and say, “Look I've talked to the
President and he told me this and that
and the other thing.” First, it’s not
true. 2
HP. That’s the reason I say, in order
to make Dean a credible witness; one,
it seems to me that he has to plead
" and two, he has to be corroborated in
an essential degree, not everything he
Says. But in sense an essential num-
ber of factors by other witnesses. ‘And

he may be corroborating in one re-

spect by LaRue and in another respect
by O’Brien, and ‘in still a third respect
by someone else, and in a fourth re-
spect by Magruder. You - know, and
that’s the way it goes and the case is
being built. So, maybe we can bring
O’Brien out

P. Well, therg’s only this one charge
I give to you, among many others, and
that is: If any of this—I mean, I can’t
allow it. Believe me that even prose-
cutors shouldn’t even have informed
you of this one. Or me—I—

HP. They have described it as bom-

" bast, and rhetoric, and—you know,

posing— L. .

P. You examine them tomorrow. And
you tell them, they are my men. I'm
for them too. I want them to do the
job. I want this to come out solid and
right here. And they will start right
in to.get the big fish. Let’s come to
the Dean thing again.

P. I can give you some more time
if you want to negotiate with him. I
mean, when I say I—more time—

HP—He needs more pressure. It’s
become . counterproductive of the
President.. S .

P. What? .

HP. It’s become counterproductive, I
think he was pressed. up- against the
wall, he’s seen the early-morning

‘crisis pass and now he’s had resur-

gence. You know, he sees Ehrlichman-
here. He sees Haldeman here. He sees:
John. Dean still here. Nothing hap-
pens. His confidence is coming back
rather than ebbing. And . :

P. What do you think? Without your
advice—Is the proper course of action
to have Dean to either—There are
two courses of action I can take. I
can take a leave of absence until they
clear. You-know what I mean. Which -
of course is a very—Bill Rogers thinks
is the fairest. And in the and and
then they resign, of course: Or I can
ask—just resign. Now the ‘problem
with resignation ,which hits at—There
isn’t any .question about what I will
do when you get through with your
damned Grand Jury. I just don’t—I
don’t want to — you know what I
mean? I don’t want him in effect—
by something that I do—to totally
prejudice even Dean. You understand-
what I mean? s -y

HP. T understand that aspect of it.

P. As President I shouldn’t give a
damn about that, but as President—
T'll speak to the country on this. And
I will soon. But my point is with a
leave of absence, with a leave of ab-

" sence for all three,

HP. With a leave of ahbsence, you
have the best of hoth worlds. You
have given them the benefit of the
doubt and you haven’t cut the Gordian
knot. You haven’t asked for their res-
ignations.

P. I have asked for a leave of ab-
sence. And I say, “Now I will deter-
mine at the conclusion not just of the
Grand Jury, but at the conclusion of
this entire investigation, that means
the Ervin Committee is in there too.”
If, for example, you don’t happen to
indict one of these three, or one or
two or three. I am not going to take

that as clear evidence — it is not
enough to serve the President simply
to get by—

HP. I understand—

P. And T have told them all of that.
They have got to be—

HP. I don’t see that we’re in any
disagreement there. The problem is .
one of timing, as I see it. I think, in
my humble judgment, that the ques-
tion of timing is working first to your
detriment, with respect to your image,

- before the press and public.

P. Do vou mean now would be a
good time—

HP. And secondly, T think it is
working toward the detriment of the
investigation because it is giving a
of these people an attitude of hope
that T think -is unwarranted and I
think that if he—

P. Let me ask you this. How about
moving Haldeman and Ehrlichman
and see what that does to Dean. I am

just thinking about that—Let me put
it this way. I am not in communica::
tion with Dean at all. For obvious

reasons. But Haldeman and Ehrlich-,
man, I hold my damn brain sessions.

I know that they are telling me the .
truth. Dean, I can’t believe him. Be. "
cause I don’t know what he is up to;.
you see? And, this leave of absence-
talk, let 'me say—Please let us keep "
it within ourselves. I cant leak this

out. Tt will kill them. Tt will kill the

whole thing. I am particularly——can’tﬂ
let it out to Dean. I don’t like to put
the three of them in the same bag.

Although they may all be there.

HP. Mr. President, why do you not -
like to put them in the same bag?
You don’t like to put them in the same .
bag because Haldeman and Ehrlich-
man are loyal to the last minute, and’
you— : b

P. No, no it isn’t that. It isn’t that. -

HP. I am not questioning your mo-
tive. 3
P. I am referring primarily to the:
fact that I have a different relation
with the others. At this point I can’t.
get Dean in and say, “Look fella, you
take a leave of absence and if you-
come through clean 1 will take you
back.” You know, something like that.

HP. Well, I, in all candor, I think
a leave of absence—absence—is just a
preliminary step to ultimate depar-

‘ture.

P. T see. .
HP. 1 don’t see how ei_the_r way any
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of them could come back. ‘But it cer-
tainly at least in terms of bias and-
prejudice it indicates to the public at
large that you haven’t completely
abandoned them. You haven’t com-
pletely and unalterably decided their .
fate .On the other hand, I am separat-
ing myself from them and saying now,
by golly, you—What you say is you are.
guilty until you are proven innocent.
That’s what the leave of absence is.:
You see. The other way I am saying,
“Resignation—you’re guilty.” That's
the difference, isn’t it? The leave of
absence in effect is saying, “Look,
fellas, I give you leave of absence. So
I hold you, basically, not that youre
guilty, “but—I'm not holding - you
guilty ,I'm not finding you guilty, but
I'm saying is that you've got to prove
that you are innocent before you can~
come back. d
HP. No. :
P. Now in recognition I am saying —-
HP. N o—you re saying that you have
to prove you're worthy to work in the
Office of the President. o
P. Oh, I see. I understand. :
HP. But I think that, I think that’
a much more ritualistic way of say-
ing —
P. Well, that’s what T told them

That’s what I told them. You know’

what I mean by guilt and mnocence -

I mean worthiness. ‘
HP. That’s right. ik
P. You have to prove youre worthy.
HP. But you see that’s what I see has

to get out to the public. But Mr. Presi-

dent, my wife is not a politically so— ‘

phlstlcated woman,

P. That’s right —

HP. She knows I'm upset about

and you know, I'm working hard a 1d"”
she sees it. But she asked me at break-
fast—She, now I don’t want you to hold .

this against her if you ever meet he1‘

because she’s a charming lady —

P. Of course.

HP. She said, “Doesn’t all this upset
you”” And I sa1d “Of course it does.”

“Why the hell doesn’t the Presu—

dent do something?”

HP. She said, “Do you think the
President knows"” And I looked at-

her and said, “If I thought the Pre51- .

dent knew, I would have to resign.”
But, you know, now there is my own
family,, Mr. President —

P. Sure. Sure.

HP. Now whatever confidence she.-
has in you, her confidence in me ought .
to be unquestioned. Well, when that’
type of question comes through in my-
home — 3

P. We've got to get it out.

HP We've got a problem.

P. Well you know I have mestled
with it. Pve been trying to —

HP. Mr. President, I pray. for you,v,
sir.

P. I have been trying to get the
thing. Like even poor Gray—there was -~
nothing we could .do. Ah—-—wresthng
with Dean’s covers. But ah —

HP. I wouldn’t try to dlstmgmsln
between the three of them.

P. 1 understand. I understand. Well; -
T won’t try to distinguish, but mayhe -
they will be handled differently due-:
to the fact that I am not commumcat—-
ing with Dean. .

HP. Mr. President, it is alway easxer
to advise than it is to assume the re-

sponsibility.

P. I will do it my way. And it wﬂl
be done. I am working on it. I wont
even tell you how—how — %

HP. I understand — i

P. But what are you going to do?
What -will happen now? The FBI will
now interview Dean on that report inu.
California? b

HP. Yes, sir. They will interview:

Ehrlichman and they will, ah, attempt -
to identify the psychiatrist. They will,
interview the psychiatrist named as-
Ellsberg’s psychiatrist to determine .
whether or not they were burglarized
or know they were burglarized. They:
will attempt to determine if there’s -
any police report of a burglary. We'
will check with the Defense Departn
ment since they have been involved.
in this thing. We will re-check the FBI.:
We’'ve already checked them once. ~

P. What did they find?

HP. Well, nothing. We've checked
our own people —

P. Now, the FBI will not do anythmg. :

HP. 1 understand But . .. we're talk- -
ing about the evidence of information’
that may have been stemmed from
that source.

P. Yeah. Well they got into the trial.";
HP. Whether any of that has gotten
into the file in any way. And when we'
do that and we do that, we have to file.
a report to the Court and we will an(t
ah we’ll see what develops. '~ i

P. Alright. Thank you.



